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RULE OF COURT.

ADOPTED BINCE THE PUBLICATION OF VOLUME XXIX,

28. [Cu1EF JUSTICE MAY MAKE ORDERS UNDER
BaNkiNG LAw.]—WHEREAS, Questions arise under the
banking law of the state which demand prompt attention
in order to protect important business interests and valua-
ble property, and which require the appointment of re-
ceivers and other officers. and

WHEREAS, Such questions are liable to arise at a time
when the court is not in session,

Therefore, The chief justice is hereby authorized and
empowered to pass on all questions presented to him
which arise under said banking law, and make all orders
which are by him deemed necessary during the time when
this court is not in session.
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The syllabus in each case was prepared by the judge
writing the opinion, in accordance with rule 20.

A table of statutes and constitutional provisions cited,
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In Memoriam.

OLIVER PERRY MASON.

OLIVER PERRY MAS8ON, chief justice of the supreme court from
1866 to 1873, died August 18, A. D. 1891.

At the session of the supreme court, October 6, 1891, the following
proceedings, touching his decease, took place:

MR. ATTORNEY GENERAL HASTINGS:

MAY IT PL.EASE YOUR HONORS: Your committee to whom was
aliotted the duty of presenting resolutions of respect to the memory
of HON. OLIVER P. MASON, late deceased, beg leave to submit the
following:

Resolred, That the bar of the state and the supreme court of Ne-
braska unite in the expression of profound regret on account of the
death of our brother, HON. OLIVER P. MASON; his long and useful
services as a lawyer, a legislator, and a judge, his great powers, his
honest record in public and private life, his loyalty of friendship and
nobility of character, make his name and fame the heritage of our
state, and have endeared him to the people. We feel that the bar of this
state has been honored and exalted by his life and example from
the earliest territorial days of our commonwealth to the present time.
‘We know that, as a public man and jurist, JUDGE M AsON has as much
to do with, and exercised as great an influence in, the formation of
our civil government as a state, and in the organization and perma-
nent establishment of our courts and judiciary on a high footing
equal with that of any state of our American Union, as any public
man of Nebraska.

Resolved, That in his life we recognize in the deceased a jurist pos-
sessed of a scope and power of legal acumen and analysis equal to,
if not greater than, that possessed by any member of the bar of Ne-
braska.

He was a man of great force of character, great kindness of heart,
and of great integrity.

As a judge upon the district and supreme bench of this state, his
power was 80 marled and his individuality so great, that his every

(ix)



x IN MEMORIAM—

decision and opinion was stamped thereby, regardless of research and
argument before him. He knew the law, and his analysis and expo-
sition of it adorned his opinion, clothing the law in its purity, unob-
scured by those personal and special influences which always surround
the subject in controversy.

His was a rugged and picturesque character in the pioneer days of
Nebraska, and in latter years left the strong imprint of his individ-
uality on the legal and judicial history of the state.

As a lawyer he was painataking and conscientious, true to his
clients; he believed that they were entitled to-the full exertion of all
his abilities. He rested only when the end wasreached. During the
contest he neither sent nor received a flag of truce.

He thought for himself and spoke what he thought. He was loyal
to his own convictions. He never, in the hope of selfish gain, agreed
with the mistakes of majorities, but, regardless of consequences,
pointed out and attacked their follies and prejudices.

He was an open, honorable, manly foe, a loyal, true friend. He
wore no mask. He knew his friends—his enemies knew him.

He was the same at all times, in all places—the soul of honor. His
integrity was never doubted. He was above corruption and suspi-
cion. He neither hought nor sold. He has left his family a legacy
grander than wealth—n good name, an untarnished reputation.

Resolved, That we condole with his family in their great loes, and
that from an earnest desire to show every mark of respect due to the
memory of a distingnished man and citizen, manifesting the high es-
teem he was held in by all classes of our citizens, we will report
these resolutions to this honorable court, now in session, and suggest
that they be spread at length upon the records of the court.

Geo. H. HASTINGS.
M. B. REESE.

GEo. B. LAKE.

T. M. MARQUETT.
M. L. HAYWARD.
J. M. WOOLWORTH.
E. WAKELEY.

8. M. CHAPMAN.
E. W. THoMAS.

In presenting these resolutions on behalf of the committee, I pause
but to add, that the life and the lahors of the distinguished lawyer
and judge, whose death we all deplore. has become so closely biended
with the history of this state, that to write the one of a necessity
writes the biography of the other. His strong, sanguine, and potent
touch has left its lasting impression on the court, the bar, and upon
the trend of the constitution and legislative enactments since our
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history as a territory and state began. No lofty bronze or marble
shaft shall be his monument, no carved line upon the cold and pulse-
less stone, no sentiment we write, no words we speak shall be his
epitaph. He has reared for himself a monument more lasting than
brass or granite, by his life and by his work in the midst of the peo-
ple. His epitaph is found npon each page of our history, fashioned
by his own vigorous hand, guided by the magnificent capabilities of
his genius and intellect. Let his life and his death admonish us
each to )
¢ g0 live that when thy summons comes (o join

The innumerable caravan that moves

To the pale realms of shade, where each shall take

His chamber in the silent halls of death,

Thou go not, like the quarry slave at night,

Scourged to his dungeon, but, sustained and soothed

By an unfaltering trust, approach thy grave

Like one who wraps the drapery of his couch

About him, and lies down to pleasant dreams.”

HoN. CHARLES O. WHEDON:

MAY 1T PLEASE THE COURT: It is a befitting custom, peculiar to
the members of the bar, that when, as to a member of the profession
who has enjoyed the confidence and esteem of his fellows, final judg-
ment that he go hence without day has been pronounced and exe-
cuted, his brothers assemble to testify to his worth, It is a privilege
enjoyed by the members of no other profession that we are permitted
to enter these our testimonials as enduring monuments upon the pub-
lic records of & court. It is proper that the ordinary proceedings of
this tribunal, over which the late OLIVER P. MASON presided as chief
justice, should be interrupted while we pay to his memory the merit
of well-deserved praise.

I count it as ore of the fortunate incidents of my life that in my
early professional career I enjoyed the privilege of forming a partner-
ship with JUDGE MASON, which continued from October, 1874, uatil
the close of his active professional life. During these years I was as-
sociated with him upon terms of closest intimacy, and I came to know
him so well, that I can speak with the assurance of accurate knowl-
edge of those qualities in his character that now claim from his asso-
ciates at the bar and from this court those tokens of respect and
honor we here and now offer to his memory. His was no common
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character. Nature, with a lavish hand, bestowed upon him the gifts
of originality, intellectual power, and genius. Looking more fre-
quently within than without for light, he was apt to rely more upon
the inspiration of his own understanding and convictions than upon
the teachings of others, and he was more given to making precedents
than to seeking after them. He was a man of marked personality;
strong in his likes and dislikes; he was ever a steadfast friend, an un-
compromising enemy. The principle of treating his enemy as though
he might one day become his friend, had-no place in his creed, and
he was ever ready to strike his opponents with the shafts of ridicule
and sarcasm, weapons he always carried, and to the use of which he
was not unaccustomed. He was honest in his convictions, both as to
principles and men. An earnest and able advocate, in the trial of a
cause he knew but one person in the whole world,and that person was
his client. Before courts his arguments upon the law were concise,
logical, and convincing, and the power he possessed of swaying juries
and popular assemblies was surpassed by few. The dissenting opin-
ion delivered by him in this court in Tennant’s case stands as a mon-
ument to his keen perception of the powers and privileges of the sev-
eral departments of the state government, his analytical powers of
reasoning, and his vigorous use of language. He spoke and acted
from the impulses of a warm and generous heart, and policy, in the
common acceptation of the term, was an unknown art. He was a
commoner and his sympathies were ever with the unfortunate. As
tending to show his views of the duties of thestate towards the poor,
the debtor class of citizens, I here quote at length the report which
he, as chairman of the judiciary committee of the house in the then
territory of Nebraska, made to that body October 6, 1858, thirty-three
years ago to-day. He said:

“The undersigned, to whom were referred various homestead ex-
emption bills, have carefully examined and considered the same, and
would respectfully report the accompanying substitute for the con-
sideration of the house, and recommend its passage.

‘“Your committee would farther state that in addition to the ordi-
nary reasons and arguments in favor of the wisdom of legislative
action protecting the homesteads of families from forced sale and exe-
cution, the peculiar situation of the people of this territory and their
present circumstances.urge this policy upon us with a force which we
cannot resist, animated as we are by a desire to subserve the public
good. Bat one year ago everything around us rejoiced in the sunlight
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of prosperity and success. Enterprise was conducting our people
through a thousand avenues, illuminated with the brilliant torchlight
of hope, to individual and national wealth.

*‘The conquest of the wilderness went on like the work of magic;
civilization was fast rearing her altars on the camp ground of the sav-

eage, and on every hand abounded the certain indications of thrift and

contentment; but suddenly a cloud came upon the prospects of our
people, and the gloom of midnight succeeded the brightness of noon-
day. A financial revolution, without parallel in the history of our
country, has entirely’ deranged the affairs of our people, dnd the ruin
of thousands of our citizens is inevitable unless they are upheld and
sustained by the helping hand of legislation.

“The home of the settler, the scene and the result of his hardship
and toil, must go to swell the fortune of the merciless speculator, and
heartless and foreign money lender, unless the law, armed with jus-
tice, shall say to the avaricious and grasping creditor, * thus far shalt
thou go and no farther.”” And unless this is done, I fear a spiritless
inaction will succeed and take the place of that tireless energy and
persevering industry which has hitherto characterized our young and
vigorous population.

‘‘ Our people are not responsible for this state of things; no human
sagacity could have averted the evil. It came upon us like an ava-
lanche, and has swept away the prospect which encouraged our indi-
vidual efforts, and abated the ardor of enterprise which guaranteed
success.

‘‘ Your committee is clearly of the opinion that a liberal homestead
law is more loudly called for by the wants of our people than any
one other act of legislation. The passage of such a law would not
only relieve our citizens from their present embarrassment, but wounld
encourage immigration, offering, as it would, an inducement for set-
tlement amongst us of that class who have felt the hand of adversity
most severely in other parts of the country. Many a man of enter-
prise and possessed of good business qualifications wonld thus be in-
duced to gather up the remnants of a broken fortune, and purchase a
homestead among us, and here, upon our broad prairies and from our
generous soil, would, in the enjoyment of his home, by the fostering
care of legislation, rear a home which would be an ornament to our
country and a proud heritage for his children.

“Another great benefit, universal in its application, which would
result from the passige of a liberal homestead law, would be the blow
that would be given to the credit system, that most dangerous of all
systems, which destroys alike all who trust to the plaudits of its
admirers.

‘‘For these and other reasons equally and still more weighty, your
committee would most respectfully u.ge the early prssage of a liberal
homestead exemption law.”’
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It is not my purpose to review the public career of JUDGE MASON.
To do so is to review the history of Nebraska as a territory and state.
Suffice it to say that he was a member of the territorial legislature of
the fifth, ninth, tenth, and eleventh sessions; president of the council
when the constitution of 1866 was formed, a member of the constitu®
tional convention of 1871, judge of the district court of the First dis-
trict, and chief justice of this court from 1866 to 1873, and he also filled
other public positions of lesser importance. That man has not lived
in vain who has assisted in laying the foundation of a great state, in
enacting and administering its laws, in forming its constitation, and
by his counsels and labors aided in shaping its policy, and who, after
performing every duty faithfally, has left a noble example and un-
sullied name.

For our deceased brother, death had no terrors. He regarded it as
the natural, the inevitable consequences of life, to be feared neither
too much nor too little, and when to him the inevitable period came,
he met it with the fearlessness of a philosopher, leaving his future
existence, in which he was a firm and undoubting believer, to that
creative power which rules the universe. We laid his' body in the
cemetery near the scene of his earliest struggles and achievements,
where he made his home when the savage and buffalo wandered at
will over thesite of this capital city. There, beside her, the compan-
ion of his earliest years, whose loss he never ceased to mourn, he
sleeps. He will pass from the memory of men as those of his day
and generation meet the common doom of humanity, but no true his-
tory of Nebraska will ever be written which will not contain a record
of the public acts and services of OLIVER P. MASON.

HoN. G. M. LAMBERTSON:

It is my privilege to add a few words to what has been already so
fittingly said, before death’s curtain falls forever between us and the fa-
miliar form of JUDGE MASON. Ib the near past death has been busy
in our midst, but when it laid low our friend, it reaped one of its rich-
est harvests. He fought death with rare courage and hope, but at
last the weary struggle is over. “God’s finger touched him and he
slept.”” Those who knew him best will be his truest mourners. His
dear friends were his near friends, and they were drawn very close to
him.

Others have spoken of JUDGE MASON as a man, of his kindness of




OLIVER P. MASON. XV

heart. Certainly under his, at times, gruff exterior there was a heart
as tender as a child’s. He delighted in his home life, and the lovely
family that he reared reciprocated to the fullest extent the unstinted
and boundless affection that he lavished upon them. His reference
to the days long gone, when the fires of domestic happiness burned
brightly, his tribute of affection to the dear companion who preceded
him to the realms beyond, melted all hearts.

Able as JUDGE M ASON was generally, it seems to me that his great
powers were never 8o splendidly exhibited as when he appeared as the
tribune of the people or the advocate at the bar. Here his great
powers were shown in their ripest perfection. He was the strongess
personality and the most unique figure at the Nebraska bar. His
individuality stamped everything it touched. Of massive propor-
tions, of dignified, even ponderous mien, he at times swept everything
before him in the forensic arena by his physical momentum. When
with a voice of thunder “ gathering his brows like a gathering storm,’’
with tremendous physical action, the very incarnation of force itself,
he swept down upon an opponent, an error, heresy, or fraud, there was
as little chance of staying the onset as of stopping an avalanche by
brandishing a pin in its pathway.

He had all the qualities of a great advocate—form, voice, rhetoric,
humor, pathos, argumentative power, and that rare common sense
that strikes the level of the common juror and wins the verdict when
all else fails.

JUuDGE MASON’S originality was such that his sayings have been
household words among the bar for a quarter of a century. He had
@ soaring imagination, but if the wings of his fancy carried him to
the heavens, his feet were always on the solid ground. However fer-
vid might be his rhetoric, yet he was always rooted in the facts of the
case. His tread was massive, his steps elephantine and path-finding.
‘We shall not soon look upon his like again. Now that the ripening,
bending heads, ready for the harvest are being so rapidly gleaned by
the aickle of death, the warning again comes to us:

¢ 'Tis the wink of an eye, a draught of the breath,
From the blossoms of health to the pale ness of death.”

HoN. W. 8. S8uMMERS, DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL:

It is my privilege to speak a few words to the resolutions of respect.
I speak in behalf of the younger members of the bar.
1%
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In the history of mankind no one ever rose to prominence among
his fellows without incurring the severe criticism and condemnation
of the masses. However high the tide of civilization rolls, prejudice
and jealousy always render unjust, to a greater or less degree, the
judgment of the world. How often has the pathway of society been
80 obscured beneath the worthless fragments of an age that weary
minds had to seek in vain for the hidden light.

At the present time there rises before us an individual who, early
in life, passed proudly above the confusion of the day, fixed his gaze
upon the great immortals and sought guidance from their shining
lights. Humanity reveals itself in fragments. While one intellect
towers pre-eminently above others and thus becomes the exponent of
one kind of greatness, another, delving in an opposite realm of thought,
may rise and shine like a star of the first magnitude in the firmament
of creative minds. We appreciate the tireless efforts of each, and be-
stow the laurel crown on both.

Therefore, in virtue of a character such as has not been surpassed in
this great commonwealth, OLIVER P. MASON, the eminent jurist,
the eccentric citizen, deserves the epithet—great.

I am surrounded by men of my chosen profession. Many of you
are older in years and larger in experience than am I. You have
practiced at the bar before and with the subject of these resolutions.
You know him as a lawyer. It has been my privilege to study him
only as a citizen of a great, prosperous state. I express to you my
idea of his ability and capability. When the shams of centuries are
gettling down like a dark pall upon the people, he comes forth and
stands amidst the fury of contending factions. He scorns vain dream-
ers of idle tales and spinners of speculative cobwebs. He rebukes
the teachers of unfeeling pride. He defends trath. To him falls the
gigantic task, not of obeying, but of educating a people. Not sus-
tained by the fire of passion, not inspired by a love for glory, he lifts
a people by the force of his intellect, by the power of his logic, up
into the atmosphere of his own mighty spirit, and infases into their
minds the fire of his own genius. He stamps iudelibly upon the
ideas and tendencies of a state the impress of his own individaality.
To mankind he is an external conscience, whose judgment is at once
courted and feared. His peculiar characteristic is his tremendous
grasp on reality. We see his power in his fierce onslaught on social
conve'ntionalties; in the vivid lightning flashes with which he lights



OLIVER P. MASON. xvii

up moments of history and makes the historic past as brilliant as the
living present. He is intensely practical and thoroughly original.
He is earnest, severe, and critical. He is impassioned, devoted, and
heroic. His judgment is good. His intuition is a marvel. Man
studies his fellows through eye-glasses stained by our own peculiar
moods. Two men study his mental traits. What is the result? To
the one he is pre-eminently liberal; to the other he is emphatically
conservative. To the ene he is profound, philosophic, and analytic;
to the other he is acute, sagacious, and theoretic. To the one he is
ardent, energetic, and sanguine; to the other he is cold, apathetic,
and cynieal. To the one he is a consummate master of details; to
the other he abhors them. To the one he undertakes to demonstrate;
to the other he attempts to conciliate. To the one he has no ele-
ment of cunning duplicity; to the other he plans to subject every-
thing to the beck and nod of his own caprice. To the one he is
governed by principle; to the other he acts from policy. To the ome
he is a philanthropist; to the other he is misanthropic. The one says
his actions spring from conscience; his method of procedure is the
forcible presentation of facts; his aim to prove himself, beyond all
question, in the right. The other says he relies on precedent, and that
his weapon is that stinging sarcasm which he wields with such terri-
ble effect. In that acuteness which comprehends at a glance, in that
shrewdnees of planning and dexterity of execution, he has few su-
periors. He towers like a bold and defiant cliff, rough and rugged in
its greatness. Endowed with the power to pierce the secret springs
of human nature and the faculty of sublimely unveiling his Titanic
thoughts, he stands himself the embodiment of a mighty idea. He
is a psychological contradiction. He might have been a philosophi-
cal monarch. But death touched his tired heart. He left behind
him many bright gems and tangible realities on the great strand of

" human thought. Let us hope that the angel of genius will descend,
and, hovering around the tomb of this eccentric citizen, will drop his

* laurel crown, and with tears for his misfortunes, with charity for his
mistakes, with reverence for his majestic intellect, may it wave a
radiant scepter for his glory, and, ascending, bear that glory to a fairer
clime.

MR. CHIEF JUSTICE COBB arose and said :
In what has been said by the attorney general, by the gentlemen
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at the bar, and in the resolutions reported in honor of the memory of
the late JUDGE MASON, the court most sincerely concurs,

A natural sorrow exists in this court and among the legal profession
of the state, on account of his unexpected death. His close connec-
tion with the constitution and laws and the administration of justice,
during the earliest and most eventful history of the state, was so in-
timate, 8o useful to the public, and so honorable to the state and to
himself, that its severance forever occasions a mournfual pause, and is
falt as a calamity. To maintain this high position in public estima-
tion was the great aim of his life, the cherished aspiration of a mind

and faculties well composed and fitted for every intellectual strife.
" He was the first presiding officer of this court.

The Chief Justice, Gantt, though his junior in judicial service, had
preceded him to the bar of that court, that last tribunal of impar-
tial justice which we, for yet a little while, can comprehend only
through the vision of faith.

I concur in all that has been so excellently well said here of JUDGE
MAs0N’8 learning and skill as a lawyer, his discernment and impar-
tiality as a chancellor, and his equal eloguence as an advocate.

‘When he resumed the practice of law here he was not exeelled by
any counsel in the number and variety of important causes in which
he has appeared.

His capability was reinforced from all the sources and branches of
the law. He argued as to the proper fanctions of government, as to
the strict intention of the constitution, the purview of codes of pro-
cedure, the construction of statutes, the rights of corporations, and
the doctrines of the unwritten law, with equal fallness and learning
and fairness of judgment. And in all these he seemed to equal the
astuteness of those who had made each a special study; and each
branch, as he argued it, seemed to be that which he had most per-
fectly mastered.

While my acquainticeship with JUDGE MASON was almost exclu-
sively limited to the contentions of this hall, and to the time of my
service here, that acquaintance grew from respect into high esteem
and admiration for one who so nearly filled the measure of a perfect
lawyer—‘‘ that honorable gentleman who apeaks to every cause.’’

During a professional experience in two states, Wisconsin and tbis
state, I have had the opportunity to observe the acquirements of
many eminent lawyers; and when I bring to reflection their gifts as
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professional leaders and advocates at the bar, it seems to me that the
intellectual forms of RYAN and MASON rise up as two of the most
conspicuous and exalted of the many.

But MASON has gone; gone in the very vigor of mental capacity,
leaving the sweet savor of an endeared name. His contentions are
past. But are we not privileged of the reflection that there is an ex-
cellence of public character over which death has no power and the
grave no victory, but which still lives on to refresh the memory with
its halo during the lapse of years?

Resuming his seat the CHIEF JUSTICE said:®

The resolutions reported by the committee, the remarks of the
members of the bar, and the reply of the court thereto, will be en-
tered upon the journal and published in the appropriate volume of
Reports, and as a further mark of respect to the deceased, the court
will now adjourn. .
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[FiLED JULY 2, 1890.]

1. Evidence: IMPEACHMENT OF WITNESS. John Bell on De-
cember 31, 1886, mortgaged a brown mare colt to Emma Moore,
who assigned the mortgage to defendant Maxwell. Subse-
quently J. B. gave a bill of sale of the mare and other property
to his son Thomas Bell, who mortgaged the same to the plaintiff.
After this, defendant Montgomery, as constable, took possession
of the mare from T. B. and turned it over to Maxwell on the
first mortgage. The plaintiff replevied the mare from the two
last named. On the trial of the right of possession, T. B. was
called by plaintiff to identify the property, and Montgomery by
the defense to impeach his evidence by relating his former state-
ment to him, inconsistent with his present testimony. The
plaintiff’s objection to this examination was overruled by the

3 (33)
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court, and the statement given to the jury. Held, That the ad-

mission of the statement was error, without having first inter-

rogated the witness as to whether he had made such statement

and calling his attention to the time, place, and circumstances

of the same. (Hooper v. Browning, 19 Neb.,428; R. V. R. (o. ».

Linn, 15 1d., 234; George v, State, 16 1d., 321; Frederick v. Bal-
_ lard, 1d., 565.)

2. Instructions: Nor BASED ON EVIDENCE. On the further trial,
the court charged the jury that if they found from the evidence
that the plaintiff bad any actual knowledge, at the time of tak-
ing its mortgage on the brown mare in controversy, that she was
included in the defendants’ Emma Moore mortgage, they shounld
find for the defendants. Held, That as there was no evidence to
the jury tending to prove that either the plaintiff or any of its

- agents had any notice or personal knowledge of the existence of
the defendants’ mortgage it was reversible error in the court to
submit the proposition to the jury. (City of Crete v. Childs, 11
Neb., 253; Bowie v. Spaids, 28 Id., 635; Sloan v. Coburn, Id., 607;
Dunbier v. Day, 12 1d., 598; Bradshaw v. State, 17 1d., 147; B.
Co. v. Fink, 181d., 89; Ballard v. State, 19 1d., 609.)

ERROR to the district court for Madison county. Tried
below before POwERS, J.

Wigton & Whitham, for plaintiff in error,
H. C. Brome, and Burt Mapes, conira,
Coss, CH. J.

This action of replevin was tried in the district court of
Madison county. The plaintiff in error was plaintiff be-
low, and the defendants were defendants below.

The property described, in which the plaintiff claims a
special property, and claims the right of possession, was
‘““one iron gray mare about three years old,” which plaint-
iff claimed by virtue of a chattel mortgage, executed by
Thomas Bell, May 10, 1887, and which, it was alleged,
was wrongfully detained by the defendants. Their answer
was a general denial, but the defense made was that of a
chattel mortgage executed by John Bell, the grantor of
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Thomas Bell, to-Emma A. Moore, and by her assigned to
R. H. Maxwell, and that defendant was the agent of Max-
well in the foreclosure of the last mentioned mortgage,
executed December 31, 1886, and in which the mare in
" controversy was deseribed as “one brown mare colt, two
years old, valued at $100.”

There was a trial to a jury, with a verdict and judgment
for the defendant.

Upon bringing the case to this court on error the plaint.
iff assigns six substantial errors, which will be stated and
considered in their order. '

There were numerous witnesses examined on either side.
The facts testified to by the witnesses on either side were
generally consistent with the testimony of other witnesses
of the same side, but were in sharp conflict with that of the
other side. . The case turned upon the question whether
the mare was properly described in the mortgage to Mrs,
Moore, so that the record of her mortgage would be con-
structive notice to subsequent purchasers and mortgagees,
The respect in which it was claimed that the description
was insufficient for such purpose was as to color, and ac-
cordingly nearly all the testimony was directed to the color
of the mare in question at the several stages of existence,
from foal to that of the trial in the justice court at Battle
Creek. All of the witnesses who had seen the mare a
sucking colt agreed that she was then of a dark brown
color. Some who had opportunities of observing testified
that she “shed off” in the fall, others of equal opportuni-
ties testified that she did not “shed off”” until the next
spring; butall agreed that she did shed her coat, and when
new hair came on she developed considerable white hair
around her eyes, the root of mane and tail, and upon her
flanks. It may be said to have been the concurrence of
testimony that each time she shed her coat the new hair
contained more white than the old, that her color was less
brown, and approached nearer that of iron gray, gray
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roan, gray brown, or strawberry roan. But nearly or
quite all of defendants’ witnesses who had seen the mare,
at about the date of Mrs. Moore’s mortgage testified that
she was then “ a brown mare,” with a few white hairs upon
different parts of her body. Many of the same witnesses
also saw her at the time of the trial at the justice’s court,
and testified that she was then a brown mare.

On the other hand, many of the plaintiff’s witnesses also
saw the mare at and about the date of Mrs. Moore’s mort-
gage, and were equally emphaticin their testimony that she
was then an “iron gray mare.”

There being, then, such a conflict of evidence upon the
turning fact of the case, it was peculiarly a proper one for
a jury to decide, and if it appears that no improper testi-
mony was permitted to go before them, nor any erroneous
or improper charge given them, their verdict must stand.

Upon the trial defendants called asa witness John Dun-
can, who testified that he resided in Madison county; that
he was acquainted with John Bell in his lifetime, and re-
sided about eighty rods distant from him; that he knew
of Bell’s having had in possession a brown mare colt two
years old at that time; that he first saw the colt in the
spring of 1885, about the time it was foaled ; that he was
sure it was foaled about that time; its color was brown;
that he saw the same mare last spring, and then called her
dark gray, or brownish gray, and saw her during the year
1886, and would then call her a brown with gray hairs
around her eyes. Defendants’ counsel put the following
question: *“State how this colt was generally described.”
Plaintiff’s attorney objected to the question, as incompe-
tent; that the mortgage was the best evidence of the de-
scription and color of the animal, and no foundation laid
for the inquiry. The objection being overruled, exception
was taken. The witness answered: **Well, the brown
colt.” The overruling of this objection and the witness’s
answer are assigned for error, and the assignment is well
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taken, The witness had already stated what he had called
the color of the colt to be. The inquiry was evidently
intended to call out from him what others, the community,
called the color of the animal ; in other words, to prove the
general reputation as to her color. This could only be
done by ‘calling persons of the community at large and
interrogating them, and a large number was called for that
purpose. The testimony of each was proper evidence to
the jury for what it was worth, but it was contrary to the
tules of evidence to question either one as to what the
others, or the community, said of the disputed color of the
mare outside of the court. By its ruling the court per-
mitted hearsay evidence to go to the jury, which it is not
necessary to characterize as unjustified and injudicious.

The defense called Simon Montgomery as a witness, It
appears from the bill of exceptions that the defendant
Montgomery was a constable and had taken the animal in
controversy in foreclosing the Moore mortgage, then owned
by the defendant Maxwell, and had the mare in possession
at the commencement of this suit, and hence was made
joint defendant. The witness testified in reply to the
question, “State whether, at a short time after the taking
of the mare in controversy, you had a talk with Thomas
Bell in which he acknowledged to you that the mare was
the one described as the small brown mare in the Moore
mortgage.” The question was objected to by plaintiff, as
incompetent and no foundation laid. Anund the oljection
being overruled by the court, the witness answered: “I
had such conversation.”

Q. State what was said; did he say, at that time, that
the mare was the one described in the Moore mortgage as
the small brown mare?

The last objection was again made by the plaintiff and
overruled by the court.

A. Yes, he did.

Q. State whether or not, a short time prior to this suit,
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or to the trial, you had a conversation with Thomas Bell
in which he asked you to release the little brown mare from
the Moore mortgage, or to have Maxwell release it, and
that he would supply you with another, a sorrel mare?

Objection made by plaintiff, as before, and overruled by
the court.

A. I had that conversation with Bell; he asked me if
I could have Maxwell release the mare, and he could get
another sorrel mare that was described in the same Moore
mortgage, and which we never got; that if we would re-
lease this mare that he would go with me where we could
find that mare.

The plaintiff moved to strike out and exclude from the
jury the last answer of the witness, as incompetent, not re-
sponsive, and improper mode of impeaching a witness,
which was overruled.

This evidence was introduced ostensibly to contradict
the witness, Thomas Bell, who had been called in rebuttal
and examined by the plaintiff. On his cross-examination
defendant’s counsel asked, “ Q. Did you not tell Simon
Montgomery, shortly after he took the mare in controversy
from yourself, that the mare that he took was the one de-
scribed by John Bell, and known as the small brown
mare?” To which was answered, “I did not.” And the
following, “Q. Within a month or so prior to the trial,
did you not have a conversation with Robert Maxwell and
Simon Montgomery, in which you acknowledged that
the same mare lcre in controversy was the one that
is described in the mortgage of Mrs. Moore as the small
brown mare?” To which was answered, ¢ No, sir.” And
the following, “Q. Did you not go to Maxwell and Mont~
gomery and tell them that if they would release this mare
from the Emma Moore mortgage that you would go and
get another horse equally as good?” To which was an-
swered, “I did not make any such statement.”

Attention is called to the fact that it appears from the
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bill of exceptions that the Emma Moore mortgage was,
executed by John Bell in his lifetime; that he afterwards
executed a bill of sale to the animal in question, with other
property, to Thomas Bell, who afterwards executed the
mortgage under which the plaintiff claims title and pos-
session ; that, subsequently, during a period of sickness of
Thomas Bell the property, including the animal in con-
troversy, was taken from the Bell premises by Mont-
gomery upon the Emma Moore mortgage, which had pre-
previously been assigned to Maxwell.

Had the supposed conversation between the witness
Bell and Montgomery occurred while Bell was in posses-
sion of the mortgaged property it is probable that any
statement made by him as to the identity of the mare in
question would have been admissible as evidence against
his mortgagee, the plaintiff. But I deem it clear that any
statement made by him after the property passed from his
possession was inadmissible, imnaterial, and not binding
as against the plaintiff. Such being the case, while prob-
ably the defendant might be allowed to ask the questions of
the witness, he was bound by his answer, and had not the
right to call another witness to contradict his testimony.
This point has been often decided in this court, following
the law as laid down by Greenleaf, sec. 462, p. 561, espe-
cially in Hooper v. Browning, 19 Neb., 428; R. V. R. Co.
v. Linn, 156 1d., 234; George v. State, 16 1d., 321 ; Fred-
erick v. Ballard, 16 Id., 565, cited by counsel for plaintiff
in error. The court, therefore, erred in overruling the
objection of plaintiff to the questions put to the witness
Montgomery for the purpose of contradicting the witness
Bell.

Again, the defendant Maxwell being on the witness
stand, on behalf of the defense, his counsel put to him
questions in all respects similar to those put to his co-
defendant Montgomery, as to the statements of the witness
Bell. The same objection was made by the plaintiff as
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made to Montgomery’s answers, with the same ruling by
the court, and a like answer by the witness as that. of
Montgomery. This, as we have seen, was cumulative
error on the part of the court.

The plaintiff also assigns for error the giving by the
court, of its own motion, the Gth and 7th paragraphs of
instructions to the jury.

“6. If you find that the property in dispute is the
same referred to and included in defendant Maxwell’s
mortgage, and the same was in said mortgage described
sufficiently to enable a person to identify the property from
such description, or from inquiry to be satisfied by such
description, or, if you find that the plaintiff knew at the
time of taking his mortgage that said property was included
in defendant’s mortgage, then you should find for the de--
fendant. ,

“7. But if you believe from the evidence that said mare
is not the one described and included in the ' defendant
Maxwell’s mortgage, or if you find that said property was
so included but was not sufficiently described to enable
the plaintiff at the time of taking his said mortgage to
identify the property from the description of it contained
in the mortgage, or from inquiries reasonably and naturally
suggested by such description or mortgage, and that the
plaintiff, at the time of taking his mortgage on said prop-
erty, had no knowledge of the fact that defendants’ mort-
gage included said property, then you should find for the
plaintiff, provided you also find that said property was also
included in the plaintiff’s mortgage.”

The objection by plaintiff to these instructions is that
they submit the question to the jury whether the plaintiff
had any actual knowledge, at the time of taking its mort-
gage on the mare in controversy, that she was included in
the defendants’ (or the Emma Moore) mortgage, and the
jury were told that if the plaintiff had such knowledge
they should find for the defendant. There certainly was
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no evidence before the jury tending, in the least, to prove
that the plaintiff, or any of its agents, had any personal
knowledge on the subject.

On the trial the plaintiff called J. E. Simpson, who tes-
tified that he had transacted the entire business between the

Farmers’ Loan & Trust Company and Thomas Bell, in-

regard to the mare in controversy, and that no other agent
of the company had anything to do with it.

“Q. State whether you had any knowledge or informa-
tion that the mare in controversy was included in any
other mortgage except the Hughes’ mortgage.” This
question was objected to by defendants, as incompetent,
irrelevant, and immaterial, and the objection was sustained
by the court. The following question was then put to the
witness: “ Q. Was there anything ever said in your hear-
ing about said animal being-included in the Emma Moore
mortgage, at any time?” This question was also objected
to by defendants, as before, and the objection sustained
by the court.

The objections to this testimony were doubtless sustained
upon the ground that it was immaterial and unnecessary
for the plaintiff to disprove knowledge on its part of the
facts involved in the question, for the reason that there was
no evidence tending to prove such knowledge, and upon
this ground the evidence was rightly rejected. But I think
it was error on the part of the court, after excluding the
testimony, to submit to the jury the identical proposition to
which the overruled evidence was applicable.

It has been held by this court in the cases cited by coun-
sel for plaintiff in error, City of Crete v. Childs, 11 Neb.,
253; Bowie v. Spaids, 26 Id. 635; Sloan v. Coburn, 1d.,
607; also in Dunbier v. Day, 12 Neb., 596; Bradshaw
v. State, 17 1d., 147; Railroad Co. v. Fink, 18 1d., 89;
Ballard v. State, 19 1d., 609, and Marion v. State, 20 1d.,
246, that instructions to the jury must be based upon the
evidence, and that if an instruction assumes the possible
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existence of a state of facts which the jury have no right
to find, there being no evidence, it is error. I see no escape
from the application of this rule, so often laid down, to
the case at bar.

It is not deemed important to further consider the assign-
ments of error in the case.

The judgment of the district court is reversed, and the
cause remanded for further proceedings.

REVERSED AND REMANDED,

THE other judges concur,

A. J. HALE v. GEorGE H. Hess & Co.
[FiLEDp JuLy 2, 1890.]

1. Contract: RrscissioN: MEASURE oF DaAMAGEs. G. H. H. &
Co. contracted to furnish the heating apparatus in complete
working order, to a specified degree of temperature, for the
newly erected building of A. J. H., for the sum of $450. The
owner terminated the contract, and refused to allow the con-
tractor to proceed when the furnace and fixtures were ready to
be put in place. Held, That,under the evidence, the measure of
damages to the contractor was the profits under the contract
only.

2.

: EITHER PARTY MAY RESCIND: DAMAGES. A party to
an executory contract has the right to rescind the contract,
and terminate it wholly, without the consent of the other party,
who is in no fault; the first party becoming liable to the other
in any damages he may have sustained, or any compensation he
may have earned, by reason of the rescission.

3 : : ProBABLE PRrOFITS. If & contract for
parhcnlur work is pnrtly performed, and the employer puts an
end to it without fault of the contracting party, he is liable for
the profits to be made under the contract as well as for compen-
sation for work already done.
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Error to the district court for Gage county. Tried
below before BRoADY, J.

A. Hardy, and R. 8. Bibb, for plaintiff in error:

The contract was executory. (Fletcher v. Peck, 6 Cranch
[U.8.],136.) One party to such a contract may rescind
it without the consent of the other. (Bishop, Contracts [2d
Ed.), sec. 837; Clark v. Marsiglia, 1 Denio [N.Y.], 317.)
The latter cannot sue as on a completed contract ; his rem-
edy is in damages for what he has suffered in not being
permitted to perform. (Butler v. Butler, 77 N. Y., 472.)
After rescission and notice, the party not in fault must not
proceed further and cause needless expense. (Bishop, Con-
tracts, sec. .841; Dillon v. Anderson, 43 N. Y., 231;
Strauss v. Meertief, 64 Ala., 299-307; Chamberlain v.
Morgan, 68 Pa. St., 168; Addison, Contracts, secs. 588,
593.)

W. 8. Summers, contra:

The contract was not executory, as the furnace was
shipped subject to Hale’s order, and the title had passed.,
It is certainly the prevailing doctrine that it requires both
parties to rescind a contract. (Davidson v. Keep, 61 Ia.,
218; Nebraska City v. Gas Co., 9 Neb., 339; Derkson v.
Knoz, 30 N. W. Rep., 49.) Where it is vendor’s inten-
tion to pass title, and vendee’s to accept, the sale is com-
plete. (Sewell v. Eaton, 6 Wis., 479.) Where vendor takes
necessary steps to pass title, he may recover contract price.
(Ganson v. Madigan, 13 Wis., 75; Webber v. Roddis, 22
Id., 61; Cain v. Weston, 26 1d., 100.) Iless & Co., as
they were ready to perform, were entitled to recover the
whole amount agreed upon. (Benjamin, Sales, sec. 784;
Thompson v. Alger, 12 Met. [Mass.], 428; Thorndike v.
TLocke, 98 Mass., 340; Pearson v. Mason, 120 1d., 53;
Shawhan v. Van Vest, 15 Am. Law Reg. [N. 8.], 153, 160
and note.)
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Coss, CH. J.

George H. Hess & Co. sued A. J. Hale in the district
court of Gage county. They alleged in their petition that
the defendant was indebted to them in the sum of $450,
with interest at seven per cent per annum from January 1,
1887, due upon a certain contract attached to their petition
as an exhibit ; that the plaintiffs shipped the furnace, de-
scribed in the contract, to the defendant ; that the same was
delivered in accordance with the terms of the contract, and
that in all respects the plaintiffs have complied, and are
ready and willing to comply, with the terms of said con-
tract ; that the defendant refused to receive the furnace and
fixtures and refused to allow the plaintiffs to place the same
in his building according to the terms of the contract; that
plaintiffs now are, and at all times have been, ready and
willing to comply with and complete said contract and put
in and set up said furnace in accordance with the terms of
the same ; that the defendant refuses to receive said furnace
and denies these plaintiffs access to his preniises, and re-
fuses to permit them to fulfill their contract in any manner
whatever ; that by the refusal of defendant to comply with
the terms of the contract to be by him performed, and to
permit the plaintiffs to fulfill the terms of the contract to
be by them performed, they, the plaintiffs, have been dam-
aged in the sum of $450, no part of which has been paid ;
and they pray judgment in said sum, etc.

CONTRACT REFERRED TO AS AN EXHIBIT TO PLAINTIFFS’
PETITION.

“ BEATRICE, NEB., August 14, 1886.
“A. J. Hale, Esq., Beatrice, Neb.: We will furnish and
place in your new store building one No. 80 Hess pure air
steel furnace, together with five best: black Japan registers,
four connectings, with partition stacks and connecting pipes
throngh the furnace, according to the plans and specifica-
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tions of your architect, for the sum of four hundred and
fifty dollars. The owner to furnish foundation and the
necessary carpenter and brick work and provide a chimney
with a good draft and proper ventilation for the building ;
we to supply such register faces for ventilation as are
needed. The storeroom to have one large 30x30 register
face and frame placed directly above furnace in floor, and
each pipe to have damper, each pipe connected with regis-
ter, and partition stacks to be of sufficient size to thoroughly
warm rooms needed by same in most severe winter weather.
It is understood that the work shall be of the best ma-
terial and workmanship and fully up to our standard
of custom jobs. As the success of heating depends so
much upon the proper size and location of registers, pipes,
furnaces, etc., it is understood that we are to have full
direction and control of the work to be done in connection
with our contract, and to have the right to supply another
furnace of our own make, or one of larger size, at our
own expense, or to make other changes as shall ensure suc-
cessful heating. We therefore agree to heat the rooms
connected with the furnace from 65° to 70° above in ten
below zero weather when. the house is finished and made
reasonably tight. Complaints, if any, to be made within
one year. It is understood that the furnace shall be
operated and managed according to our printed directions,
' “Geo. H. Hess & Co.,
“ Per 1. F. SEARLS.

1T hereby accept the above proposition and agree to
pay for the same when the work is completed according to
contract. A.J. HaLe”

The defendant answered, denying that he was indebted
to the plaintiffs as alleged in their said petition, in the sum
of $450, or to any amount whatever. He also denied
that plaintiffs delivered to him the furnace described in the
petition, or that he, the defendant, ever accepted said fur-
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nace. The defendant admitted that he signed the contract
set up in the petition, but for a second defense he avers
that the plaintiffs, contrary to the agreement and the con-
" tract, shipped said furnace direct to the said defendant, and
defendant refused to take the same from the depot, or to
become liable for the same, for that he was not to accept
nor become liable for the same until he should have suita-
ble opportunity to try the same, and ascertain whether or
not it was as represented to be by the plaintiffs. And for
a third defense the defendant averred that the plaintiffs
have failed and neglected to perform the conditions of said
contract by them to be kept and performed, and the de-
fendant further denied each and every allegation of said
petition not in said answer admitted.

The plaintiffs’ reply was a general denial of every
allegation of new matter contained in the answer.

There was a trial to a jury, with a verdict for the plaint-
iffs in the sum of $§440. The defendant’s motion for a
new trial being overruled, judgment was rendered for the
plaintiffs, and the cause is brought to this court on error.
So many of the assignments of error as are deemed im-
portant will be examined in their order.

At the term of court at which the cause was tried, and
before the same was called for trial, defendant’s counsel
applied to the court for a continuance of the cause to the
next term, on the ground of the absence of the defendant
from the state. Said application was based upon the affi-
davit of R. S. Bibb, one of the attorneys for the defend-
ant, the substance of which affidavit was that before the
commencement of said term W. 8, Summers, one of the
attorneys for the plaintiffs, came to said affiant and asked
him if he would agree to continue the cause over said term
of court; that affiant stated that he would ; whereupon Mr.
Summers stated that he would write to his clients; that
thereupon affiant stated to A. J. Hale, defendant, that he
had made said arrangement, and upon such statement Mr.
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Hale left Gage county to go to Michigan upon a visit with
his wife. That it was affiant’s understanding that said
cause would not be tried at said term of court, and that he
was 50 led to believe from the statement of Mr. Summers,
who came to affiant’s office in regard to the matter; that it
would be unsafe to proceed to trial without the attendance
of the defendant, etc. The application was denied, which
is assigned for error.

* In the case of Ingalls v. Nobles, 14 Neb., 272, the court
laid down the law of continuance as follows. I quote
from the syllabusg

“ Ordinarily, the decision of motions to continue causes
is left to the discretion of the particular court to which
they are addressed. It is only where such discretion has
evidently been exercised unwicely or abused, to the preju-
dice of a party, that a reviewing court will interfere.

“2, The statement of facts in an affidavit for a contin-
uance should be specific of acts done, or of excuses for
not doing them, and given with such particularity that an
indictment for perjury would lie in case of its being false.”

Measured by the rule laid down in the second clause
of the syllabus, the affidavit falls far short, but were the
facts stated with never so great particularity it would have
presented a case for the discretionary actions of the court.
Moreover, it is apparent that, taking the most favorable
view of the facts stated in the affidavit, they did not
amount to more than a verbal stipulation made by counsel
out of court; and I do not remember a case in which a
reviewing court has held it error in a trial court to refuse
to enforce a verbal stipulation made out of court.

Upon the trial the plaintiffs offered in evidence the con-
tract or proposal and acceptance, attached as an exhibit to the
petition. They introduced John A. Forbes as a witness,
who testified that he was acquainted with the parties; that
he was present at the signing of the contract; that he was
acquainted with the building “into which the furnace and



48 NEBRASKA REPORTS. [Vor. 30

Hale v. Hess,

fixtures were to go;”” that he knew Mr. Colby, who was
superintendent of the building, and who had ¢ notified us
that the building was ready, and to hurry up; or, rather,
that they were anxious for usto have the furnace here;”
that Armacost and witness were, at that time, agents for
the plaintiffs ; that defendant had told the witness at differ-
ent times that to do anything that Colby ordered would be
satisfactory, that he had left everything with Colby as to
the building and furnace. Colby told witness that he was
ready for the furnace, and was anxious to have it here and
put in; that was some time before Oetober 1, 1886, be-
tween the date of the contract and October following. It
was before the furnace was received here, but witness did
not know how long the furnace was on the road.

Plaintiffs here offered in evidence a letter, which was re-
ceived and marked Exhibit B.

“ BEATRICE, NEB., Oct. 20, 1886.
“Qeo. H. Hess & Co.: DEAR SiR—The furnace has ar-
rived at Beatrice for A. J. Hale’s building. Send on your
man to put it in as agreed.
“Y’s respectf’y, dJ. 8. CoLBY, Supt.”

The witness Forbes, continuing his testimony, stated
that soon after the date of the letter he had a conversation
with Mr. Hale about the furnace, and about putting it in ;
that Hale stated that he bought the furnace and presumed
it was all right ; that he would admit that Gibbs was here
as an expert to put it in, but inasmuch as they had sent
him a bill of the furnace, which he construed to be a dun
for the price of it,and had asked him to pay the freight on
it, he would not receive it, and would not have it put up
in his building ; that he was aware that he was good for
it, but he would not pay it until they got a judgment.
This was in the presence of Gibbs, the expert, who had
been sent on to put up the furnace.

It further appears from the testimony of the witness,
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that the plaintiffs did not finally insist upon his paying

the freight, but claim that that demand was originally

made merely as a business memorandum. Witness further
stated that the furnace was offered to be put up in defend-
ant’s building, but that he objected, and would not have it,
Plaintiffs also called F. M. Gibbs as a witness, who
testified that he was a salesman and furnace setter in the
employ of plaintiffs; that plaintiffs shipped the furnace of
the size and number called for in the contract, marked Ex-
hibit A, to Mr. Hale, the defendant, at Beatrice, Nebraska,
It arrived in this depot, here, some few days before No-
vember 5, 1886 ; that witness was there in the employ of
plaintiffs for the purpose of putting up the furnace ; that
he hired a dray, took the furnace up to the building, and
defendant refused to have it put in. Witness inquired his
reason for refusing ; if the contract was not straight, and
if he had not contracted for it, and he said he had, and that
it was his signature shown him on the contract, which wit-
ness had, but that he was indignant over the matter of
sending out the bill and charges for freight, and would not
pay for the furnace nor allow it to be put up in his build-
ing. Witness told him it was customary, to a great ex-
tent, when shipping goods, to send the party consigned to,
the bill of freight, to be deducted from the price. ~He
replied ¢ that might be our way and everybody else’s, but
he wouldn’t do it.” Witness told him that plaintiffs had
already paid the freight, and that the statement might be
torn up if he was not pleased with it; that there was no
money to be paid until the furnace was placed, according
to contract ; that the plaintiff did not expect a dollar from
it ; that it was customary, if he paid the freight, to deduct
it from the bill, as we had done with many customers.
The witness was asked what expense the plaintiffs were
put to and answered, there is cartage of No. 80 casting,
on board the cars; No. 80 furnace, $125; one register-face
border, $56; four 10x14 registers and borders, $9; one
4
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6x14 face, four 4} face, $1; paid Searles the cost of sell-
ing, §45; freight to DBeatrice, $28.65; two cartages, $4;
that had witness set the furnace up, would have cost $50
more.

The witness Forbes was recalled by plaintiffs and testi-
fied that it was the understanding between Searles and
Hale that the furnace should be shipped directly to Hale.
He also stated that “that was the agreement,” but did not
state when, or by whom, the agreement was made.

The plaintiffs also introduced the deposition of John F.
Searles, from which it appeared that he was agent for the
plaintiffs from March 1, 1885, to February 1, 1887, and
that on August 14, 1886, the deponent sold a furnace for
the plaintiffs to the defendant, to be used in a new store
building to be erected, not then completed ; that the price
agreed upon was $450, as per copy of the contract attached
to the deposition, and the same as the original herein
set forth. The deponent stated that the furnace was at
Beatrice as soon as the defendant was ready for it; that
deponent sent a man from Lincoln to put it up, and he
telegraphed back that the defendant would not receive it;
the man was F. M. Gibbs. On receipt of the telegram
deponent went to Beatrice and found the building not com-
pleted, only the first rough flooring being laid on the ground
floor ; that deponent took the furnace and fixtures to the
building and left them on the back porch, except the regis-
ters, which he placed on the inside of the building; that he
went to the house of defendant to find out if he would
allow him to put the furnace in, and asked the defendant if
he had changed his mind as to having the furnace put in?
He replied that he had not,and that the furnace was never
going in there.

The court, of its own motion, instructed the jury as fol-
lows, which is assigned for error:

“I. The plaintiffs bring their action on the contract
offered in evidence, and allege that they complied with their
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part of the contract until defendant refused to permit them
to further comply therewith, and that they were ready and
willing to proceed in compliance with the contract to its
completion, but that defendant wrongfully prevented their
farther compliance with the contract; that defendant re-
fused to comply with his part of the contract; that plaint-
iffs are damaged by defendant’s breach of the contract. The
defendant in his answer denies all the averments of plaint-
iffs’ petition, except the making of the contract attached
thereto.

“II. The burden of the proof is upon the plaintiffs by
a preponderance of the evidence. If they have proved the
material averments of their petition by a preponderance of
the evidence, they are entitled to recover, but unless they
have done so, the defendant is entitled to a verdict.

“IIT. If the plaintiffs demanded of defendant payment
of the freight on the furnace, that was something defend-
ant was not obliged, by the contract, to do, and he had a
right to refuse to do so, but that would not give him the
right to refuse to permit the plaintiffs to proceed with a
compliance on their part of the contract, nor would it give
him a right to refuse to comply with his part of the con-
tract.

“IV. The contract provided that the plaintiffs should
place the furnace in defendant’s storeroom. If defend-
ant wrongfully prevented plaintiffs from putting the furnace
in defendant’s storeroom, and plaintiffs’ men trying to do
80, and actually did, except as wrongfully prevented by
the defendant, comply with the contract, plaintiff had the
right to take the furnace as near to the place as defendant
would permit, in which case the defendant would not have
the right to object because it was not taken nearer, nor be-
cause the plaintiffs did not take it anywhere else, provided
the plaintiffs exercised such care and diligence in the hand-
ling and leaving of the property, for its preservation, as a
person of ordinary care and prudence would do under like
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circumstances. It is proper, however, to call your attention
to the fact that the answer makes no claim of set-off or
counter-claim on account of plaintiffs’ negligence or mis
conduct in handling the furnace. This matter then arises
only so far as it is involved in the question as to whether
plaintiffs are guilty of any breach of their contract.

“V. If the plaintiffs recover, they should recover the
amount of the contract price less the reasonable cost of
doing the part unperformed by them at the time they were
prevented from proceeding further under the contract, with
interest from that time at seven per cent per annum.

“VI. Thereis no question of rescission of contract raised
in the pleadings. A contract cannot be rescinded by one
party only. It takes two to make a contract, and two to
rescind the same. A rescinder amounts to a new contract,
that the former contract shall no longer be in force. One
can make a breach of contract, but it takes both the parties
to make a rescission of the contract. Neither the petition nor
the answer alleges the rescission of the contract. The lead-
ing questions involved are whether the plaintiffs have com-
plied with the obligations of the contract on their part to
be performed, so far as the defendant would permit, and
whether the defendant has made any breach of the contract
on his part to be performed.”

The following instructions were asked by the defendant
and refused by the court, which is also assigned for error:

“I. The court instructs the jury that, if they believe
from the evidence that any witness has willfully sworn
falsely respecting any material matter in the case, then the
jury may disregard the testimony of such witness, except
as to matters wherein he is corroborated by other witnesses
or testimony.

“II. That under the proofs and pleadings of this action
the plaintiffs cannot recover, and that consequently you
must find for the defendant.

“IIL. That when notice of the rescinding of a contract
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is given to such an agent or employe of one of the parties
as is authorized to stand in his place and represent him in
his business, or in the particular branch of it connected
with the subject-matter of the contract, it is sufficient,
though such notice is not brought home to the party him-
self.

“IV. That after a contract has been entered into between
two parties, and notice is given by one of them that the
contract is rescinded on his part, he is liable for such dam-
ages and loss only as the other party has suffered by reason
of such rescinding of the contract, and it is the duty of such
other party, upon receiving such notice, to save the former,
so far as it is in his power, all further damages, though the
performance of this duty may call for affirmative action on
his part.

“V. That if they believe that if the defendant noti-
fied the plaintiffs, or their authorized agents, before any at-
tempt to deliver the furnace in question, or, at such attempt,
that the defendant would not take and receive such furnace,
and the plaintiffs thereafter, and without any acceptance of
said furnace by defendant, left the same in the alley and
allowed it to be injured by exposure, and its value dete-
riorated or destroyed, then the plaintiffs cannot recover for
the contract price.

“VI. That notwithstanding they may believe that the
plaintiffs shipped the furnace in question, under the con-
tract, in evidence, in good faith, to perform their part,and
still if they further find from the testimony that the de-
fendant refused to take and accept the furnace, and re-
fused to allow it to be placed in his building, and notified
plaintiffs that he would not pay for it until the plaintiffs
got a judgment therefor, this conduct on the part of the
defendant was a breach of his contract, and notwithstand-
ing this the plaintiffs could not then dump said furnace in
the alley and allow the same to become worthless and then
sue for the contract price thereof. They should have
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stopped at once when notified, and they canhot recover for
any expenses incurred or damages sustained after such
notice. .

“VII. That if they find from the evidence that the de-
fendant committed a breach of the contract by refusing to
accept the property, then the defendant is not liable for the
contract price of the furnace in this action.

“VIII. If the defendant refused to comply with his
contract, by refusing to let the plaintiffs put the furnace in
his building, and by refusing to go on further with his
contract, and this while the furnace was in plaintiffs’ pos-
session, then it was the duty of the plaintiffs to take care
of the furnace and not suffer it to be lost or to become
worthless through their acts, and if they did allow it to
become of little or no value of their own accord, then they
cannot recover the purchase price thereof in this action.”

There are several important questions presented by this
record. The case is not, as I understand it, an action for
the sale and delivery of goods; neither is it for the manu -
facture of machinery by the plaintiffs for the defendant,
but is rather upon a special contract to furnish and set up,
in the building of the defendant, a furnace, with registers
and fixtures for the purpose of heating the store-room and
building. .

It does not appear from the terms of the contract, or
from the evidence, that this furnace and its fixtures were
agreed to be, or were, in fact, manufactured by the plaint-
iffs specially for the defendant, but rather that the articles
were on hand, in store, and in possession of plaintiffs at
Chicago, and were agreed to be transported by them to de-
fendant’s building at Beatrice, Neb., there to be set up in
the building, put in successful operation and made to heat
the building, under certain conditions, to a stated degree of
atmosphere. It is agreed that the plaintiffs performed
their part of the contract up to a certain point, that they
had the component parts of a furnace and heating appara-
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tus, answering the general description of that they con-
tracted to furnish, at the railroad depot at Beatrice, when
the defendant sought to put an end to the contract and its
further performance by percmptorily refusing to accept
the furnace or to allow the plaintiffs to set it up in his
building.

The questions upon which the case, as now presented,
turns, as I view it, are: What were the rights of both
parties under the circumstances? Could the defendant re-
scind the contract, refuse to go further under it, and, if so,
what was the remedy and measure of damages to the
plaintiffs on that account? Could they treat the furnace
and fixtures as the property of defendant, and recover of
him the contract price, less the cost of setting the same up,
or must they recover, if at all, upon the breach of con-
tract?

The court, in the instructions complained of as error,
took the former views. It charged the jury in the sixth
instruction that there was no question of the rescission of
the contract raised in the pleadings, and stated to the jury
“that a contract cannot be rescinded by one party only ;
that it takes two to make a contract, and two to rescind a
contract; that a rescinder amounts to a new contract that
the former shall no longer be enforced ; that one can make
a breach of a contract, but it takes both the contracting
parties to make a rescission of the contract.”

While there can be no doubt that the doctrine of this
instruction is supported by many authorities and decisions,
upon a careful review of all the authorities cited I am not
able to agree with the court in its application to the case at
bar. It is true that the defendant in his answer does not,
in terms, allege that he rescinded the contract, but he does
allege that the plaintiffs, contrary to the agreement of the
parties, shipped the furnace direct to defendant, and that
defendant refused to take the same from the depot, and be-
came liable for it until he should have an opportunity to
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try it and see that it-was suitable as agreed upon by the
plaintiffs. The plaintiffs in their evidence proved that
while the furnace and fixtures were at the railroad depot
defendant declared to their agents that, for the reasons im-
perfectly set out in his answer, he would not accept the
furnace, nor permit it to be set up in his building. This,
I hold, in law, amounted to a rescission of the contract, if
it be competent, as it appears to be, for one party alone to
rescind a contract.

Bishop, in his commentary on the law of contracts, sec.
837, says that “the proposition is sound in principle and
sufficiently supported by authority, though more or less
may be found in the books against it, that one party alone,
with no consent from the other, who is in no fault, has, at
law, the power—not to be exercised without liability for
damages, but still the power—to rescind any executory con-
tract. If this were not so, one might be ruined by an
undertaking the carrying out of which a change in cir-
cumstaunces rendered highly inexpedient or practically im-
possible.” This authority is cited by plaintiff in error.
It commends itself to my judgment, is supported by the
reasoning of the author, which follows the text cited, with
the reference to many authorities, and is believed to be the
true doctrine of the modern cases.

If the power to rescind exists in a party to a contract as
a matter of Jaw—Dbearing in mind that no rescission is
claimed to be effectual to deprive another party to the con-
tract of any right or compensation he may have earned by
virtue of it, or of any damages to which he may be en-
titled by reason of the breach of the contract by the
rescinder, if this right is one of law—then it would not be
incumbent on the party exercising it to give any reason or
excuse therefor. But, were reasons to be given, it does
not appear that the defendant was entirely without one.
The plaintiffs, as we have seen, had agreed, for a cousider-
ation in money, to furnish and place in successful opera-
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tion the furnace and heating apparatus for defendant’s
building, reserving to themselves the right to supply an-
other of their own make, or one of larger size, at their own
expense, or to make other changes to insure successful
heating, agreeing to heat the rooms in connection with the
furnace from sixty-five to seventy degrees above in an
atmosphere of ten degrees below zero. As appears from
the bill of exceptions, after entering into this contract, and
probably a half month before the arrival of the furnace
at Beatrice, the plaintiffs sent to the defendant the follow-
ing bill payable:
“ CHICAGO, October 14, 1886.
¢ Bought of Gro. H. HEss & Co.
“MR. A. J. HALE, Beatrice, Neb.

“1 No. 80 Furnace, with Reg. and connections, as per
contract, $450.

“All goods are shipped at * Released rates of freight’ at
owner’s risk of breakage, unless otherwise ordered.

“TeERrMS.—AIl accounts subject to sight draft at matu-
rity.”

The furnace and fixtures were shipped to the defendant
at his expense for freight and railroad charges. This was
at least an apparent departure from ordinary fair dealing
by the plaintiffs, which challenged the suspicions of the de-
fendant, as it was well calculated to do, that the plaintiffs
were seeking an advantage over him. And where no legal
justification is required, it avould seem to have been a moral
justification of the defendant in entering upon a prompt
rescission of the contract, as he did, in such manner that
while he subjceted himself to compensation and damages
to the plaintiffs for all that they had performed under their
contract, he was rid of all further dealings and complica-
tions with them. :

By the fifth instruction the court charged the jury that
if the plaintiffs recover, they should recover the amount
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of the contract price, less the reasonable costs of doing the
part unperformed, at the time they were prevented from
‘proceeding further under the contract, with interest from
that time at seven per cent. _

I take occasion to remark that the law of damages has
been for a considerable period in the course of growth
and expansion; its earlier rules of application have been
subjected to frequent judicial review with the advantage of
the experience of the past, and the suggestive aid of new
interests demanding consideration, and new forms of injury
seeking remedy and redress. Sutherland in a late work on
Damages, vol. 1, page 132, thus states the condition of the
law in such cases :

“If a contract for particular work is partly performed
and the employer then puts an end to the undertaking, re-
covery may be had against him, not only for the profits
the contractor could bave made by performing the contract,
but compensation also for so much as he has done towards
performance. Preparations for performance, which were
a necessary preliminary to performance, or within the con-
templation of the parties as necessary, in the particular
case, rest upon the same principle.”

To this principle the author cites numerous cases, and
among others, that of Derby v. Johnson, 21 Vt.,17. Ac-
cording to the syllabus in the case the parties entered into
a contract in writing, by which the plaintiffs engaged
to do all the stone work, blasting, and masonry upon
three miles of railroad at certain specified prices by the
cubic yard. The plaintiffs entered upon the perform-
ance of the contract, and, while so engaged, the defendants
gave them an unconditional direction to leave the work,
and to do nothing more under the contract; and the plaint~
iffs left immediately. It was held that this could not be
treated as a mutual relingnishment of the contract, but as
an exercise of a right, which by law belonged to the defend-
ants, to put an end to the contract, leaving themselves
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liable, of course, for all consequences resulting from such
breach of the contract upon their part.

In such cases the plaintiffs may elect to treat the con-
tract as still existing and binding upon the defendants, and
may recover for the work performed at the contract prices,
and for all damages incurred in consequence of the discon-
tinuance of the contract by the defendants,

Also the case of Danforth v. Walker, 37 Vt., 239,
where the plaintiffs contracted to deliver the defendant a
quantity of potatoes during the winter, as called for by
defendant. Before they were all purchased by plaintiffs
the defendant notified them by letter not to purchase any
more until they should hear from him, which order was
not subsequently countermanded ; and it was held that the
letter was not a rescinding of the contract, but a refusal to
receive any more potatoes upon it than the plaintiffs had on
hand, or had already purchased. It was also held that in
executory contracts a party has the power to stop the per-
formance on the other side, by an explicit order to that
effect, by subjecting himself to such damages as will com-
pensate the other party for being stopped in the perform-
ance on his part, at that point or stage in the execution of
the contract. )

And in Friedlander v. Pugh, 43 Miss., 111, the court,
in the syllabus, state that it is by no means a sound doc-
trine of law, or of morals, that when one party to a con-
tract is hindered from full performance by the other, the
one obstructing can, in all cases, be held liable in damages
to the extent of the entire price agreed upon for full per-
formance. In such case the true rule, resting upon the
best authority and the soundest reasoning, is that the just
claims of the party so hindcred are satisfied when he is
recompensed for the part performed, and for his actual loss
as to the part unperformed.

Also in the case of Polsley v. Anderson, 7 W. Va.,
202, a case of interest to lawyers, as it concerns attor-
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neys’ fees. Polsley & Son entered into a contract with
Anderson that they, with W. H. Tomlinson, Esq., all at-
torneys at law, would prosecute a certain suit in chancery
pending in the circuit court, wherein defendant was com-
plainant and the heirs at law of John Anderson, deceased,
were defendants, for the enforcement of specific performance
of a contract for the conveyance of land between John
Anderson, in his lifetime, and the defendant. The defend-
ant agreed that the plaintiffs and Tomlinson should be paid
for their legal services $100 each, and if the result was in
favor of defendant, $300 each; inall $600. The plaintiffs
and Tomlinson prosecuted the suit and fulfilled their part
of the contract in good faith. The defendant, of his own
motion, caused the suit to be dismissed, without the consent
of his counsel, and thereby hindered and prevented the
further prosecution of it. The court charged the jury,
in effect, that if they were satisfied, from the evidence, that
the facts were as stated in the plaintiffs’ declaration they
should find for the plaintiffs in the sum of $300, the
amount of the contract. The supreme court, by a lengthy
opin.ion referring to many of the cases cited by our author
Sutherland, reached the conclusion that there had been a
misdirection of the jury in the court below, and reversed
the jundgment.

‘We have seen that, in our view, the defendant had the
right to rescind, or to stop the further performance of the
contract, and that he did so while the material of the fur-
nace and accessories were still at the railroad depot, and
that he refused to accept any part of the same. And while
it will not be denied that the plaintiffs did what they could
to deliver it, yet, as he refused to receive it, and so notified
the plaintiffs before it was taken from the depot, he never
did receive it, in law or in fact. As has been stated, the
defendant, by pursuing this course, assumed thé burden of
paying all such sums as the plaintiffs had earned, and all
damages which they had sustained in the execution of the
contract, and consequent of its rescission.
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We have also stated that in such a case the party hin-
dered from going on with the contract was entitled to the
profits which he would have realized had he been suffered
to complete it. That is an important element in this in-
stance, as it appears from the bill of exceptions that the
profits under the plaintiffs’ proposal were as more than two
to one to the value of the articles to be furnished, or of the
services to be rendered. The plaintiffs’ witnesses testified
that the furnace and all the accessories placed upon the cars
at Chicago were worth, according to the plaintiffs’ bill of
prices, $140. The contract price for the furnace complete
and in successful operation, was $450. Fifty dollars was
the amount testified to by the plaintiffy’ witness Gibbs as the
pay he was to have received for setting up the furnace.
Four hundred dollars may be then assumed as the price of
the furnace and fixtures at the railroad depot. From this
deduct the cost on cars at Chicago, $140, and $260 is the
remainder, which, taking the furnace at Beatrice, where it
was to be delivered, and accounting nothing “ for released
rates of freight on it from Chicago,” is wholly profits on
the contract. This, I think, is all that the plaintiffs are
entitled to recover of the defendant in the transaction ; and
while their petition but imperfectly states such cause of
action, yet, as the defendant’s answer is likewise inexact, I
think the plaintiffs are entitled to their option to accept
that amount to avoid further litigation.

The 1st and 2d instructions asked by defendant were, I
think, properly refused; the evidence not justifying the
court in giving them. "The other instructions asked for by
defendant fairly present the law, as I understand it, and
should have been given by the court.

The judgment of the district court will be reversed, and
the cause remanded for further proceedings, unless the de-
fendants in error shall, within sixty days from the date of
the entry of this opinion, file in this court a remittitur in
the sum of $180, as of the date of the judgment of the
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district court, but in case such remittitur be filed within
the time stated, the judgment will stand

AFFIRMED,

THE other judges concur.

McPrEE & McGINTY, APPELLANTS, V. Z. L. Kay,
' APPELLEE.

[FiLED JuLY 2, 1890.]

1. Mechanics’ Liens: FAILURE T0 FILE ACCOUNT. In proceed-
ings to enforce & mechanic’s lien by plaintiffs, as snbcontractors,
for material furnished to the contractor without authority of
defendant, as the owner, no account of which under oath was
made and filed with the register of deeds, under sec. 3, art. 2,
of chap. 54, Comp. Stats., within sixty days after furnishing
the material, held, not good.

: DISCHARGE: THE EVIDENCE examined, and keld, suffi-
cient to sustain the judgment below discharging the lien.

2.

APrEAL from the district court for Red Willow county.
Heard below before CocHRAN J.

Hugh W. Cole, for appellants,
W. 8. Morlan, contra.
Coss, CH. J.

This action was brought in the district court of Red
Willow county by McPhee & McGinty, plaintiffs, against
Z. L. Xay, defendant. The cause of action, as set out in
the petition, is, that on or about the 18th day of October,
1886, the plaintiffs entered into an oral contract with the
defendant, by and through the defendant’s agent, William
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Lang, to furnish the defendant certain building and finish-
ing material, therein particularly set out and described, at
the agreed price of $195, for and in the construction of a
dwelling house on lots 7 and 8, in block 2, in the original
town of McCook, Red Willow county, in this state.

2. That in pursuance of said contract the plaintiffs fur-
nished said material to the defendant for the erection of
said house on the 18th day of October, 1886, for the said
sum of $195.

3. That the defendant, at the time when, etc., was the
owner of said lots 7 and 8 by virtue of a contract of pur-
chase, ete,

4. That on the 1st day of February, 1887, and within
four months of the time of furnishing said material, the
plaintiffs made an account in writing, of the items of such
material furnished defendant under said contract, and, sfter
making oath thereto as required by law, filed the same in
the office of the clerk of Red Willow county, Nebraska,
on the 7th day of February, 1887, and within four months
of the time of furnishing said materials, claiming a me-
chanic’s lien therefor upon said lots and the building
thereon.

6. That the sum of $195and interest from the 18th day of
October, 1886, now remains due and unpaid on said ac-
count, with prayer for a judgment for said sum and inter-
est, together with costs of suit, and that said premises may
be sold and the proceeds of such sale applied to the pay-
ment of such judgment, interest, and costs, and for general
relief,

The answer of the defendant consisted of a general
denial. ’

There was a trial to the court, a jury being waived, with
a finding and judgment for the defendant.

The plaintiff’s motion for a new trial was overruled and
the cause brought to this court on appeal by the plaintiffs.

It appears from the evidence, as contained in the bill of °
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exceptions, that the plaintiffs reside in the city of Denver,
Colorado, and were dealers in lumber and manufacturers
and dealers in building material ; the defendant resides
at McCook, Red Willow county, in this state; also, that
William Lang resides at Denver and is an architect. It
further appears that in the summer and fall of 1886 the
defendant erected a dwelling house at McCook ; that pre-
paratory to building, he, through correspondence, employed
said William Lang as an architect to draw an elevation and
prepare a plan and specifications of his said building ;
that pursuant to such employment Lang drew such eleva-
tion and prepared such plans and specifications, which
were sent to defendant, at McCook, for his inspection, and
finally approved and paid for by him. ' It also appears
that the defendant employed and entered into a con-
tract with one John F. Collins, of McCook, a carpenter
and contractor, to furnish all materials and construct the
said house complete, according to the plans and specifica-
tions furnished by the said architect. Collins entered upon
the construction of the house,and pursued it to some state
of completion, but to what extent does not appear, when
he abandoned it, and the defendant purchased some mate-
rials for its completion and finished it himself. This ap-
pears from the testimony of the defendant, and, although
he was cross-examined by plaintiffs’ counsel, he was not
examined, nor did he state, nor does it otherwise appear,
what material he purchased, nor of whom. I quote his
entire cross-examination :

Q. This woodwork and materials furnished went into
the building, didn’t they ?

A. I suppose they did.

It also appears that the defendant overpaid Collins, the
contractor, for the material furnished and work done by
him, to a considerable amount.

-The deposition of William Lang, the architect above
" referred to, taken at Denver, was offered by the plaintiff,

—
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and read on the trial. After stating his residence and
business, he stated that he was acquainted with the plaint-
iffs, and also acquainted with the defendant through cor-
respondence with him. I quote:

Q. Have you had any business transactions in the past
three years with the defendant, and, if so, what .was the
nature of that transaction?

A. I have; he employed me to make plans for a dwell-
ing house he was building in McCook, Nebraska.

Q. Who hired you and paid you for your services in
that transaction ?

A. Z. L. Kay, the defendant in this case.

Q. During the time of that transacting of said business
did you have any dealings with the plaintiffs with respect
to the same, and, if so, state what you did in that regard
and for whom?

A. I did; the defendant in this case wrote me request-
ing that I should get him prices on certain woodwork to
be u-ed in the construction of his house, such as glass,
brackets for gables, porches, ete. I submitted the list sent
me to Billings & Stewart and plaintiffs in this case, and
received bids from them, which I sent to the defendant.
Shortly after that—probably a week or ten days—I re-
ceived a letter from them, saying, we want you to ship us
those goods. I went to Mr. McPhee, who refused to ship
the goods to Collins, but did ship them to Dr. Kay, the
defendant, upon the strength of the letter which I had
received from Kay, showing my authority to act in the
premises.

Q. I will ask you whether or not these are the letters:
referred to? (Showing witness two letters.)

A.* Yes, sir; except the Collins letter, which I cannot
find.

Q. Did you receive these letters during the time referred
to?

A. Yes, sir.

5
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(Letters attached to deposition, marked Exhibits A and
B)

Q. Did you, at any time during the transaction before
referred to, act or pretend to represent any other person
than the defendant in respect thereto? '

A. I did not.

Q. What, if any, instructions were given to McPhee &
McGinty by you, referring to the shipping of the material
so ordered by you?

A. T ordered them to ship the goods to Dr. Z. L. Kay,
in care of Jobn Collins.

The first of the above letters is dated McCook, Neb.,
August 14, 1886, and is entirely devoted to the sketch of
the building which Lang had sent to Kay and certain pro-
posed changes therein, The date of the second letter is
torn off. It is also chiefly devoted to propused changes in
the plan, but closes with the following paragraph: “I ex-
pect I shall ask you to assist me in getting mantel, stained
glass, brackets for gable, porch railing, etc.

The deposition of Charles D. McPhee, also taken at
Denver, was offered in evidence by the plaintiffs and read
at the trial. He stated that he was one of the plaintiffs
and was not acquainted with the defendant. In answer to
a question by plaintiffs’ counsel he stated: “ We were re-
quested to make an estimate on a bill of materials by one
William Lang, an architect, for a house that the defendant
was building in McCook, Neb. We made the estimate
and gave it to Mr. Lang, who said he was transacting this
business for the defendant as his architect. In the course
of eight or ten days Lang came back and wanted us to go
on with the work as we were the lowest bidders; at the
same time he showed us letters from Dr. Kay, the defend-
ant, authorizing him to procure this material, and at the
same time representing to me that Dr. Kay was a man
of means and that he would pay the bill. That, upon the
strength of such representations and the letters, they pre-
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pared all the material according to the plans and details
given us by said Lang, and on the completion of the
work Mr. Lang examined the work and ordered the same
shipped to Dr. Z. L. Kay, in care of John Collins at
McCook, Nebraska, and at the same time ordered us to
send a detailed statement of the items of the account to Dr.
Kay, the defendant, which we did.” He also stated that
the letters referred to as having been shown to him by Mr.
Lang are the same letters which are attached to his depo-
sition in this case and marked Exhibits A and B; that
said material was charged to Z. L. Kay, as appears from
plaintiffs’ books ; that the contract price of said goods was
one hundred and ninety-five dollars; that they had never
received said amount, or any part thereof, from the defend-
. ant or from any other person in payment for the same ; that
they had sent monthly statements of said account to Z. L.
Kay, McCook, Neb.; that the reason why the said goods
were shipped in care of J. F. Collins was that Mr. Lang
instructed them to ship in that way for the reason that
the defendant was out of town a good deal of the time and
he wanted his builders to be able to receipt for goods
and to receive the same in case of the defendant’s absence;
and that plaintiffs never, directly nor indirectly, had any
contract, agreement, or understanding with said Collins with
reference to said transaction.

H. W. Cole was sworn as a witness for the plaintiff
upon the trial and testified that he received the claim sued
on from the plaintiffs for presentation to the defendant;
that he presented it to Dr. Kay, “and he said these lum-
ber and materials went into the house and should be paid
by Collins. He said that he was not to pay for the lum-
ber,” ete.

A copy of a lien, as filed in the office of the county clerk,
appears in the bill of exceptions. It appears by the writ-
ing on the face, over the signature of C. D. McPhee, to
have been filed February 1, 1887, but it does not officially
appear when it was filed.
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It is the theory of the plaintiffs’ case that the building

material, for which their lien was filed and the action
brought, was furnished directly to the defendant, and not
to the contractor, nor through him. Indeed, their case
ignores the existence of a contractor for furnishing the
material and erecting the house. Had it been sought to
establish a lien upon the house for material furnished
for its construction through a contractor, the sworn state-
ment of the material furnished by the plaintiff and the
amount due them therefor from the contractor, must have
been presented and filed in the office of the register of deeds
of the county within sixty days from the date of the fur-
nishing of the same. It is not claimed that such statement
was presented or filed in this case until long subsequent to
the expiration of that period.
. As hereinbefore stated, the defendant employed and con-
tracted with John F. Collins to furnish all material and to
build the house, and it is apparent from the testimony on.
the part of the plaintiffs that, at the time of furnishing the
material, this contractor was engaged in the erection of the
house, so that the independent fact, if the same is proven or
admitted, that the material furnished by the plaintiffs en-
tered into the construction of the house, does not, of itself,
establish the right of the plaintiffs to a lien upon the
building or to a recovery against the defendant. Never-
theless, were it proved that the defendant ordered the
material, and that it was delivered to him, or by his direc-
tion to the contractor, he would be liable, and this is what
was evidently the intention and the efforts of the plaintiffs
to prove. It is not claimed that he did this personally or
directly, but that he did it through William Lang, the
architect.

To establish the authority of Lang to order this mate-
rial, two letters written by defendant are given in evidence,
but these letters fall far short of establishing such authority,
and the only clause in either of them which refers in a re-
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mote degree to any material for the construction or finish-
ing of the building is that hereinbefore quoted, in which
the defendant says: “I expect I shall ask you to assist
me in getting mantel, stained glass, bracket for gable,
porch railing,” etc. It need scarcely be raid that these
words fall far short of evidencing an agency on the part
of Lang to contract for the pluintiff in the purchase of the
articles therein’ named, to say nothing of the articles for
which the lien is filed. )

The witness Lang mentioned another letter which he
says had been lost, but its loss was not established so as to
admit of its contents being proved as evidence to the jury,
and indeed there is no attempt to prove its contents ; nor
indeed does it appear that such letter was written by the
defendant. In one instance the witness speaks of this lost
letter as ““the Coliins letter.” From the entire evidence
it is apparent that the letter referred to as lost was written
by Collins, and that upon his suggestion the material was
purchased and shipped to McCook in such a way that he
could receive it without the knowledge of defendant, and
work it into the building as material furnished by him.

It appears as well from the testimony of Iang as of the
plaintiff McPhee, and a copy of the bill of lading which
was introduced in evidence and attached to the bill of ex-
ceptions, that the material was shipped to Z. L. Kay in
the care of J. F. Collins, and this, according to the testi-
mony of Lang, was that inasmuch as the defendant was
absent from home a great portion of the time it was desir-
able that Collins could receive the material from the rail-
road company in his absence. There is therefore a failure
to prove the furnishing of said material to defendant or
that it entered into the construction of his building in such
manner as to hold him chargeable to the plaintiffs there-
for or to entitle the plaintiffs to a lien upon the building.

The judgment of the district court is

AFFIRMED.

THE other judges concur.
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FreMont, E. & M. V. R. Co. v. MARGARET CRUM.
[FIiLED JULY 2, 1890.]

1. Railroads: Fires: DESTRUCTION OF TIMBER: MEASURE oF
DAMAGES. In an action by M. C., owner of premises adjacent
to the right of way and track of a railroad, against the company
for negligently permitting the fire, set out to clear its right of
way of dry weeds and brush, to run over and beyond its right
of way to adjacent premises, and to burm, injure, and destroy
the natural growth of young trees and timber; and for negli-
gently permitting the fires from its locomotives operating its
railway to be communicated to adjacent premises and to burn,
injure, and destroy the natural growth of young trees and tim-
ber, keld, that the measure of damages is the amount of damage
the trees and timber suffered by reason of the fire, and not the
difference in the value of the land with the standing trees and
timber before the fires and afterwards.

2 : : . In determining the amount of
dtmages held, that the inquiry should be as to the value of the
trees burned as standing timber, and not the market price for
transplantation as shade or ornamental trees.

ERROR to the district court for Antelope county. Tried
below before Norris, J.

John B. Iawley, for plaintiff in error, cited, on the con-
tention that the measure of dumages was the difference in
value of land before and after fire: B. & M. R. Co. v,
Beebe, 14 Neb., 463 ; Drale v. R. Co., 63 Ia., 310 ; Brooks
v. R. Co.,34 N. W.Rep. [[a.], 805; Wallace v. Gooda I, 18
N. H.,, 456; Longfellow v. Quimby, 33 Me., 457 ; Chip-
man v. Hibberd, 6 Cal., 162; Tun Deusen v. Young, 29
Barb. [N. Y.], 9; U. 8. v. Taylor, 35 Fed. Rep., 188;
Chase v. R. Co., 24 Barb. [N. Y.], 273-5; Blakeley v. R.
Co., 25 Neb., 207 ; F., E. & M. V. R. Co. v. Marley, 1d.,
188; Rhodes v. Baird, 16 O. St., 573.

Thos. O’ Day, contra, cited, in reply to the contention :
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Kolb v. Bankhead, 18 Tex., 229; 3 Sutherland, Damages,
Pp. 875,881 ; Foote v. Merrill, 54 N. H., 490; Wingate v.
Smith, 20 Me., 287; Wetherbee v. Green, 22 Mich., 311;
Grant v. Smith, 26 Id., 201; Davis v. Easley, 13 Il1.,192;
R. Co. v. Maley, 40 N. W. R., 948; Whitbeck v. R. Co., 36
Barb. [N.Y.], 644 ; Stockbridge Iron Co. v.Cone Iron Wks.,
102 Mass., 80; Forsyth v. Wells, 41 Pa. St., 291; Maye v.
Yappen, 23 Cal., 306; Robcrtson v. Jones, 71 Ill., 405;
McLean Coal Co. v. Long, 81 1d., 359 ; Adams v. Blodgett,
47 N. H,, 219; Goller v. Fett, 30 Cal., 481 ; Longfellow
v. Quimby, 33 Me., 457; Herman, Executions, pp. 160,
235-6, 524; Whipple v. Foote, 2 Johns. [N.Y.], 418 ;
Lanning v. R. Co., 27 N.W. Rep.,478; Campbell v. Crone,
10 Neb., 571; Goodiman v. Kennedy, 1d., 275.

Cogs, CH. J.

The plaintiff below alleged “that the defendant is an
incorporated railroad company, owning and operating its
line in said county near the plaintiff’s land, described in
her petition as amended by leave of the court as the north
half of the north half of section 9, township 25, range 7
west,

“I. That on April 6, 1887, the defendant carelessly and
negligently omitted to keep its right of way free and clear
of dry and combustible materials, but permitted a large
quantity of dry grass and weeds to accumulate upoun its
track near the premises of plaintiff, and that the agents and
servants of defendants entered thereon, and uppn the plaint-
iff 's premises adjacent thereto, and set out a fire which de-
stroyed 2,481 trees living and growing upon her land, to her
damage $729.30.

“II. That on April 7, 1887, the defendant carelessly
and negligently omitted to keep its right of way free and
clear of dry and combustible materials, and the agents and
servants of defendant, in running its engine over its line
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of road at and near plaintiff’s premises, negligently per-
mitted the engine to cast out sparks and coals of fire into
the dry grass and other combustible material on the de-
fendant’s right of way, and on the plaintiff’s premises
adjacent thereto, which caused a fire that spread to and
over the plaintiff’s premises and land, described in her
amended petition as the east half of the southwest quar-
ter of section four, township twenty-five, range seven west,
and there burned up and destroyed 9,709 trees, living and
growing upon her land, without any fault or negligence on
her part, to her damage $2,912.70.

“III. That on October 6, 1887, the defendant carelessly
and negligently omitted to keep its right of way free and
clear of dry and combustible material, but permitted large
quantities of dry grass and weeds to accumulate upon its
track and right of way near the premises of plaintiff, and
permitted its servants and agents to enter thereon and upon
the premises of plaintiff, described in her amended petition
as the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of section
four, township twenty-five, range seven west, in said county,
and set out a fire that burned and destroyed 7,278 trees,
living and growing on her said land and premises, without
any fault on her part, to her damage $2.183.40.”

The defendant’s answer admitted that it was a corpora-
tion and denied all other allegations in the premises.

There was a trial to a jury, with verdict and judgment
for the plaintiff for $2,751.30.

The defendant brings the case to this court on numer-
ous errors, the first three against the verdict and judgment,
fourteen as to instructions of the court cither given to the
jury or refused, one to allowance of evidence over defend-
ant’s objections, one to allowance by the court to plaintiff
to reopen the case and introduce evidence after argument
had been entered upon, one to allowance by the court to
plaintiff to amend petition after argument had been entered
upon, one to refusal by the court of defendant’s motion for
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continuance subsequent to the plaintiff’s amendment, and
onc to the overruling of defendant’s motion for a new trial.

There was evidence of damage to the growing trees of
the plaintiff caused by three separatc fires: the first, on
April 6, 1887, by fire set out by section men in the em-
ploy of defendant engaged in burning off the right of way
of defendant’s track, escaping to and ruunning over the
plaintiff’s timber land ; the second, on April 7, 1887, was
set out by sparks and coals escaping from one of defend-
ant’s engines, igniting the grass, weeds, and other combus-
tible matter upon such right of way and track, running
thence into plaintiff’s timber land; and the third fire, on
October 6, 1887, set out by sparks and coals escaping from
one of defendant’s engines, in like manner as the second,
and running upon and burning the plaintiff’s timber lands.

There was evidence that the first fire burned over and
through and partially destroyed about forty acres of tim-
ber; that the second burned over and through and par-
tially destroyed from thirty-five to forty acres of timber
land, and that the third fire burned over and partially de-
stroyed about ‘ten acres.

A great deal of evidence is scattered through the 225
pages of the bill of exceptions, as to the quality and value
of the timber destroyed by these fires. The plaintiff’s
husband testified, as to the first fire, that the trees were
principally oak and white ash, in a good condition ; that
most of them had been trimmed up, the onk trees over
twelve feet in height and of an average diameter of three
to four inches. Upon cross-examination, the witness stated
that of this timber there were some cottonwood, willow,
and box-elder, but that the “principal heft of it” was
white ash, and that portions of the ash trees grew in clus-
ters, about half of them, some covering a rod and others
five or six feet.

The plaintiff’s son, D. C. McCartney, testified that the
timber destroyed wus ash, some few box-elder, and some
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few of oak; that the oak did not amount to much, was
mere bur-oak, such as we have in this county; that situ-
ate on the south side of the land they had trimmed, but
did not know as to the north side. In answer to the
¢“Q. State how the timber stood as to clusters,” the wit-
ness answered: “I have counted some clusters with four-
teen trees in them, and the biggest part of them were in
clusters.”

A. Bare testified that part of the ash trees grew single,
and others in clusters of four to six feet in space.

The trees killed by the fires were examined and counted
by the witnesses Bare, Yates, and Cooley, whose testimony
was given. Yates testified that he counted 3,589 trees
killed by the third fire; that he counted none under an
inch in diameter, as instructed; that they were mostly ash,
some oak, and would average three inches in thickness.
Bare had counted 865 trees killed by the second fire, and
4,494 by the third, and 3,689 by the first, in all 8,948,
George W. Cooley testified that he had examined and
counted 490 of the trees killed by the first fire, and 5,215
by the second, and had counted none, thought to be killed,
less than one inch in size, making a total of trees killed, as
counted, of 18,242. These witnesses testified that each
examined and counted the trees on ground separate from
the others, and that neither went over the other’s count.

The principal question of difficulty in the case arises
from the application of the rule for the estimation of the
plaintiff’s damages. The plaintiff in error contends that
the growing trees could only be regarded as a part of the
realty, and that the measure of damages was the difference
in the value of the land with the standing timber before
the fire and afterwards. Were this rule conceded to be
the true measure of damages, it is apparent that the plaintiff
in error, having tried its case,submitted evidence, and pro-
cured the court to charge the jury upon a different princi-
ple, cannot now obtain a reversal for error of the court in
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trying the case upon such other theory. But I think that
the true measure of damages must be held to be the
amount of damage the trees suffered by reason of the fire,

The principal effort, by the plaintiff, seems to have been
to establish the value of the trees as living timber, and for
this purpose several witnesses were sworn as to the value
and price of shade trees in the town of Neligh, if sold
singly, or in very small quantities. I am not prepared to
say that this evidence was entirely inadmissible. It may
be gathered from the testimony that some of the trees
- killed were susceptible of being taken up, carried to a dis-
tance, and transplanted for shade or ornamental trees.

J. F. Merritt, one of the most intelligent of the plaintiff’s
witnesses, having testified as to the sale of shade and orna-
mental trees in the market of Neligh, and having testified
as to his knowledge of, and familiarity with, the plaintiff’s
premises, and the timber destroyed, stated, in answer to
the “ Q. What were the prices of such trees in the year
18872 A. I would explain that the most of those trees
are larger than those generally sold on the market, but the
smaller ones would be worth from $56 to $6 per dozen; a
great many of the trees were large and it would be im-
practicable to set them out.”” They would therefore have
a value in whatever market they might reach in a live and
growing condition. But it is obvious that such testimony,
without evidence of the cost and expenses of removing
and transporting the trees, would be insufficient for the
jury to fix their value growing in the forest on the banks
of the Elkhorn. Even were this not so, it is established
by evidence that a comparatively small and indefinite
number of the trees, accounted killed, were susceptible of
being taken up and transplanted, or were of the quality and
growth required for transplanting. So that the jury would
still be without accurate information for their verdict.

Again, while it is in evidence that there was zome de-
mand for shade and ornamental trees in that county, and
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that such were being Lrought from a distance and sold
there, yet the number of trees, such as those killed by the
fires in question, throughout that and the adjoining coun-
ties was so great as to forbid the possibility of the plaint-
iff’s finding a market for these trees at the retail prices tes-
tified to by her witnesses. It is to be regretted that none
of them were examined, or testified, with a view of estab-
lishing the damage to the trees, as timber, by the fire, nor
with a recognition of the fact that any of them possessed
auy value whatever after the fire had gone through the tim-
ber. But the jury were not left entirely without evidence
as to their value for purposes to which they might be
practically and conveniently applied, either before or after
being damaged by fire.

James H. Smith, witness for defendant, testified that he
is a farmer and land owner, resides in the same county
with the plaintiff; is familiar with the land, timber, and
trees in this suit, and owns eighty acres of similar land,
covered with a similar growth of ash, oak, cottonwood,
willow, and alder; had sold such trees for posts, ax
handles, crutches, and the like, and that such were seldom
sold for fuel, if alive; that, when dead, they were sold for
fire-wood, and brought from one to two dollars per wagon
load; that he had not used ash trees for posts when from
four to five inches in size, but that they are so used from
three to four inches; that dead ash, from two to three
inches, is sometimes nsed for stays between posts in wire
fence ; that such timber for fire-wood is desired immedi-
ately after being killed, and. of equal value after as before.
This witness testified that some of the ash trees, four
inches through, might make two fence posts, and such had
becn generally sold at fifteen cents each, but the cost to cut
and sell them the witness could not say.

George H. McGee, witness for defendant, testified that for
the last five orsix years he had resided within three or four
miles of the plaintiff, and is engaged in farming, survey-
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ing, and milling ; that he once owned the plaintiff’s tim-
ber land, on which the fires occurred, and is acquainted
with it, and with the timber on the Elkhorn throughout
Antelope county ; that the growth of timber such as that
of the plaintiff’s before the fire, of ash trees averaging
from one to two inchés thick, are worth from one to one
and a half cents each; and young trees, from two to four
inches, are worth five cents each, and willows two-thirds
of that value, but larger ones about the same as ash.

Q. State, if you can, the difference in value of the trees
in this burnt district just before and after the fire, classify-
ing them as you have stated.

A. The smaller sizes, from one to two inches, would be
almost wholly destroyed by the fire, the larger ones would
be reduced in value not quite one-half. By the larger size
I mean from two to four inches; if larger than four mches,
the damage would be less.

M. A. DeCamp, witness for defendant, resided in Ante-
lope county for seventeen years; engaged in farming and
stock raising; is acquainted with the plaintiff’s land and
timber damaged by fire; owns a quarter section of similar
land adjoining plaintiffs; that an ash stick, such as the
body of the ash trees of plaintiff’s before the fire, four
inches thick, is worth fifteen cents, if an inch less, ten
cents; that for stove wood, such trees, after the fire, would
not be much different in value; they could be used for
posts and stays without much loss for those purposes.

Considering the value of this evidence, and estimating
one-half of the number of trees, accounted as damaged, to
be three inches in thickness and over, and so worth fifteen
cents each, and that one-half of their value was destroyed
by fire, the damage to that number would be...... $684 07
Estimating the other half at one and a half cents

and their destruction complete, the damage

would be........ cevsaneae cosencsrenne cseereisensense 273 63

Total loss on 18,242 trees of all sizes is... $957 70
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It is not deemed necessary to set out the instructions of
the court of its own motion, or on motion of the defend-
ant. I will be content with remarking that a careful ex-
amination of the instructions to the ‘jury fails to suggest
any serious error, and that the rule of damages set out in
the ninth paragraph, “that the measure of damages is the
actual value of such trees as you find from the evidence
were injured or destroyed by the fire; and in making up
your verdict you will deduct from the value of such, when
standing and alone just previous to the fire, their value, if
any, in a charred and burnt condition afier the fire, and
the remainder will be the amount of damage which the
plaintiff is entitled to recover,” is the proper rule, and
meets my approval.

It is here to be remarked that in the fourteenth para-
graph of instructions, asked by defendant, the court again
instructed the jury substantially as in that of the ninth,
of which the plaintiff in error complains.

It appears from the bill of exceptions that after the
closing of the evidence, and the counsel on either side had
addressed the jury, the counsel for defendant asked the
court to instruct the jury to find for the defendant, on the
ground that the plaintiff had not shown by the evidence
that any one of the three fires alleged were upon the land
described in the petition. Thereupon counsel for the
plaintiff moved to reopen the case, to which defendant ob~
jected, and counsel stated that he would be unable to pro-
ceed with the trial if the case was then opened; which
objection- was overruled, the case was reopeued and the
plaintiff allowed to re-examine witnesses as to the locality
of the railroad and that of the burned premises. To this
ruling of the court, assigned as error, we see no reversible
error in the action of the court; but it is not doubtful that
it was within the discretion of the court, and tended to
the impartial administration of justice and to the economy
of litigation,
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It also appears from the bill of exceptions that after the
closing of the evidence the plaintiff moved to amend her
petition 8o as to conform to the proof, in showing that the
first fire occurred on the north half of section 9, instead of
section 4, and that the second and third fires occurred on

section 4 instead of section 9, in the same township and
range; to which the defendant objected and moved that, in
consideration that the plaintiff had been allowed to reopen
her case, and to introduce new and important evidence, and
also to amend her petition to conform to the proof, the jury
be discharged and the cause continued; which motion of
defendant was overraled.

The plaintiff also moved for leave to amend the ﬁrst
paragraph of her petition, the first cause of action, by in-
serting on the margin of the original, made so to read,
the north half of the north half of section No. 9; to which
the defendant objected, for the reason that the trial had been
closed on both sides, and the arguments addressed to jury
by each; which objection was overruled and t.he motion to
amend the petition allowed.

By the same motion the plaintiff asked leave to amend
the second paragraph of her petition, the second cause of
action by inserting on the margin of the original, made so
to read, the east half of southwest quarter of section 4;
to which defendant objected for the reason that the amend-
ment changes the nature of the cause of action and sets up
a new cause of action after the evidence is closed and both
parties rested, and the defendant prevented from meeting
any new claims contained in the plaintiff’s petition; which
objection was overruled and the plaintiff’s amendment was
allowed.

On the same motion the plaintiff was allowed by the
court to amend the third cause of action by inserting on
the margin of her petition, so as to read, the southeast
quarter of the southeast quarter of section 4, over the
defendant’s objections as before stated ; which several rul-
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ings of the court are assigned as errors to be reviewed.
There is no reversible error in the court allowing these
several amendments to the plaintiff’s petition in the man-
ner stated and excepted to, but the same was within its
discretion as provided by the statute.

The errors assigned, (1) that the verdict is contrary to
the evidence and is not sustained, (2) that it is contrary to
law, and (3) that it is excessive, appearing to have been
given under the influence of passion and prejudice so fur
as they relate to the amount of the verdict, are well taken.
As has been shown, there was evidence before the jury to
sustain a recovery for $957.70, and no more. For the
reason of the excessive amount of the verdict the judgment
will be reversed and the cause remanded for further pro-
ceedings unless the plaintiff shall, within sixty days from
the filing of this opinion, enter a remittitur in this court,
as of the date of the original judgment herein, for the sum
of $1,793.60, but upon the entry of such remittitur within
the time limited the judgment is affirmed.

JUDGMENT ACCORDINGLY.

THE other judges concur.

First NATIONAL BaNKk oF BLUE HILL V. MARGARET
M. TURNER.

[FiLep JuLy 2, 1890.]

1. Garnishment: BANKS: SERVICE ON BOOK-KEEPER. In gar-
nishment proceedings against a bank, where the president and
cashier are absent, notice and a copy of the order of attachment
served upon the book-keeper thereot during business hours is
sufficient.

: DELIVERY BY GARNISHEE TO DEFENDANT. A gar-
nishee duly served with notice and a copy of the order of at-

2
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tachment against a defendant, who, after such service, delivers
money or property then in his possession to the defendant, will
not thereby be released from liability to the plaintiff in the at-
tachment.

ERrror to the district court for Webster county. Tried
below before GAsLIN,dJ.

Hastings & MeGintie, for plaintiff in error.

A. M. Wallers, contra, cited, as to the service on the
book-keeper : Code, sec. 73; Mathews v. Smith, 13 Neb.,
190; Porter v. R. Co.,1 Id., 16,

MaxweLL, J.

The cause of action in this case is stated as follows:

“The plaintiff complains of the defendant and says that
on the 30th day of September, 1886, she recovecred a judg-
ment against one M. H. King for $§150 debt, and §9.55
costs, before H. D. Ranney, a justice of the peace of Web-
ster county, Nebraska; that the suit against said King, in
which the said judgment was obtained, was aided by an
order of attachment, by virtue of which the defendant in
this cause, viz., The First National Bank of Blue Hill,
was summoned as garnishee to appear before the said H.
D. Ranney, justice of the peace, and answer such interro-
gations as might be propounded to it touching their in-
debtedness to the said M. A. King, and any property,
rights, or credits in its hands and belonging to him ; that
the said garnishee summons required the said First Na-
tional Bank to appear before said Ranney, justice, on the
30th day of August, 1886; that the said First National
Bank failed, neglected, and refused to appear before the
said Ranney, justice, on the 80th day of August, 1886, as
required by the said garnishee summons, and failed, neg-
lected, and refused to appear before said Ranney and make
answer as such garnishee at any time,

6
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“Plaintiff alleges that at the time the summons in gar-
nishment was served upon the First National Bank, to-wit,
on the 24th day of August, 1886, it had in its possession
money, property, rights, and credits of the said M. H.
King of the value of several thousand dollars; that not-
withstanding the service of the garnishment summons as
aforesaid upon it, the said First National Bank, in viola-
tion of the law, and this plaintiff’s rights, paid money to
said King, and turned over to him property in its posses-
sion belonging to him, made a final settlement of its deal-
ings with him, all of which was done subsequent to the
time the garnishment summons was served upon it, the
said bank, and subsequent to the time the said bank was
required to .appear before the said Ranney, and subse-
quent to the time when the said bank failed, neglected, and
refused to appear before said Ranney and answer as such
garnishee as aforesaid; that at the time plaintiff recovered
her judgment against said King, and caused the said bank
to be garnished, he, the said King, was insolvent and a
non-resident of the said state of Nebraska; that the said
King has at all times since the 24th day of August, 1886,
down to the present time been a non-resident of the state
of Nebraska, and has had no property in the state subject
to execution or attachment except that in the possession of
the said bank; that defendant is a corporation organized
under the laws of the United States, and its only place of
business is in Blue Hill, Webster county, Nebraska; that
no part of the plaintiff’s judgment against said King has
ever been paid; that the said First National Bank has never
in any manner been released or discharged as garnishee;
that said bank has at all times since the 24th of August,
1886, down to the month of January, 18387, had funds of
the said King with which to pay plaintiff’s judgment
against him, and have been authorized by said King to pay
said judgment provided a discount of the said judgment
could be obtained; that the said bank and the said King
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have colluded to delay the plaintiff in the collection of her
judgment against the eaid King; that the defendant is
justly indebted to the plaintiff in the sum of $159.55, with
interest thereon from the 30th day of September, 1886, at
the rate of seven per cent per annum, no part of which has
been paid.”

To this petition the bank filed an answer as follows:

“Now comes said defendant and wholly denies the
issuance of order of attachment and service of notice of
girnishment thereon upon this defendant in any action
between said plaintiff and any party; and this defendant
further denies that there was any lawful action pending
before H. D. Ranney, justice of the peace in and for Web-
ster county, Nebraska, on August 30, 1886, wherein said
plaintiff was plaintiff, and defendant wholly denies that
it ever received any notice of garnishment in any such
action; and defendant, further answering, denies that it,
the said defendant, was, on the 24th day of August, A. D.
1886, or ever thereafter, indebted to one M. H. King in
any sum, nor did this defendant have, on said 24th day of
August, or ever thereafter, any property, rights, or credits
of said M. H. King in its possession or under its control.

“2d. This defendant, further answering, says, that any
pretended proceedings and judgment had before said jus-
tice of the peace in a certain pretended action wherein said
plaintiff M. H. King was sought to be made defendant,
and said plaintiff was sought to be made plaintiff, were
wholly void and without any jurisdiction on the part of
said justice of the peace in the matter of issuing said pre-
tended attachment, and without any jurisdiction over the
person of any defendant in said action.

“3d. That as to the matters and things in plaintiff’s
petition not hereinbefore specifically denied, this defend-
ant has no knowledge as to the truth thereof, and therefore
denies and demands proof thereof.”

On the trial of the cause the jury returned a verdict for
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the plaintiff below for the sumn of $183.44, upon which
judgment was rendered.

The testimony shows that in the action against King he
was personally served with summons and also with a copy
of the writ of attachment; that no property was found
whereon to levy the attachment, whereupon an affidavit
for garnishment was duly made and filed, the docket entry
being : :

¢ Plaintiff filed affidavit that she has reason to believe,
and does believe, that the First National Baunk of Blue Hill
has property of and is indebted to the defendant in an
amount to her unknown.

“ Issued order and notice to garnishee to appear on the
30th day of August, 1886, at 1 o’clock P. M. and answer
as to property of the defendant under his control and as
to his indebtedness to the defendant M. H. King.

“ Garnishee entered indorsed as follows:

% ¢J hereby certify that I served on the First National
Bank a true copy of the within garnishee notice.
“¢(Signed) A. SHEETS, Constable.’

¢ Order for attachment returned indorsed as follows:

“¢August 24,1886, received this writ, and not being able
to come at the property of M. IH. King, claimed to be
in the possession of First National Bauk of Blue Hill,
Nebraska, I on the same day at 3 o’clock P. M. served on
Edward Morse, book-keeper of said First National Bank,
there being no other officer of the bank present, a copy of
this order and also a written notice to appear and answer
as therein required. A copy of which notice is hereunto
attached.

“ ¢ (Signed) A. SHEETS, Constable.’”

The garnishee did not appear and answer, and it is
claimed that the service was insufficient.

Sec. 935 of the Code provides that “The copy of the
order and the notice shall be served upon the garnishee as
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follows: If he be a person, they shall be served upon him
personally, or left at his usual place of residence ; if a cor-
poration, they shall be left with the president or other
head of the same, or the secretary, cashier, or managing
agent thereof.” The book-keeper of the bank, as far as
appears, was the managing agent thereof. He was the
only person that the officer found in the bank upon whom
service could be made, and service upon him during busi-
ness hours at the place of doing business was sufficient.

Sec. 936 of the Code provides that “The garnishee shall
appear before the justice in accordance with the command
of the notice, and shall answer, under oath, all questions
put to him touching the property of every description and
credits of the defendant in his possession or under his con-
trol, and he shall disclose truly the amount owing by him to
the defendant, whether due or nof, and, in case of a corpo-
ration, any stock therein held by or for the benefit of the
defendant, at or after the service of the notice.”” It thus
became the duty of the garnishee to appear and answer all
questions in relation to the property of King in its posses-
sion or under its control, and as it is evident that it had
more or less of such property after the notice of garnish-
ment was served, it has no cause of complaint; in other
words, it failed to answer at its peril, and as it made no
attempt in the garnishee proceedings to exonerate itself
from the charge that it was in possession of property of
King, the presumption is that the affidavit of garnishment
is true, and as the amount of such property scems to have
exceeded the judgment in this case, the judgment is right
and is

AFFIRMED,

THE other judges concur.
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BEATRICE SEWER PIpE Co. v. THoMAS ERWIN.
[FiLED JuLY 2, 1890.]

Continuance: ABSENCE OF WITNESS: DILIGENCE. An action
was brought November 10, 1887, and on the 5th of the follow-
ing March & demurrer to the petition was overruled, and on the
12th of that month an answer was filed, and seven days there-
after the cause was continued. At the June term, following, a
motion for a continuance was filed because of the abeence of a
material witness, and this was supported by an affidavit show-
ing the materiality of the testimony and the diligence used.
Held, That the June term was the first at which the case was
ready for trial, and that a continuance should have been granted.

ERROR to the district court for Gage county. . Tried
below before BroADY, J,

R. 8. Bibb,and Griggs & Rinaker, for plaintiff in error,
cited,as to the motion for a continuance: Williams v. State,
6 Neb., 334; Johnson v. Dinsmore, 11 1d., 394; Hair v.
State, 14 1d., 503; Newman v. State, 22 1d., 355; Parks
v. Council Bluffs Ins. Co., 28 N. W. Rep., 424.

Pemberton & Bush, contra, cited on the same point:
Stevenson v. Sherwood, 22 Ill., 238 [annotated, 74 Am.
Dec., 140].

MAXWELL, J.

This action was brought in the district court of Gage
county by the defendant in error against the plaintiff in
error to recover $5,000 damages for an injury which it is
claimed Thomas Erwin sustained to his right hand while
feeding one of the plaintiff in error’s presses for the man-
ufacture of tile. The alleged negligence consists in the
neglect of one Charles Huggins, the pressman, who, at the
time of the accident, was in charge of the press and work-
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ing with the defendant in error, in failing to instruct the
latter as to the danger in clearing clay from the steam pis-
ton used to press the tile, etec.

On the trial of the cause the jury returned a verdict for
$2,500, in favor of the defendant in error, upon which
judgment was rendered.

Immediately preceding the trial the plaintiff in error
+ought to continue the case to the next term of the court,
and in support of such motion filed the following affidavit :
“R. 8. Bibb, being first duly sworn, on oath states that he
is the attorney for the defendant above named. Affiant
further states that said defendant is a corporation organ-
ized under the laws of the state of Nebraska, and doing
business in the city of Beatrice, Gage county, in said state,
said busiuess being the manufacturing of tiling, sewer pipes,
brick, etc; that said defendant cannot safely proceed to
trial in the above entitled cause at the present term of court
on account of the absence of one Charles Huggins, a mate-
rial "and important witness on the part of the said defendant,
and that said witness is now a resident of the state of Cali-
fornia, the exact place in California where said witness is
residing being unknown to affiant, although he has made
diligent inquiries in the endeavor to find out the postoffice
address of said Charles Huggins, as have also the officers
of said defendant; that said Charles Huggins formerly re-
sided in the city of Beatrice, Gage county, Nebraska, but
left for California before the commencement of this action.
That the said defendant expects to prove by the said
Charles Huggins (who is the pressman referred to in
plaintiff’s petition) that on or about the 5th day of Sep-
tember, 1887, he, the said Charles Huggins, was in the
employment of defendant, engaged in the running of the
press mentioned in said petition; that when the said plaint-
iff commenced to work upon said press, in company with
said Charles Huggins, the said plaintiff was fully and com-
pletely and properly instructed as to the proper manner of
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performing the duties of his position, and avoiding the
dangers of his said occupation, and that plaintiff was fully
advised in the premises; that plaintiff was injured by his
own gross carelessness and fault, and not through the fault,
carelessness, or neglect of him, the said Charles Huggins,
the defendant, or any of the other of its employes; that
said plaintiff was injured by carelessly thrusting his hand
‘into the cylinder mentioned, when and while the piston
therein was rising, notwithstanding the fact that said
plaintiff had been instructed and warned to keep his hands
out of said cylinder when said piston was rising, and that
immediately upon the happening of the injury complained
of the said plaintiff stated, in the presence of the said
Charles Huggins, “that it was his (plaintiff’s) own fault
that he had been injured.” That he knows of no other
person or persons by whom the above stated facts can be
proven; and affiant further states that when he was em-
ployed as attorney for the defendant, he supposed that the
present pressman at defendant’s works was the one who
was working there when plaintiff was injured, and that it
was only a short time ago, and since the commencement of
this term of court, or immediately prior thereto, that he
discovered otherwise; that this affiant and the officers of
said defendant have used due diligence, by making every
inquiry possible to find the whereabouts of said Charles
Huggins, and have asked all of those who would be likely
to know here what his postoffice address is, but could get
no further information than that he was in California.

“Affiant further says that he expects to procure the testi-
mony of said Charles Huggins at the next term of this
court; that it would be dangerous for defendant to proceed
to trial in said action without the testimony of said witness,
and affiant further says that this application for continu-
ance is not made for delay, but that justice may be done.”

This motion was overruled, and this ruling of the court
is the first error assigned.
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On the part of the defendant in error it is contended, as
a justification for the ruling of the gourt, that there had
been a continuance of the case at the former term, and that
the second continuance was for delay. An examination of
the record shows that the petition was filed November 10,
1887 ; that on March 12, 1888, an answer was filed, and
that on June 29, 1888, a reply was filed, a slight amend-
ment by interlineation having on that day been made to
the answer.

The record shows that on the 5th of March, 1888, a
demurrer to the petition was overruled, and that on the
19th of that month, seven days after the answer was filed,
the cause was continued. The case was not at issue and
ready for trial, therefore, at the March, 1888, term of the
court, and the June term of that year was the first term at
which, under the statute, the cause, except by consent of
both parties, could have been tried.

That the testimony of Huggins is material in this case
is unquestioned, and sufficient diligence was shown to
authorize the continuance of the case. A

It is unnecessary to consider the other errors assigned.

The judgment of the district court is reversed and the
cause remanded for further proceedings.

REVERSED AND REMANDED,
THE other judges concur.

CrAMPION MacHINE Co. V. FRED. GORDER.
[FiLep JuLy 2, 1890.]

Instructions as applied to the facts of the case, zeld, to state the
law correctly.

ERrroRr to the district court for Cass county. Tried
below before CHAPMAN, J.
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Geo. W. Covell, and Allen Beeson, for plaintiff in error.
J. B. Strode, and Byron Clark, contra.
MAXWELL, J.

This action was brought by the plaintiff in error against
the defendent in error to recover a balance of $314.85, with
interest thereon, due on account for farm machipery sold by
plaintiff to the defendant.

The defendant by his answer admits the indebtedness of
said amount for said machinery, but by way of counter-
claim alleges ‘“that on the 27th of September, 1885,
plaintiff and defendant entered into a written contract, by
which plaintiff delivered to defendant fourteen light har-
vesters,and binders of six-foot cut and that defendant paid
plaintiff therefor. The plaintiff represented and warranted
each of said machines to be made of superior material and
superior workmanship to any other harvester and binder
in the market, and to do as good work under all circam-
stances as any other harvester and binder in the market,
and agreed if any of said machines were not as represented
and warranted, or could not be made to work as repre-
resented and warranted, then the defendant could return
said machines to plaintiff and his payments made therefor
would be refunded to him by plaintiff, together with all
freight charges upon such machines, paid by defendant.

“That two of the machines deliveréd under said con-
tract failed to comply with the terms of the warranty and
were utterly worthless; that defendant duly notified plaint-
iff of such failure, and offered to return said two machines
and that plaintiff refused to receive them. The defendant
had previously paid plaintiff for said two machines, and
had also paid $20 freight on each one; that defendant paid
plaintiff the purchase price of said two machines and the
freight paid thereon, amounting to the sum of $282.50;
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that he was unable to sell, during the season of 1886, all
of the said fourteen machines and was compelled to carry
eight of them over to next season, upon which he claims a
rebate, under said contract, of $150 on account of a reduc-
tion in prices made by plaintiff on said machines.”

The plaintiff filed reply denying the breach of warranty
as alleged by defendant, and denies that plaintiff was ever
notified of any such failure of warranty, or that defendant
ever offered to return said machines to plaintiff.

That by the terms of the written contract it was agreed
by the defendant that said machines were to be sold by de-
fendant upon written orders from the purchasers, and to
be warranted to the purchasers as per plaintiff’s printed
warranty furnished to the defendant, but that the defendant
sold said two machines without taking any written order
therefor and without giving the printed warranty of plaint-
iff, but that he sold them on his own verbal warranty.

Plaintiff further alleges that if said machines had been
properly set up and operated they would have fulfilled the
warranty ; that said machines were never returned or tend-
ered to plaintiff,

Plaintiff' also avers that the eight machines carried over
by defendant were worth as much during the year 1887 as
they were during 1886.

The jury returned a verdict in favor of the defendant
for the sum of $97.15, upon which judgment was rendered.

The principal error complained of is in the giving of
certain instructions. The instructions are very long and
but’few of the paragraphs were excepted to.

The court, after stating the issues, gave the following:
¢ Defendant alleges that the plaintiff represented and war-
ranted said machines to be made of superior material and
workmanship to any other harvester and binder in the
market, and warranted them to do as good work under all
circumstances as any other machine in the market, and
agreed if any of the machines so sold failed to comply with
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said warranty, the plaintiff would refund the money paid,
with freight paid by defendant; that two of said machines
failed to comply with the representations and plaintiff was
notified of said facts, and defendant offered to return eaid
machines, which plaiutiff refused to accept. Defendant asks
to be allowed upon his counter-claim the sum of $282.50,
the price paid for said machines and freight. Defendant
further says that he is entitled to a credit of $150 for
eight machines defendant was obliged to carry over to the
season of 1887 by reason of the reduction of the price of
like machines for the season of 1887. Defendant asks to
be allowed upon his counter-claim $262.50 for the two
machines, $20 for freight paid, and $150 for rebate, as
above set forth,

“ Third—For a reply to the answer of the defendnnt.
the plaintiff denies that the two machines were not made
of superior material and workmanship; denies that said
machines would not do as good work as represented and
warranted ; denies that defendant notified plaintiff of the
failure to work of said two. machines; denies that defend-
ant offered to return said machines or that plaintiff refused
to allow defendant to return the same.

¢ Plaintiff further says that by the contract with defend-
ant all machines were to be sold upon a printed warranty
as furnished by plaintiff; that the two machines were sold
without such written warranty, but upon the verbal war-
ranty of the defendant that the machines would work to
the satisfaction of the purchasers; that the two machines
sold and referred to in the defer:dant’s answer if properly
put up and operated would have fully complied with the
terms of the written warranty ; that the purchaser refused
to allow the agent of plaintiff to adjust said machines so
as to operate; that the defendant nor any other persons for
him ever offered to or did return the machines to plaintiff
or its agents. Upon which plaintiff denies that defend-
ant is entitled to any credit for said two machines,
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¢ Plaintiff further says that by agreement between the
parties hereto said defendant was not to sell any other ma-
chines in Cass county ; that in violation of this agreement
defendant did sell other machines and so could not sell the
eight machines bought of plaintiff ; that the eight machines
carried over were worth as much during the year 1887 as
"in 1886 and defendant is entitled to no credit therefor by
the terms of the contract. ’

“Fourth—Your verdict in this action will be somewhat
out of the ordinary form, and by it you will first find how
much there is due the plaintiff upon the canse of action,
and state in your verdict the amount. Then you will de-
termine if any is due to the defendant upon,the counter-
claim or set-off, and state the amount in your verdict.
Then you will find for the plaintiff or defendant, accord-
ing as your finding for one exceeds the other, and for such
excess.

“Fifth—As to your finding upon the amount due the
plaintiff upon its cause of action, you are instructed that
the amount is agreed to be $314.85, with interest at seven
per cent, from September 7, 1887, which you will compute
and find as the amount due upon the plaintiff’s claim.

“Bixth—You are instructed that upon the counter-
claim of the defendant the burden of proof is upon the
defendant to cstablish by a preponderance of the evidence
every material allegation of his answer concerning such
counter-claim or set-off. .

“Seventh—To entitle the defendant to recover for the
two machines sold and alleged to have failed to work, as
represented, you are instructed that the burden is upon de-
fendant to establish by a preponderance of the evidence :

“lst. That the warranty was such as is authorized by
the contract between plaintiff and defendant.

“2d. That defendant notified plaintiff or its agents of
the failure of said machines to work as represented.

“3d. That plaintiff, by its agent or agents, was given
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a fair opportunity to adjust and operate said alleged defect-
ive machines, as provided for by the terms of the warranty
authorized by plaintiff.

“4th, That upon such trial by the plaintiff’s agent the
said machines, or either of them, failed to work as rep-
resented and warranted, and as set forth in said written
warranty.

“ 5th, That thereafter the defendant returned, or offered
to the plaintiff to return, such machines, and plaintiff re-
fused to accept the same.

“If defendant has failed to establish any one of the
above propositions by a preponderance of the evidence, he
cannot recover for said machines or either of them. If|
on the other hand, defendant has established each of said
propositions as to either or both of said machines, you
should allow him in your verdict for the amount paid, in-
cluding freight for such machine or machines.

“Eighth—Upou the second claim of defendant for a
rebate or credit because of the reduction of the price of
machines for the season of 1887 by the plaintiff you are
instructed that the burden of proof is upon the defendant
to establish his claim by a preponderance of the evidence.
The contract, offered in evidence, between plaintiff and the
defendant provides if the defendant, after making faithful
effort to sell the machines included in the contract during the
season of 1886, the plaintiff would carry said machines left
unsold over, and extend time of payment until the follow-
ing year. The contract further provides if any change is
made by us for the season of 1887, advancing or reducing
the list price of any of the differerent kinds of Champion
machines enumerated in our current price list (No. 23)
herein referred to, the aggregate difference in the list price
of the machines for which payment may be extended in
accordance with the provisions of this agreement, less the
discount herein named, shall be credited or charged to
the party of the second part, and settled in connection
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with the business of the succeeded year on the basis of
cash September 1, 1887. The evidence shows that the
eight machines upon which defendant asks a rebate were
included in the list prices (No. 23), and the evidence also
shows that no list price was ever issued afterwards upon
these machines, and that plaintiff ceased to manufacture
eaid machines after 1886. The evidence further shows
that for the year 1887 the plaintiff did manufacture an-
other machine with iron frame instead of wood, otherwise
different from the machine of 1886.

“You are instructed if you find from the evidence that
the machine, manufactured by the plaintiff for the season of
1887 were in fact the same machines with slight improve-
ments only upon the machines of 1886, and intended for
the same trade as were the machines manufactured for the
year 1886, and were in fact listed at a lower price, then
defendant would be entitled to credit for the difference in
the list prices. On the other hand, if you find from the
evidence that the plaintiff abandoned the manufacture of
the kind of machines sold to the defendant after the season
of 1887 and entered upon the manufacture of a new and
different machine from the machine manufactured for 1886,
then defendant would not be entitled to any credit, even
though the new machine may have been listed at a lower
price than the old one.”

A number of instructions were asked and refused upon
which no point seems to be made and they need not be
noticed here. The instructions seem to state the law
correctly as applied to the facts of this case, and there is
no material error in the record,

The judgment is therefore

AFFIRMED.

THE other judges concur,
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Bradford v. Peterson,

Louis BRADFORD, APPELLANT, V. EMiLy C. PETER-
SON, APPELLEE,

[FILED JuLy 2, 1890.]

Mechanics’ Liens: WirFe’'s PROPERTY: AGENCY OF HUSBAND.
‘Where a husband erects a dwelling on land the title of which
is in the name of his wife, and she is aware that such building
is being erected and in some cases gives directions to the work-
men, the agency of the husband will be presummed and the
property will be subject to & mechanic’s lien.

APPEAL from the district court for Douglas county.
Heard below before WARELEY, J.

Congdon, Clarkson & Hunt, for appellant, cited : Collins
v. Megraw, 47 Mo., 497; Anderson v. Armstead, 69 Ill.,
453; Jones v. Pothast, 72 Ind., 1568; MeCormick v. Law-
ton, 3 Neb., 452.

Albert Swartzlander, contra, cited: Doolittle v. Goodrich,
13 Neb., 296; Willard v. Magoon, 30 Mich., 273; New-
oomb v. Andrews, 41 1d., 518; Laur v. Bandow, 43 Wis.,
568; Flannery v. Rohrmayer, 46 Conn., 5568; Wend! v.
Martin, 89 Ill., 139; Price v. Seydel, 46 Ia., 696; Jones
v. Walker, 63 N. Y., 612; Spinning v. Blackburn, 13 O.
8t., 131; Wright v. Hood, 49 Wis., 235.

MaxwELL, J.

In May, 1887, Edward T. Peterson and Emily C. Nel-
son were engaged to be married. Peterson caused plans to
be prepared for the construction of a dwelling house in
which they would live when married, and submitted the
same to Miss Nelson. When the plans were submitted, it
had not been determined on what particular lot the house
should be erected, but it was Peterson’s intention to secure
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a lot for the purpose, which, by virtue of its location or
otherwise, after the erection of the house, he could easily
dispose of. Peterson was a real estate dealer, and had in
his hands for sale, as the agent for one Hobbie, lot 17, in
block 16, in Hanscom Place, an addition to the city of
Omaha. After consulting with Miss Nelson, he, for her,
on June 2, 1887, purchased the lot in question, the consid-
eration being the sum of $2,500. This deed was drawn by
Peterson and executed by Hobbie. The grantee named in
the deed was Miss Neclson. About $800 in cash was paid
down. Of this amount,something like $300 was contrib-
uted by Miss Nelson, and the remainder of the cash pay-
ment, $500, by Peterson. Miss Nelson assumed the pay-
ment of a mortgage made by Hobbie to one Palmer, and
gave to Hobbie notes secured by a second mortgage for the
balance of the consideration. Four days after the pur-
chase of the lot, and on June 6, 1887, Peterson contracted
in his own name with Nielson & Baxter for the erection of
a house upon the lot in accordance with the plans sub-
mitted to Miss Nelson. Immediately thereafter Nielson &
Baxter undertook the erection of the house. Both Peter-
son and Miss Nelson visited the house while in course of
construction. Prior to its completion, and on August 10,
1887, Peterson and Miss Nelson were married. After
their marriage their visits to the house were repeated, and
on one occasion Mrs. Peterson inquired of a workman con-
cerning the construction of the pantries. In the early part
of September, 1887, the house was completed, and Mr. and
Mrs. Peterson moved into the same. Nielson & Baxter
were not paid by Peterson ; and learning that the title to
the lot stood in the name of Mrs. Peterson, on the 5th day
of October, 1887, they filed their lien, setting forth that
they constructed the house under and by virtue of a con-
tract made with Peterson as the agent of Mrs. Peterson,
and with her knowledge and consent. Nielson & Baxter
purchased the lumber that was used in the construction of
(f
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the house from Louis Bradford, and on the 8th day of
November, 1887, as security for Bradford’s claim against
then, assigned the lien to him.

While the Petersons were living in the house, Mrs.
Peterson and her husband joined in a deed of conveyauce
of the property to Peterson’s father as security for money
advanced by him for Mrs. Peterson by way of payment of
one of the notes which was assumed or made by Mrs.
Peterson, and for money advanced to Peterson. This deed
was never recorded. Pending this action Mrs. Peterson
died and left, surviving her, an infant daughter.

The court below held that in the construction of the
house Peterson was not his wife’s agent and that Bradford
was not entitled to a lien upon the premises. Bradford
appeals,

In a number of cases this court has held that where a
husband constructs a house on the land of his wife, of
which fact she has full knowledge, the agency of the
husband will be presumed; in other words, the wife, by
her silence where she should speak, in effect admits that
the work is being done for her benefit. (McCormick v.
Lawton, 3 Neb., 449 ; Scales v. Paine, 13 1d., 521 ; How-
ell v. Hathaway, 28 Id., 807.) The wife must be aware
while a building is being erected upon her land that it is
being erected for her benefit, and that mechanics and mate-
terial men who contribute to the erection of the building
are entitled to compensation for such labor and material,
and honesty and fair dealing require that, as she know-
ingly receives the benefit, she shall take the burden with it.
The property in question is subject to the mechanic’s lien.

The judgment of the district court is reversed and a de-
cree will be entered in this court for the plaintiff. '

JUDGMENT ACCORDINGLY.

THE other judges concur.
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HeNRY HaLL v. FIrsT NATIONAL BANK OF FaAIR-
FIELD.

[FiLED JuLy 2, 1880.]

1. National Banks: UsurYy. Where a national bank loans money
at a usuriouns rate, which is included in the note, in an action to
enforce that contract the interest is forfeited. Where illegal
interest has been charged, but not paid, an action cannot be
maintained to recover it back.

2

: PAYMENTS APPLIED ON PRINCIPAL. Where
payments are made, generally to « national bank, on a promis-

sory note which includes unlawful interest, they will be applied -

on the principal.

3. Trial: PrRAcTICE. If there is no evidence in a cass presenting
questions of fact, it is not error for the trial court to take it from
the jury.

ERRrOR to the district court for Clay county. Tried
below before MoRRris, J.

J. L. Epperson, and Robert Ryan, for plaintiff in error,
cited: Schuyler Nai. Bank v. Bollong, 24 Neb., 828; Mo-
nongahela Nat. Bank v. Overholt, 96 Pa. St., 327.

Geo. W. Bemis, and E. E. Hairgrove, conira, cited:
Brown v. Bank, 72 Pa. St., 209; F. & M. Bank v. Dear-
ing, 91 U. 8., 29; Barnett v. Bank, 98 Id., 666; Penoe v.
Uhl, 11 Neb., 322. y

NoRrvaAL, J.

The plaintiff in error brought this action against the
defendant in error to recover the penalty under section
5198 of the Revised Statutes of the United States, for
knowingly receiving usurious interest. The answer denies

all charges of usury. Ubpon the trial the court directed a
verdict for the defendant.
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A statement of the facts, as shown by the record, will be
necessary to a correct understanding of the case. On June
1, 1886, the defendant bank commenced business, being
the successor of the Fairficld Bank. The defendant pur-
chased from the Fairfield Bank notes of the plaintiff aggre-
gating $3.300. On the 17th day of June, 1886, the
plaintiff, being indebted to the defendant on said notes, and
having made a sale of cattle to one John Lansing, drew
two drafts on him, one for $1,500 and the other for $23.50,
which were deposited in the defendant’s bank, to be ap-
plied, when paid, on his indebtedness. On July 3, 1886,
these drafts were paid, and the whole amount was applied
on plaintiff’s notes. On August 3 the bank held, among
others, the following notes against the plaintiff: one for
$32.75, dated January 28, 1886, due in sixty days, with
ten per cent after maturity; one for $1,000, dated January
28, 1886, due in ninety days, bearing ten per cent from
maturity, with an indorsement June 7 for $480.25 and
interest paid to June 15, and another for $1,167 dated Jan-
uary 28, 1886, due June 12, with interest from maturity
at ten per cent.

The plaintiff testifies, on direct examination, that he
paid on the notes, in addition to the drafts, $519.75, on
July 3, and that on August 3 he gave to the defendant
his note for $730.66, and took up his three notes. The
amount due July 3, 1886, on the three notes, including
interest from maturity at ten per cent, was as follows:
On the §32.75 note, $33.46 ; on the $1,000 note (after de-
ducting the credit of $480.25), the sum of $532.62, and
on the note for §1,167, the sum of $1,173.62, making, in
the aggregate, $1,739.70. The cash payment of $519.75, -
which plaintiff claims to have made, the amount of the two
drafts, and a note of $730.66, make a total of $2,773.91,
or $1,034.21 more than the total balance due upon the
three notes taken up.

Counsel claim in the brief that this excess was usurious
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interest. There is in the bill of exceptions absolutely no
testimony tending to show that when the notes were given
that the plaintiff contracted to pay usurious interest. Nor
does the testimony disclose that the question of interest ,
was ever mentioned by the parties. It does not appear
that the plaintiff made any claim to the bank, before the
bringing of this suit, that he had been charged more than
the lezal rate. It is, indeed, strange that the plaintiff
should have paid over $1,000 as usurious interest, as he
contends, without making complaint at the time. If this
sum was paid as interest on these three notes, as the plaint-
iff claims, it makes the rate charged more than one hundred
and fifty per cent per annum. But counsel have over-
looked the plaintiff’s testimony on cross-examination.
Adter considerable of an effort the plaintiff was forced to
admit that when he gave thedefendant his note of $730.66
in settlement, the bank surrendcred to him two other
notes—one for $71, the other for $250. We are unable
to compute the exact amount that was then due on these
notes because their dates and the rate of interest they bore
are not in the record. Their amount without interest,
$321, which sum added to the amount of the three notes
hefore referred to and surrendered at the same time, make
§2,060.70, or $7.45 more than the aggregate amount of the
drafts, and the alleged payment of $519.75. The defendant
ingists that there was also another note of $75 taken up at
the same time.

It also appears from the testimony of the plaintiff on
cross-examination that shortly after the settlement of
August 3d the plaintiff went to the bank and informed
Mr. Joslin, the cashicer, that a mistake had been made in
the amount of the note given in scttlement and that Mr.
Joslin also denied that the plaintiff had made the cash pay-
ment of $519.75. The testimony shows that this item
was the real controversy between the parties and is the
cause of this litigation, It cannot be dounbted that if by
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mistake a sum in excess of the legal rate is collected by a
national bank, it does not taint the transaction with usury.
It is only where such a bank knowingly charges unlawful
interest that it is liable for the penalties provided for in
the act of congress. We are unable to discover any testi-
mony which would have authorized a finding that the de-
fendant had knowingly taken or received interest in excess
of the legal rate. If this disputed item, $519.75, was
paid as the plaintiff insists, then the note he gave the bank
in settlement was for a sum greatly in excess of the amount
due, If there is any usury in the transaction between the
parties it is in this note which the defendant yet holds.
The plaintiff, however, insists that if the notes were not
wholly paid by the drafts and cash payments, that these
payments should have been applied to extinguish usurions
interest, and that double the amount thereof would be re-
coverable. The case of Davis v. Neligh, 7 Neb., 78, is
cited to sustain this position. That case holds that in the
computation of interest where partial payments are made,
the payment is applied first to discharge the interest, and
the surplus, if any, goes to reduce the principal. A dif-
ferent rule, however, obtains where a payment is made on a
usurious loan. The law is not so inconsistent as to apply
a payment on such a loan to the discharge of usurious in-
terest and at the same time exact as a penalty the forfeiture
of double the amount. This indeed would be a reproach
upon the law.

If it be conceded that the note given to the bank by the
plaintiff at the time of settlement includes unlawful in-
terest, can it be recovered, the entire note being unpaid?
Section 5198 of the Revised Statutes of the United
States provides ¢ That the taking, receiving, or reserving or
charging a rate of interest greater than is allowed by the
preceding section, when knowingly done, shall be ‘deemed
a forfeiture of the entire interest, which the note, bill, or
other evidence of debt carries with it, or which has been
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agreed to be paid thereon. In case the greater rate of in-
terest has been paid, the person by whom it has been paid,
or his legal representative, may recover back, in an action
in the nature of an action of debt, twice the amount of the
interest thus paid, from the association taking or receiving
the same, provided such action is commenced within two
years from the time the usurious transaction occurred.”

It is apparent that this section covers two classes of
cases. The last clause provides that when illegal interest
has been paid to a national bank, double the amount so
paid may be recovered back, while, under the first clause
of the section, if usurious interest has been knowingly
charged but not paid, a recovery can only be had for the
amount borrowed; in other words, where illegal interest
has been added into the note but not paid, it cannot be re-
covered in an action brought for that purpose. (Brown v.
Second National DBank, 72 Pa. St., 209.) :

We have considered the case solely upon the plaintiffs
own testimony, without taking into consideration the testi-
mony of defense, which very much tended to explain the
transaction of the parties. As there was no evidence in
the case upon which the jury could have found for the
plaintiff, it was not error for the trial court to take it from
" the jury.

The first and second assignments in the petition in error
relate to the exclusion of certain testimony, but as these
errors are not referred to in the brief filed, they must be
considered waived.

The judgment of the district court is

AFFIRMED.
THE other judges concur.
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First NATIONAL BANK oF MapisoN v. H. H. CARsoN.
[FILED JuLY 2, 1890.]

1. Burden of Proof: Acriox oN ProMIsSORY NOTE. In an action
on a promissory note, where the answer is a general denial, the
burden of proof is upon the plaintiff to show that the defendant
executed the note. This burden does not shift to the defendant
after the note is introduced in evidence, but remains with the
plaintiff through the entire trial.

2. New Trial : IRRELEVANT TESTIMONY. The admission of irrel-
evant testimony on a jury trial, to the prejudice of the adverse
party, is good ground for & new trial.

8. Bvidence: SPECIFIC OBJECTIONS. Objection to testimony om
the ground that it is ‘' incompetent, irrelevant, and immaterial,”

is specific enough to apprise the trial court of the real grounds
of objection to the testimony.

4. Appeal: CounTy TO DISTRICT COURT: NEW ISSURS RAISED:
WAIVER. Where & cause is appealed from the county court,
the case should be tried in the district court upon the same
issnes that were presented to the lower court. If the appellee
goes to trial in the appellate court without objection, upon new
issues, it is a waiver of the error.

5. : : . An action was brought in the county
court upon a promissory note for less than $200. No affidavit
was filed in said court denying that the note was made, given,
or subscribed by the defendant, as required by section 1100a of
the Code. On appeal to the district court, the answer of the
defendant was a general denial, and a specific plea of forgery.
Held, That the answer tendered a different issue in the appel-

late court from that presented in the court of original jurisdic-
tion.

6. Instructions. The fourth instruction given at the request of

the defendant, keld, to be based upon the testimony, and rightly
given.

7. Held, Error to refuse an instruction warranted by the

testimony and which contains a correct statement of the law of

the case, if the principles of which have not been covered by the
charge of the court.
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ErRoRr to the district court for Madison county. Tried
below before PowERs, J.

8. 0. Campbell, and John B. Barnes, for plaintiff in
error:

The execution of the note was not an issue before the
county judge, and, therefore, conld not be made one in the
district court. (O’ Leary v. Iskey, 12 Nch., 137; Daier v.
Humpall, 16 1d., 128 ; Fuller v. Schrocder, 20 Id., 636 ;
Ruddick v. Vail, 7 Ia., 44.) As to the fourth instruction
asked by defendant: Newton Wagon Co. v. Deirs, 10 Neb.,
292; Turner v. O’ Brien, 11 1d., 108; U. P. R. Co. v.
Ogilvy, 18 Id., 639. Asto the testimony of Wohiford:
Dunbier v. Day, 12 Neb., 600; Oropsey v. Averill, 8 1d.,
158; High v. Bank, 6 1d., 157.

Allen, Robinson & Reed, contra:

An objection to evidence as ¢ immaterial, irrelevant, and
incompetent,” is not specific enough to warrant an appel-
late court in reviewing a ruling adverse thereto. (Byard v.
Harkrider,9 N. E. Rep., 294 ; McKinsey v. McKee, 1d.,
772; R. Co. v. Falvey, 3 1d.,392; Davis v. R. Co., 2 S.
E. Rep., 665.) The burden was on plaintiff to establish
the genuineness of the note (Donovan v. Fowler, 17 Neb.,
247); and so continued throughout the case (2 Am. &
Eng. Encyc. of Law, 650, and note).

Norvar, J.

This action was commenced in the county court of
Madison county, upon a promissory note, of which the fol-
lowing is a copy :

« $150. Mapison, NEB., Nov. 12, 1887.
“On the first day of June, 1883, I promise to pay
Thos. E. Hall, or order, one hundred and fifty dollars, for
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value received, negotiable and payable without defalcation
or discount, with 8 per cent interest from date.
“(Signed) H. H. Carsox.”
Indorsed on the back: “Thos. E. Hall, E. B. Place.”

While both plaintiff and defendant appeared before the
county court at the ‘trial, the defendant offered no testi-
mony. A judgment was entered against the defendant for
$159.80 debt, and costs taxed at $3.55. The defendant
thereupon removed the cause to the district court by appeal,
-where the plaintiff filed a petition founded upon the note
in question. The defendant answered denying the allega-
tions of the petition, and further answering alleged “that
the instrument sued on in this case is a forgery, and not
the genuine promissory note or obligation of the defend-
ant.” The plaintiff presented a motion to strike from the
answer the specific plea of forgery, which motion was
overruled by the court. A reply was filed and a trial had
to a jury, which resulted in a verdict for the defendant.

The first error is assigned upon the ruling of the court
upon the plaintiff’s motion to strike from the answer the
allegation of forgery. It is claimed that this motion
ghould have been sustained, because that part of the an-
swer presented a new and different issue from that on which
the case was tried in the county court. The defendant
made no defense in that court, nor did he file an affidavit
denying the genuineness of the note.

Sec. 1100a of the Code provides: “ That in all actions
before justices of the peace, in which the defendant has
been served with summons in this state, it shall not be
necessary to prove the execution of any bond, promissory
note, bill of exchange, or other written instrument, or any
indorsement thereon, upon which the action is brought, or
set-off or counter-claim is based, unless the party sought
to be charged as the maker, acceptor, or indorser of such
bond, promissory note, or bill of exchange, or other writ-
ten instrument, shall make and file with the justice of the
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peace before whom the suit is pending an affidavit that
such instrument was not made, given, subscribed, accepted,
or indorsed by him.” '

The provisions of this section apply to canses bropght
in a county court, upon any instrument referred to in the
section, and which are cognizable béfore a justice of the
peace. It is obvious that the genuineness of the note was
not in issue before the county court. In order to have put
in issue before that court the execution of the note, it was
necessary for the defendant to have filed an affidavit, stating
therein that it was not subscribed by him. The answer filed
in the district court, therefore, raised an issue of fact that
was not presented in the court from which the appeal was
taken. When an appeal is taken to the district court from
a county court the case should be tried upon the same issues
that were presented in the lower court. The motion to
strike from the answer the allegations of forgery was well
taken, and should have been sustained. (O’ Leary v. Iskey,
12 Neb., 137; Fuller et al. v. Schroeder,20 1d., 636.) Had
the motion been sustained it would have been no advan-
tage to the plaintiff, for the obvious reason that under the
general denial contained in the answer, the execution of the
note was put in issue. The plaintiff made no objection to
the general denial, but went to trial on the issue thus tend-
ered. It thereby waived the error committed in trying the
cause upon a different issue from that on which the case
was heard in the county court.

Upon the trial the defendant testified that he did not
sign the note, but that the same was a forgery. The
plaintiff’s testimony tended to show that the defendant’s
genuine signature was appended to the instrument. At
the close of the testimony the court on its own motion in-
structed the jury as follows:

1, The plaintiff’s action is based upon a certain prom-
issory note, with the name of the defendant signed to the
same as maker, of the date November 12th, 18-, for the
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sum of $150 and interest; payable to the order of one
Thomas E. Hall, and indorsed to the plaintiff.

2. Defendant denies the execution of said note.

“3. And under the issues as joined it is incumbent upon
the plaintiff to prove by a preponderance of the evidence
that the note in suit was executed by the defendant as al-
leged, that the plaintiff is the owner of same, and that
said note is now due and unpaid. '

“4, If you believe from the evidence that the note in
controversy was not executed by the defendant—that is,
that he never signed the same, or authorized his name
to be placed thereto by any one, but that his signature was
placed to said note without his knowledge or consent, then
you should find for the defendant, although such note may
have passed into the hands of a bona fide holder before
maturity.

“5. The note sued upon is in the form of a negotiable
instrument, and a holder of negotiable paper who takes it
before maturity, for a valuable consideration, in the usual
course of business, without knowledge of facts which im-
peach its validity as between antecedent parties, is deemed
a bona fide holder.

“5%. In order to defeat a promissory note in the hands
of a bona fide holder it is not enough to show that such
note was without consideration, nor is it sufficient to show
that such purchaser took it under circumstances calculated
to excite suspicion. To defeat such note in the hands of a
bona fide holder it must appear, by a preponderance of the
evidence, that such purchaser was guilty of a want of honesty,
or of bad faith, in acquiring it. A party purchasing a
promissory note is under no obligation to call upon the
maker and make inquiry as to possible defenses which he
may have, but of which the purchaser had no notice, either
from something appearing on the face of the paper or
from facts communicated to him at the time, nor to make
inquiry as to the identity of the indorser, in order to re-
cover from the maker of such note.
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“@. If you believe from the evidence that the defendant
executed and delivered the note in question as alleged, and
you further find from the evidence that the plaintiff pur-
chased the same before maturity in the usual course of
business, and for a valuable consideration, without knowl-
edge of any facts which might impeach its validity, as
between the said Carson and the person to whom the note
was given, then the plaintiff is entitled to recover, although
you may believe from the evidence that said Carson never
received any consideration for said note.

“ 7. If you find from the evidence that defendant exe-
cuted and delivered the note in suit, and that the plaintiff
purchased the same before maturity for a valuable con-
sideration, and without a knowledge of facts which might
impeach its validity, as between Carson and the person
to whom the note was ‘given, the plaintiff is entitled to
recover in this suit, although you may believe from the
evidence that the defendant was swindled in the transac-
tion, and received no consideration for said note. And
the plaintiff, if it purchased the note as aforesaid, was not
required in law to call upon and inquire of the defendant
if he had a defense to said note, but might rely upon the
genuineness of the maker’s signature to the note as a right
to recover thereon.

“8, If you find that he did so execute said note as
aforesaid, he must suffer the loss, if any, he has sus-
tained thereby, because it i8 a maxim of the law, that
where one of two persons must be made to suffer from the
fraud or misconduct of another, the one who placed within
the power of such person to perpetrate the fraud or to do
the wrong must bear such loss.

«9, The credibility of witnesses that have been examined
in your hearing is for you to determine, and where wit-
nesses have testified directly the opposite to each other, it
is your duty to say, from the appearance of such witness
while so testifying, their manner of testifying, their appar-
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ent candor and fairness, their apparent intelligence, or
want of candor, intelligence, and fairness, their interest or
want of interest in the result of the litigation, and from
these and all the other surrounding circumstances appearing
on the trial, which of such witnesses are the more worthy
of credit, and to give credit accordingly.

“10. If you find for the defendant, you will so state in
your verdict.

“11. If you find for the plaintiff, the measure of its
damage will be the amount of said note and interest, as
shown thereon.

“12. When you have retired to your jury room, you
will select one of your number foreman, who will, when
you liave agreed upon'a verdict, sign the same, and you
will then return into court with such verdict.”

No complaint is made to the giving of any of these in-
instructions., Objection is made to the fourth instruction
given at the request of the defendant, which is as follows :

“As applied to this case, forgery would consist in the
false making of the instrument sued on, with intent to dam-
age and defraud any person or persons, body politic or
corporate, and if you find from the evidence that the in-
strument sued on was not executed by the defendant, or by
any other authorized person in his name, but was executed
in the name of the defendant by Thomas E. Hall, or any
other person having no authority to so execute it, with
intent to negotiate it and defraud thereby some other per-
son, it would be forgery, and the plaintiff cannot recover.”

The criticism made to this instruction is, that no testi-
mony was given on the trial which tended to show that
Thomas E. Hall signed the defendant’s name to the note.
The testimony discloses that the defendant and Hall, at
about the date of the note, entered into a contract whereby
Hall undertook to furnish the defendant a patent stove
burner to sell on commission. Soon after the note turns
up in E. P. Place’s hands, containing Hall’s indorsement.
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If, as the defendant testified, he did not execute the in-
strument, it must have been forged. We find sufficient
evidence in the bill of exceptions to warrant the jury in
finding that the note ‘ was executed in the name of the
defendant by Thomas E. Hall, or some other person hav.
ing no authority to do so0.”

The plaintiff asked the court to instruct the jury that
“If you find from the evidence that the defendant signed
the note sued upon in this action, and that the plaintiff
purchased it, you will find for the plaintiff.”” The refusal
to give this request is assigned as error. The only issue
made by the pleadings was, Did the defendant sign the
note and did the plaintiff purchase it? If the jury found
both in favor of the plaintiff, as they could have done
under the evidence, then the plaintiff was entitled to a ver-
dict. That this request stated the law correctly cannot be
questioned. The defendant insists that the doctrine of the
request is contained in the general charge of the court, and
for that reason no error was sustained. The sixth and
seventh paragraphs of the court’s charge were not so favor-
able to the plaintiff. In those instructions the jury were
told, that before they could find for the plaintiff they must
find not only that the note was genuine, but that the plaint-
iff purchased it, “ without knowledge of facts that might
impeach its validity as between Carson and the person to
whom the note was given.” The want of consideration,
or whether the bank was an innocent purchaser, were not
in issue in the case. The sixth and seventh paragraphs of
the instructions were therefore too favorable to the defendant
and should not have been given and the plaintiff’s prayer
should have been granted.

The plaintiff in error also makes the point, that the
court erred in refusing to give its third request, as follows:

% 3. After the note was admitted in evidence, the burden
of proof was upon the defendant to establish forgery, and
it must be established by a preponderance of the evidence.”
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This instruction was properly refused. The burden was
upon the plaintiff to establish the genuineness of the note
by the preponderance of the evidence. This burden did
not shift to the defendant after the note was introduced in
evidence, but remained with the plaintiff through the en-
tire trial. (Donovan v. Fowler, 17 Neb.; 247; Holmes v.
Riley, 14 Kan., 131.) .

The plaintiff called as a witness A. W. Whulford, the
president of the plaintiff bank, who testified on direct ex-
amination, that he purchased the note for the plaintiff from
a Mr. Place, and that he was acquainted with the defend-
ant’s handwriting, had seen him frequently write his name,
and that the signature to the note was that of the defend-
ant Carson. On cross-examination the witness Whulford
testified in answer to questions as follows:

Q. Did you take the precaution to see Mr. Carson and
inquire of him before buying the note?

A. I did not before buying the note,

Q. Had Mr. Place been introduced to you by any repu-
table business man?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you make any inquiry outside of Place himself
as to who he was and what he was doing?

A. T caunot say. ‘

Q. What is your best recollection about it?

A. I don’t think that I 'made any inquiry about it. I
compared the signature on the note with signatures on other
notes,

The plaintiff objected to each question, as incompetent,
irrelevant, and immaterial, and took an exception to the
ruling of the court.

This testimony did not in any manner tend to throw any
light upon the issue the jury were called upon to try.
‘Whether or no the bank was an innocent holder of the note
was immaterial. The evidence bearing upon the genuine-
ness of the note was very conflicting, and the testimony
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objected to had a temdency to prejudice the jury against the
plaintiff. Doubtless the jury were led by this testimony
to believe that the bank was ncgligent in purchasing the
paper, without making inquiry of the defendant if he had
a defensc to the note.

It is claimed on behalf of the defendant, that the objec-
tion to the testimony on the ground that it is “incompetent,
irrelevant, and immaterial,” is not specific enough to pre-
sent any question for review. A number of decisions are
cited from the supreme court of Indiana sustaining this
position. While we entertain a high opinion for the decis-
ions of that court, we cannot follow them on this question
of practice. The objection was specific enough to apprise
the trial court of the plaintiff’s real ground of complaint.

As there must be a new trial we will not express an opin-
ion on the sufficiency of the evidence to sustain the ver-
dict. -

The judgment of the district court is reversed and the
cause remanded for further proceedings.

REVERSED AND REMANDED.

THE other judges concur.

Dorsey B. Houck v. Josnpn. H. Gue.
SAME v. DaNieL C. HURLEY.

[FiLEDp JuLy 2, 1890.]

1. Trial: DIRECTING VERDICT. If & trial court directs a verdict
for either party, in & case where the testimony is conflicting
upon s material fact, it is error.

: RIGET OF ARGUMENT. In a case tried to a jary, where

& material fact is in dispute, either party has an absolate right

« to have his counsel argue the question of fact to the jury.

8

2
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3. The instructions requested by the delgndant were properly
refused.

ERROR to the district court for Douglas county, Tried
below before GROFF, J.

John L. Webster, for plaintiff in error, cited, as to direct-
ing the verdict: Hilliard v. Goold, 34 N. H., 230 ; Inloes
v. Bank, 11 Md., 173 ; Way v. R. Co., 35 Ia., 687 ; Ellis
v. Ins. Co.,4 O. St., 628 ; Johnson v. R. Co., 18 Neb., 696; -
Aullman v, Stout, 16 Id., 586; 4. & N. R. Co. v, Baily,
11 Id,, 332; Deitrich v. Hutchinson, 20 Id., 52. As to
the right of argument: Code, sec. 283 ; Douglas v. Hill,
29 Kan., 527,

Estabrook, Irvine & Clapp, contra.

Norvary, J. !

These causes being alike in the facts, by consent were
tried together. The defendant in crror Gue sued the
plaintiff in error Houck and one Alexander Benham in
the district court to recover the sum of $274 and interest,
claimed to be due him for keeping and boarding eight
head of horses. The cause was tried to a jury, with a ver-
dict and judgment in favor of Gue and against both
Houck and Benham. In the second case Hurley sued
Houck and Benham to recover $240 and interest for care
and board of severrhorses. The verdict and judgment in
the case were against both defendants. In each case
Houck prosecutes a petition in error.

In May, 1887, the plaintiff in error, Dorsey B. Houck,
was a constable of the city of Omaha, and in his official
capacity executed a writ of replevin placed in his hands,
commanding him to take and deliver to one J. H. Me-
Shane a certain building then occupied by Alexander Ben-
ham as a livery stable, In executing the writ the con-
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stable removed from the building several horses owned by
Benham, and tied them in the street near the stable, where
they remained several hours without water or food. Ben-
bham bhaving refused to take possession of the horses,
Houck took eight of them to the stables of Gue and seven
to the stables of Hurley. Gue and Hurley both testify
that they were not aware when they received the horses that
they belonged to Benham, or that they had been aban-
doned by the owner. Shortly afterwards they learned
that the horses belonged to Benham, who called frequently
to see them, but did not offer to take them away. There
is no dispute as to the value of the care and feed bestowed
by the plaintiffs.

The plaintiffs called as a witness the defendant Dorsey B.
Houck, who testified that when he took the horses to the
plaintiffs, he informed them that he had replevied Ben-
ham’s barn, and that the horses belonged to him; that
they had been taken out of the barn and tied in the street.
The witness further testified that he told the plaintiffs that

_he had no iiterest in the horses, but desired to put them
in some place, to get them out of the street.
, The defendants introduced no testimony. Houck’s at-
torney attempted to argue the case to the jury, when he was
stopped by the court, and instructed the jury to find for
the plaintiffs.

The most of the brief of counsel on either side is de-
voted to the discussion of the liability of a constable for
feed and care bestowed by a third party at his request,
upon property received by him in his official capacity.
‘We do not think that question is presented by the record
before us. Houck had no writ for these horses and he did
not have charge of them as an officer. He had a writ of
replevin for the barn, but that did not authorize the officer,
in executing the process, to engage food and care for the
stock he removed from the building. Whether Houck
was personally liable for the attention bestowed by"the
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plaintiffs was a question of fact to be determined by the
jury from all the evidence.

If it be true, as the plaintiffs testify, that Houck did not
disclose who was the owner of the stock when it was com-
mitted to their care, and that the plaintiffs did not know
whose property it was, then doubtless Houck would be
liable in his action. But, on the other hand, if Houck at
the time informed the plaintiffs the circumstances under
which he received the horses and that he had no interest in
them, but that they belonged to Benham, and to let him
have them when called for, then there was testimony from
which the jury could have found that Houck was not
liable. The evidence is conflicting, and certainly does not
conclusively show that there was an implied contract that
the feed bill should be charged to Houck. As there was
testimony before the jury tending to establish the nonlia-
bility of the defendant, he was entitled to have it sub-
mitted to and weighed by the jury. The court, therefore,
erred in directing the jury to find for the plaintiffs. (Hall
v. Varnier, 6 Neb., 85; Grant v. Cropsey, 8 1d., 205.) .

The learned district judge who presided at the trial doubt-
less overlooked the testimony of Dorsey B. Houck, or the,
jury would not have been instructed to find for the plaintiffs.

The defendant Houck requested the following instruc-
tions, which were refused:

“1, The defendant, Dorsey B. Houck, cannot be held
liable in these cases unless the jury find from the evidence
that there was a present understanding between the plaintiffs
and defendant Houck, at the time the plaintiffs received the
horses, that Houck should be held liable for the keeping of
the same.

«2, If the jury find from the evidence that the plaint-
iffs received the horses from defendant Houck in his
official capacity as constable, then the plaintiffs are not
entitled to recover in this action against Dorsey B. Houck,
as he is sued as an individual and not as such officer.”
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The court did not err in refusing these requests. It is
not claimed that there was an express agreement that
Houck should pay for the keeping of the stock, but the
contention of the plaintiffs is that the facts were such that
the law would imply an obligation to pay. The first re-
quest was therefore misleading. The second request was
objectionable on the same ground. Houck in taking the
stock to the plaintiffs was performing no official act. It
would have been error to have granted either of the de-
fendant’s requests.

The court refused to permit the counsel for the defend-
ant to argue the facts to the jury. This ruling, we presume,
was made upon the theory that there was no evidence upon
which a verdict for Houck could have been sustained. Had
such been the case, the refusal to allow any argument would
have been proper. But as the testimony was conflicting
upon a material matter in issue, the defendant had an abso-
lute right to have his counsel argue the facts to the jury.
(Douglass v. Hill, 29 Kan., 527, and cases there cited.)

The judgment of the district court will be reversed and
the cause remanded for further proceedings in accordance
with the views herein expressed.

REVERSED AND REMANDED.

THE other judges concur.,

A. E. ALEXANDER V. CITY OF PrLATTSMOUTH.
[FiLED JULY 2, 1890.]

Tax-Liens: EMINENT DOMAIN: DAMAGES: LIMITATIONS. In
September. 1871, M. purchased certain lots situated in the city
of Plattsmouth, at treasurer’s tax sale. On S8eptember 65,1873, he
surrendered to the county treasurer the certificates of purchase

.
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and received a tax deed for the lots. The deed failed to convey
the title by reason of the treasurer omitting to attach his official
seal. M. subsequently conveyed the lots to the plaintiff. In
1872, the authorities of the city of I'lattsmouth located and
opened a street diagonally across the lots, leaving undisturbed
a portion of each. The damages sustained on accoant of the
location and opening of the street was appraised and paid to
the respective lot owners in 1872. Neither M. nor the plaintiff
was notified of the appraisement proceedings. In 1888 this
action was brought to recover damages for lessening of plaint-
iff’s security. Held, (1) That as the value of the parts of the
lots not taken by the city exceeded the amount of the tax lien,
the action could not be maintained; (2) That the suit is barred
by the statute of limitations.

ErRroR to the district court for Cass county. Tried
below before CHAPMAN, J.

8. P. & E. G. Vanatta, for plaintiff in error, cited : Jones,
Mortgages, sec. 710; Otoe County v. Mathews, 18 Neb.,
466; Forgy v. Merryman, 14 1d., 513,

Byron Clark, contra, cited: Mills, Eminent Domain,
secs. 63, 74 ; Desty, Taxation, pp. 1, 2, 6, 7; Severin v. Cole,
38 Ia., 463 ; Jones, Mortgages [ 2d Ed.], secs. 708, 1625-31;
Graham v. Flynn, 21 Neb., 232, and cases; Merriam v.
Coffee, 16 1d., 451.

Norvar, J.

On the 4th day of September, 1871, S. N. Merriam pur-
chased at tax sale certain lots situated in the city of Platts-
mouth, for the taxes of 1870. Subsequently he paid the
taxes on the lots for the years 1871,1872,1873, and 1874,
The lots not having been redeemed on September 5, 1873,
Merriam surrendered to the county treasurer the certificates
of purchase, and the treasurer executed and delivered a
tax deed for the lots to Merriam, who afterwards conveyed
to the plaintiff.

The deed issued by the treasurer failed to convey the
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title to the lots, by reason of the treasurer failing to attach
his official seal thereto.

On the 21st day of February, 1872, the mayor and city
council of the city of Plattsmouth passed an ordinance cre-
ating Chicago and Washington avenues, and the city con-
demned and appropriated a part of each lot purchased at
the tax sale by Merriam, for the purpose of opening these
avenues. The damages sustained by reason of the location
and opening of these avenues were appraised, as required by
law, on March 28, 1872, and notice was given to the lot
owners, but not to Merriam or the plaintiff. The damages
awarded were paid to the respective lot owners. The
avenues were located diagonally across the lots, and a large
portion of each lot was left undisturbed. The fractional
lots left are of sufficient value to satisfy the plaintiff’s
claim. The city authorities,in 1872, took possession of
that part of the lots taken for street purposes, and the
same has ever since been used by the public.

On February 14, 1888, this action at law was com-
menced to recover damages the plaintiff claims to have
sustained by reason of the defendant appropriating a por-
tion of each of said lots for public streets. The cause was
tried to the court, who entered judgment for the defendant.

It will be observed that this is not an action to foreclose
a tax lien, but one to recover damages for lessening plaint-
iff ’s security. Unless the plaintiff has been injured by rea-
son of the opening of these streets for public use, it wonld
seem clear that the plaintiff has no just cause for complaint,
The undisputed testimony is, that the value of the portion
of each lot net condemned by the city, is much greater
than the amount of the tax lien claimed by the plaintiff.
That being true, the plaintiff has not been damaged. No
suit has been brought by the plaintiff to enforce his lien
against that part of the lots not condemned. The defend-
ant in any event would only be liable for any deficiency
remaining after the plaintiff had exhausted the other secu-
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rity. Had the lot owners sold to an individual that portion
of the lots appropriated by the city, the plaintiff would
have been compelled to exhaust the part unsold before he
could enforce the lien against the portion sold. That the
defendant acquired the property under the law of eminent
domain does not change the rule. (Severin v. Cole, 38 Ia.,
463.)

Again, this action is barred by statute of limitations.
If the plaintiff’s security has been diminished, by the ap-
propriation of a part of the lots for public use, the injury
occurred in 1872, or more than fifteen years before this suit
was instituted. If a cause of action ever existed, it ac-
crued at the time the streets were located and opened.

The judgment of the district court was right and is

AFFIRMED.

THE other judges concur.

SAMUEL WALKER V. PATRICK HAGGERTY.
[FiLep JuLy 2, 1890.]

1. Promissory Note: CONSIDERATION: PAroL EVIDENCE Rk-
GARDING. While parol testimony may not be received to
contradict or vary the terms of a promissory note, yet the con-
sideration for which it was given may be established by parel
testimony.

9. Instructions: OBJECTIONS to the giving of instructions will
not be considered by the supreme court unless assigned in the
motion for & new trial.

3. It is error to give an instruction not warranted by the
pleadings and evidence.
4, : FALSE TESTIMONY. The jury was instructed “that if

any witness has willfully testified falsely as to any material fact
in the case, you are at liberty to disregard the entire testimony
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of such witness unless his testimony be corroborated by other
evidence.” Held, Correct as an abstract proposition of law, and
that it was justified by the evidence.

ERROR to the district court for Cuming county. Tried
below before NoRRis, J.

Thos. O’ Day, and Lancaster, Hall & Pike, for plaintiff in
error, cited, as to the admission of testimony regarding the
consideration : Ervin v. Saunders, 1 Cow.[N. Y.], 249 [13
. Am. Dec., 520]; Thompson v. Ketcham, 8 Johus. [N. Y.],
190 [6 Am. Dec., 330]; Stackpole v. Arnold, 11 Mass., 27
[6 Am. Dec., 150]; Harrison v. Morrison, 40 N. W. Rep.
[Minn. ], 66 ; Curtice v. Hokanson, 38 N. W. Rep. [Minn.],
694; Miller v. Edgerton, 15 Pac. Rep. [Kan.], 894; Parker
v. Morrill, 3 S. E. Rep. [N. C.], 511; Dolsen v. DeGanald,
8 8. W. Rep. [Tex.], 321; Armstrong v. Scott, 36 Fed.
Rep., 63; Gallery v. Bank 2 N. W. Rep. [Mich.], 193;
2 Parsons, Notes and Bills, p. 501; Gridley v. Dole, 4
Comst. [N. Y.], 486 ; Hunt v. Adams, 7 Mass., 518 ; Pitt v.
Ins. Co., 100 Mass., 500 ; Jones v. Jeffi-ies, 17 Mo., 677 ;
Hoare v. Graham, 3 Camp. [Eng.], 57 ; Anspach v. Bast,
652 Pa. St., 356 ; Ilarris v. Galbraith, 43 111., 309 ; Benja-
min, Sales, [4th Ed.], sec. 452 ; Campbell v. Flemming, 1 Ad.
& E. [Eng.}, 40; Parsons, Centracts, [7th Ed.] p. 208;
Shields v. Petlee, 2 Sandf. [N. Y]., 262; 3 Randolph, Com.
Paper, sec. 1899; St. Louis Ins. Co. v. Homer, 9 Mete.
[Mass.], 39; Eaves v. Henderson, 17 Wend. [N.Y.], 190;
Clark v. Hatt, 49 Ala., 86; Featherston v. Wilson, 4 Ark.,
164; 2 Phil,, Evid., 673, n. 496,

Hall & McCulloch, contra.

Norvar, J.

This suit is upon a promissory note for $5,800 with ten
per cent interest, bearing date May 15, 1883, given by the
defendant to A. N. Schuster & Co., and by them indorsed
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after maturity to the plaintiff. The defendant has made
the following payments upon the note:

June 23, 1883, $500; July 12, 1883, $800; September
1, 1883, $500 ; October 16, 18%3, $500; May 31, 1884,
$400; June 21, 1884, $25; making a total of $2,725.

The answer admits the execution of the note, the mak-
ing of the above payments, and pleads that the note was
given to close up an unsettled account between the defend-
ant and A. N, Schuster & Co. ; that at the time the note
was given, the payees promised to forward to the defendant
goods to the full amount of the difference in the account,
amounting to the sum of $3,075, which the payees have
wholly failed and refused to do, and that said note was
given for no other or greater consideration than the sum
of $2,725, which sum has been fully paid to the said A.
N. Schuster & Co. The answer alleges that the plaintiff
received the note after maturity. The reply was a general
denial.

A jury was impaneled to try the cause, who, after hear-
ing the evidence, the argnment of counsel, and instructions
of the court, returned a verdict for the defendant, where-
upon the plaintiff presented a motion for a new trial,
which was overruled, and a judgment was rendered for the
defendant. The plaintiff brings the case here for review,
assigning the following errors:
. 1. The court erred in allowing any evidence on the part

of the defendant to be introduced at the trial of this cause,
because the answer fails to state facts sufficient to consti-
tute a defense.

2. The court erred in allowing the defendant over the
objection of the plaintiff, to introduce parol evidence to con-
tradict or change the terms of the note.

3. The court erred in giving paragraph sixth of the in-
structions given by the court on its own motion.

4. The court erred in giving paragraphs 3, 4, 5, and 6
of the instructions asked by the defendant.
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6. The verdict is not sustained by sufficient evidence.

6. The court erred in overruling the motion of plaintiff
for a new trial.

Prior to the examination of the witnesses for the defense,
the plaintiff objected to the introduction of any testimony
on the part of the defendant for the alleged reason that the
answer fails to state a defense. While the answer does nog
contain a full statement of the facts, yet sufficient facts are
pleaded to constitute a defense against the note. The an-
swer charges that the only consideration the defendant ever
received for the note was the sum of $2,725, and which
amount it alleges has since been fully paid. For the bal-
ance of the amount expressed on the face of the note, to-
wit, $3,075, it is averred that A. N. Schuster & Co. agreed
to send to the defendant goods for that amount and that
they had failed and neglected to do so. If the allegations
of the answer are true, it is clear that there is not due the
plaintiff the amount claimed in his petition.

The testimony of the defendant tends to show that he

- was engaged in the mercantile business and had from time to
time purchased on credit from the payees of the note goods
to the amount of several thousand dollars. This note was
given in settlement of the account. The defendant further
testifies that when the note was executed, he claimed a
credit on the account for $2,900 or $3,000 for goods that
had been sent contrary to orders and that were unsalable,
and that the agent of A. N. Schuster & Co. at the time
agreed to credit the note for the amount claimed. The
plaintiff objected to the receiving of this testimony on the
ground that it contradicted the terms of the note. The
testimony was not offered for that purpose, nor did it have
that effect. The object of this testimony was to show the
real consideration for the note sued upon. If the defend-
ant was entitled to a credit upon the account for the amount
claimed by him, then he was not indebted to the plaiutiff in
the sum of $5,800, and the note did not truly express the
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amount of the defendant’s indcbtedness to the payees. While
parol testimony cannot be received to contradict the terms
of the note, it was clearly admissible to show the true con-
sideration for which it was given.

Charles M. Edwards testifies that he was the person who
took the note from the defendant ; that at that time there was
a balance of $5,879.75 due from defendant to A. N. Schus-
ter & Co. on an account for goods sold and delivered ; that
the defendant made no claim at the time the note was given
for any damages, or that the goods had not been received, but
on the contrary admitted the goods had been received in
good condition ; that the only thing that he mentioned was
that some frock suits sent to the Rose Bud Agency could
not be sold to the Indians. The witness further states that
he and the defendant checked the account over with the
defendant’s books, and found that there was due from him
the sum of $5,879.57; that the defendant paid in cash
$69.30, and that the witness made him a credit of $10.27 in
full for all claims made by him, aund, to close up the bal-
ance of the account, the defendant gave the note in suit.

The bill of exceptions contains other testimony which
tends to corroborate the witness Edwards.

As we view the casc, it will not be necessary for us to
determine which side has the preponderance of the evidence,
for it is apparent that the testimony produced on behalf of
the defendant fails to support the verdict returned by the
jury. If, as the defendant claims, he was entitled to a
credit {or $3,000, then at the date of the giving of the
note he was indebted to A. N. Schuster & Co. in the sum
of $2,800. At various times during the thirteen months
following the execution of the note the defendant paid
thereon sums aggrega:ing $2,725. Thus, according to
the defendant’s own testimony, there was due the plaintiff
at least $75 and interest. Yet the jury found for the de-
fendant.

True, something is said in brief of counsel for the de-
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fendant about too much interest being charged on the
account and included in the note. The statement of the
account in evidence shows $491.25 was allowed as interest.
No complaint is made in the answer in regard to the item
of interest, nor does the defendant in his testimony claim
that the proper amount of interest was not charged. The
larger part of the account had been due nearly a year before
the giving of the note and the payees were entitled to re-
ceive interest thereon.

The third assignment in the petition in error is based
upon the sixth paragraph of the instruction given by the
court on its own motion, which reads:

“You are instructed that if at the time the note in suit
was given Charles M. Edwards, the agent of A. N.
Schuster & Co., the payees of said note agreed with defend-
ant that said A. N. Schuster & Co. would make to defend-
ant the allowance as claimed by defendant, on account of
unsalable goods, and goods not ordered by defendant,
charged against defendant by said A. N. Schuster & Co. in
the account for which said note was given and thereby ob-
tained said note from defendant, such agreement is valid
and binding against said A. N. Schuster & Co., and de-
fendant is entitled to set-off any amount the evidence may
show to be due from A. N. Schuster & Co. to defendant on
account thereof against the amount due upon the note sued
on in this action.”

While the defendant took an exception to this instruc-
tion when given, yet having made no complaint in his
motion for a new trial of the giving of the instruction, we
cannot now consider it here. Errors in giving or refusing
of instructions must be pointed out in the motion for a
new trial. (Schreckengast v. Ealy, 16 Neb., 514; Nyce v.
Shaffer, 20 1d., 509; Sherwin v. O’ Connor, 24 Id., 605.)

The court, at the request of defendant, told the jury:

“That a principal cannot accept such parts of an agent’s
contract as are beneficial to him and disclaim such as are
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to his disadvantage, but must accept or reject all. And
if he retains the benefits of the agent’s bargain he must '
complete the contract on his part.”

This request contains a fair statement of the law upon
that subject and was based upon the testimony in the case.
The rule undoubtedly is that a principal cannot accopt
a part of the acts of his agent and reject the balance.
Edwards settled with the defendant and took his note and
turned it over to the payees therein named, A. N. Schuster
& Co., who accepted and retained it. The payees there-
fore were bound by the agreement of Edwards made when
the note was taken.

By the fourth request given on behalf of the defendant
the jury were instructed :

“That if A. N. Schuster & Co.’s agent procured the
note on Patrick Hagerty for $5,800 upon an agreement to
allow a credit for unsalable goods, and not ordered, or to
send new goods of equal value, that they cannot retain the
note and refuse to carry out the agreement upon which it
was obtained.”

There is not a scintilla of testimony in the record tending
to show that the note was procured upon any agreement
that the payees should send to the defendant new goods in
the place of unsalable goods or goods not ordered. While
that issue was presented by the answer, there was no proof
to sustain it. The instruction was therefore misleading
and assumed a fact not proven.

Exception is taken to the fifth instruction given on the
defendant’s motion, which informed the jury “that if any
witness has willfully testified falsely as to any material
fact in the case, you are at liberty to disregard the entire
testimony of such witness unless his testimony be corrob-
orated by other evidence.” It is not claimed that this is
not a correct statement of the maxim falsus in uno, falsus
tn omnibus, but it is urged that there was no evidence be-
fore the jury to which it could apply. It is conceded that




Vou. 30] JANUARY TERM, 1890. 127

Walker v. Haggerty.

the maxim cannot be applied to immaterial testimony. The
witness Edwards and the defendant Haggerty contradict
each other in almost every particular, as to the conversa-
tion that occurred between them when the note was given.
The plaintiff insists that this testimony was immaterial.
As stated elsewhere in this opinion, the testimony relating
to the agreement of the parties at the time of the execu-
tion of the note was material, and therefore the above in-
struction was applicable. It would have been error to have
refused it for another reason. Plaintiff’s witness Edwards
testifies that the defendant made a claim for offsets in the
sum’ of $10.27 for some unsalable frock coats and that he
gave the defendant credit for that amount on the account.
The plaintiff read the deposition of one Johnson, the book-
keeper of A. N. Schuster & Co., who stated that the account
attached to his deposition was a true account between the
defendant and A. N. Schuster & Co. While the account
balances, it contains no credit for $10.27. This evidence
before the jury made the instruction proper.

At the request of the defendant, the jury were instructed
“that the legal rate of interest on the accounts, as shown
in the evidence and under the proof, is seven per cent, and
the plaintiffs, A. N. Schuster & Co., could not charge de-
fendant more than that upon their account up to the time
the note was given.” The question of interest upon the
account was not put in issue by the pleadings, and the
court erred in submitting it to the jury.

The larger part of plaintiff’s brief is devoted to the rul-
ings of the district court upon the admission of testimony,
but as not a single error in that respect is assigned in the peti-
tion in error, we are precluded from considering the same.

It follows from what has been said that the judgment of
the district court must be reversed and the cause will be
remanded for a new trial,

REVERSED AND REMANDED.

THE other judges concur.
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GEeorGE E. BANKS, AsSIGNEE, V. OMAHA BaRB
Wire Co.

[FiLED JuLY 2, 1890.]

Asgignment for Creditors: PrIOR PREFERENCES. If an in-
solvent debtor, within thirty days before the making of a general
assignment for the benefit of his creditors, with a view to gives
preference to a creditor, gives a real estate mortgage and' collat-
eral notes to secure an indebtedness created more than nine
months before, and the creditor has at the time a reasonable
cause to believe that the debtor is insolvent, keld, that sach se-
curity was given in fraud of the assignment laws of this state,
and is void.

APPEAL from the district court for Hitchcock county.
Heard below before CocHRAN, J.

Thos. Colfer, and Bartlett, Baldrige, Ledwich & Crane,
for appellant.

H. W. Cole,and W. S. Morlan, contra.

Citations of counsel are, in the main, referred to in
opinion,

Norvar, J.

This action was brought by the plaintiff, George E.
Banks, as assignee of Mrs. E. H. Richardson, an insolvent
debtor, to set aside a real estate mortgage alleged to have
been given by said Richardson to the defendant in prefer-
ence to her other creditors, and in fraud of the insolvency
laws of this state, and also to recover certain collateral
notes alleged to have been delivered by Richardson to the
defendant for the same purpose. A decree was entered in
the district court in favor of the plaintiff, and the defend-
ant appeals,
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For more than a year prior to the 4th day of September,
1886, Mrs. E. H. Richardson was engaged in the hard-
ware business in the town of Stratton, in Hitcheock
county, and on that day she made a general assignment to
the sheriff of said county, of all her property for the benefit
of all of her creditors, which assignment was duly recorded
on the day of its date. The sheriff took immediate posses-
sion of the assigned property. The plaintiff, being elected
as assignee of the assigned estate, accepted the trust, gave
the required bond, and entered upon his duties as assignee.
On the 1st day of October, 1885, Mrs. Richardson became
indebted to the Omaha Barb Wire Co. in the sum of $905,
for goods purchased of it at that time. To secure this in-
debtedness, Mrs. Richardson, on the 25th day of August,
1886, executed and delivered to the defendant a mortgage
on lot 7, block 9, in the town of Stratton, and also de-
livered to the defendant, as collateral sccurity to said in-
debtedness, several promissory notes owned by her, and
amounting to several hundred dollars. The collateral
notes and the real estate were included in the deed of
assignment. The defendant has since collected on these
collaterals $251.82. At the time of the execution of the
mortgage Mrs. Richardson was insolvent and contem-
plated making an assignment for the benefit of her cred-
itors, in case she was pressed by them to make payment.
The above facts are undisputed.

The plaintiff introduced testimony tending to show that
the defendant, when it received the mortgage and collateral
notes, had a reasonable cause to believe that Mrs. Richard-
son was insolvent and that it accepted the security in fraud
of the law relating to assignments. The plaintiff called
as a witness C, W, Shurtleff, who testified that in 1886
he was engaged in the banking business at Stratton ; that
prior to the execution of the mortgage the defendant sent
to the witness for collection its claim against Mrs. Richard-
son, and being unable to collect the same, it was returned

9
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to the defendant; that shortly before the mortgage was
given, Mr. Sherlock, as agent of the defendant, called upon
Mr. Shurtleff at his place of business in Stratton and in-
quired as to Mrs. Richardson’s circumstances, who was
then informed that she was in close financial circumstances;
that the bank had a good many accounts against her which
she was unable to pay, and that there was no immediate
prospect of her paying the defendant’s claim. )

Mrs. Richardson testified that she gave the notes and
mortgage because the agent and attorney of the defendant
said they would make trouble by closing up the business
at once if she did not secure the claim, but if she would
give the security, the mortgage should not be placed upon
record, and that they promised to keep the matter quiet so
as to prevent any one else from making her trouble. This
witness further testified that she owed on August 25, 1886,
between $4,000 and $5,000, and knew she was then in-
solvent and unable to pay her debts; that she stated the
condition of her affairs to Sherlock and Cordeal, who rep-
resented the defendant.

George H. Sherlock and Joseph A. Cordeal each in their
testimony expressly deny having any conver-ation with
Mrs. Richardson; that they had conversation only with
her husband out of her presence. Mr. Sherlock denies
having the conversation testified to by Shurtleff. It is im-
possible to reconcile the testimony of the witnesses. If the
testimony of Mrs. Richardson and Shurtleff is true, there
can be no doubt that the agent of the defendant was aware
of the insolvency of Mrs. Richardson when the security
was taken. The district court found this point against the
defendant, and we are not prepared to say that it was not
Jjustified in so finding.

It is claimed that under the repeated decisions of this
court, a debtor in failing circumstances has a right to secure,
by mortgage or otherwise, a part of his creditors to the
exclusion of others, and that such preference will not in-
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validate the security. The following cases are cited by the
appellant to sustain that position : Nelson v. Garey, 156 Neb.,
531; Lininger v. Raymond, 12 1d., 19; Bierbower v. Polk,
17 1d., 268; Grimes v. Farrington, 19 1d., 48; Dietrich v.
Hutchinson, 20 Id., 52. While these cases recognize the
general rule to be that an insolvent debtor may prefer one or
more of his creditors, they do not decide the point herein
involved. It is not disputed that a creditor, having no
knowledge at the time of the insolvency of the debtor, may
accept security for his debt. The question, however, pre-
sented by this record is this, Is a mortgage valid given by
an insolvent debtor within thirty days prior to his making
of a general assignment, with a view of giving a prefer-
ence to the creditor, when the latter had reasonable ground
to believe that his debtor was insolvent? The determina-
tion of this point involves the construction of the law relat-
ing to assignments. ‘

Sections 42, 43, and 44 of chapter 8 of the Compiled
Statutes are as follows:

“Sec. 42. If a person, being insolvent, or in contempla-
tion of insolvency, within thirty days before the making
of any assignment, makes a sale, assignment, transfer, or
other conveyance of any description, of any part of his
property to a person who then has reasonable cause to be-
lieve him to be insolvent, or in contemplation of insolv-
ency, and that such sale, assignment, transfer, or other
conveyance is made with a view to prevent the property
from coming to his assignee in insolvency, or to prevent”
the same from being distributed under the laws relating to
insolvency, or to defeat the object of| or in any way to im-
pair, hinder, impede, or delay the operation and effect of,
or to evade any of said provisions, the sale, assignment,
transfer, or conveyance shall be void, and the assignee may
recover the property, or the assets, of the insolvent. And if
such sale, assignment, transfer, or conveyance is not made
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the debtor,



132 ‘ NEBRASKA REPORTS. [Vor. 30

Banks v. Omaha Barb Wire Co.

- that fact shall be prima facie evidence of such cause of
belief.

“Sec. 43. If a person, being insolvent, or in contempla-
tion of insolvency, within thirty days before the making of
the assignment, with a view to give a preference to a cred-
itor or person who has a claim against him, procures any
part of his property to be attached, sequestered, or seized
on execution, or makes any payment, pledge, assignment,
transfer, or conveyance of any part of his property, either
directly or indirectly, absolutely or conditionally, the per-
son receiving such payment, pledge, assignment, transfer,
or conveyance, or to be benefited thereby, having reasonable
cause to believe such person is insolvent, or in contempla-
tion of insolvency, and that such payment, pledge, assign-
ment, or conveyance is made in fraud of the laws relating
to insolvency, the same shall be void, and the assignee may
recover the property, or the value of it, from the person so
receiving it or so to be benefited.

“Sec. 44. Nothing in this act contained shall be con-
strued so as to prevent any debtor from paying, or secur-
ing to be paid, any debt, not exceeding the sum of one
hundred dollars, for clerks’ or servants” wages, or from
paying or securing any debt which shall have been created
within nine months prior to the date of such payment, or
securing or to affect any mortgage or security made in good
faith to secure any debt or liability created simultaneously
with such mortgage or security, provided any such mort-
gage shall be filed for record in the proper office within
thirty days from its date.”

The evident purpose of the legislature, in enacting these
provisions, was to prevent an insolvent debtor from dispos-
ing of his property in favor of some of his creditors to the ex-
clusion of others and to secure an equal and just distribution
of his property among all his creditors. Many of the provi-
sions of sections 42 and 43 are alike. They differ mostly as
to the purpose for which the sale or transfer is made. To

)
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render a conveyance void under section 42 it must appear,
that it was made to prevent the property from going into
the hands of the assiguee, or to prevent the same from be-
ing distributed under the assignment laws, or to evade the
provisions of such laws. It is apparent that the security
in this case was not taken for any of the purposes specified
in this section, but falls under and is governed by the pro-
visions of section 43. In terms, that section controls cases
where a trausfer or conveyance of property is made with a
view of giving a preference to a creditor. Under either
section the crediter, at the time of making the sale or giv-
ing of the security, must be insolvent or in contemplation
of insolvency, and the person receiving the conveyance or
security must have rcasonable cause to believe that the
debtor is insolvent or is in contemplation thereof] in order
to render such sale or security void. The prohibited acts
must have taken place within thirty days before making of
an assignment. If no general assignment follows, the
transfer is valid, or if the transaction falls under any of
the exceptions contained in the above quoted scction, 44, it
will be upheld. But, on the other hand, if it does not
come within any exception recognized by this section and
all the requisites of section 43 are found to exist, then the
conveyance is conclusively presumed to have been made in
fraud of the assignment law, aud is void. There is no
claim that the facts in the case we are considering, bring it
within the provisions of section 44, as the mortgage and
collateral notes were taken to secure a debt which was in-
curred more than nine months prior to the giving of the
security, and the assignment was made within thirty days
after the mortgage was executed. The mortgage and col-
laterals operate to give the defendants a preference over the
other creditors of Mrs. Richardson. Such a preference
would have been valid, however, had not the insolvent,
within thirty days, made an assignment for the benefit of

creditors,
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. Section 1693a of the Revised Statutes of Wisconsin is
almost identical with section 43 above quoted. The su-
preme court of that state has frequently had that section of
the Wisconsin statute under consideration, and has invari-
ably adopted the same construction that we now give to
our statute. (Anstedt v. Bentley,21 N. W. Rep., 807 ; Bat-
ten v. Smith, 22 1d., 342.)

In Abbott, Assignee, v. Shepard, 6 N. E. Rep., 826,
the supreme court of Massachusetts had under considera-
tion a case similar in its facts to the one at the bar. The
statute of that state is like our assignment law. That
action was brought by an assignee of an insolvent debtor,
to recover certain notes transferred by the assignor to the
defendant as an alleged preference. The court instructed
the jury that the plaintiff must prove: ¢ First, that, at the
time of the payment or transfer in question, Abbott was
insolvent, or in contemplation of insolvency ; second, that
the payment or transfer in question was made with a view
to give a preference to the defendants over other creditors;
third, that, at the time of the payment or transfer in question,
the defendants had reasonable grounds to believe that Ab-
‘bott was then insolvent, or in contemplation of insolvency ;
and, fourth, that the transfer of the notes in question was
made in fraud of the laws relating to insolvency; and that
if the jury found the first, sccond, and third propositions,
above stated, affirmatively established, that would author-
ize the finding ‘that the transfer was in fraud of the in-
solvent laws.’” The court held that this instruction was
correct.

Both upon principle and authority, the decree of the
district court canceling the mortgage, and rendering judg-
ment for the amount collected by the defendant on the
collateral notes, was right and is therefore

AFFIRMED.,

THE other judges concur.
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Harrtrorp FIRE Ins. Co., APPELLANT, V. MEYER ET
AL., APPELLEES.

[FiLED JuLy 8, 1890.]

1. Judgment: SuIT To ENJOIN. In an action to enjoin a judg-
ment upon the grounds that the plaintiff has a valid defense
to the same, and that it was rendered through a breach of duty
of his attorney, the facts constituting the alleged defense must
be pleaded so that it may appear that on a re-examination of
the case the result would probably be different.

2. Insurance: ProorF oF Loss: OBJECTIONS to proof of loss on a
policy of insurance must be specific and not general—as the
proof or any part thereof may be waived.

3. Review. Upon the pleadings and proof, held, that the judgment
was right.

APPEAL from the district court for Cass county. Heard
below before CHAPMAN, J.

J. R. Webster, E. P. Holmes, and 8. P. Vanalta, for
appellant.

J. B. Strode, and Byron Clark, contra.

MaxwEeLL, J.

This is an action to enjoin a judgment rendered in the
district court of Cass county. It appears from the record
that in 1883 one Wm. R. Carter was engaged in the mer-
cantile business in Cass and had his stock insured in the
Hartford company for the sum of $650; that during the
spring of that yedr, and while said policy was in full force,
the goods were greatly injured or destroyed by fire; that
the firm of Cook, Phillips & Wells had a chattel mortgage
on said stock for the sum of §$228, and after the loss they
filed a petition in equity enjoining the plaintiff from ad-
justing the loss and paying the same to Carter or the
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defendants, and praying in effect that a sufficient amount
of the insurance be assigned to them to satisfy their claim.
The defendants employed a firm of attorneys to defend
their rights in the premises, and the plaintiff employed the
senior member of said firm to protect its rights. The
attorneys named procured a dissolution of the temporary
injunction and on the trial of the main issue amended the
defendant’s answer, which was in the nature of a cross-bill,
by adding “and thereupon, as by said policy of insurance
required, within the time file fully verified proofs of his
loss, amounting to about $650, with their agent, D. H.
Wheeler, and that he complied in all respects with the con-
ditions of said policy of insurance,” and also amended the
prayer, and in the answer to the petition for the injunction
took judgment against the plaintiff and in favor of the
defendant, as assignee of the policy, for the sum of $300,
This is the judgment which is now sought to be enjoined.
The grounds upon which this relief is sought, as set forth
in the petition, are as follows:

¢ Plaintiff further avers that it had a full and complete
defense to said action as against said policy of insurance
and was under no obligations to repay the same; that the
said Carter had obtained said policy by fraud and misrep-
resentations, and that said loss was not a bona fide loss, of
all which facts they informed their said attorneys (giving
names) and instructed and directed them to plead and so
make: appearance in said cause; that said Carter failed to fur-
nish to said company proper proofs of said loss as required
by the rules of said company and by the terms and condi-
tions of said policy of insurance; that said insurance com-
pany was fully prepared to successfully defend said claim
of said Carter of said loss and fully intended to do so, and
so instructed their said attorneys.”

¥t will be observed that there is no statement of facts
showing the nature of the defense of the plaintiff against
the payment of the loss. This was necessary in order to
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entitle the plaintiff to relief. Where a court of equity pro-
cecds to set aside a judgment at law, it proceeds upon equi-
table considerations only. If the judgment rendered is not
incquitable as between the parties, no matter how irregular
the proceedings may be, a court of equity will not interfere.
(10 Am. & Eng. Ency. of Law, 898.)

It must appear that on a re-examination and retrial of the
cause the result would probably be different. (3 Pom., Eq.,
sec. 1364; Bradley v. Richardson, 23 Vt., 720; Tomkins
v. Tomking, 3 Stockt. [N. J.], 512, 514 ; Reeves v. Cooper, 1
Beasl, [N.J. Eq.],223; Dawson v. Merch., etc., Bk.,30 Ga.,
664 ; Saunders v. Albrition, 37 Ala., 716 ; Way v. Lamb, 15
Ia.,79, 83; Stokes v. Knarr, 11 Wis., 389 ; Payne v. Dudley,
1 Wash. [Va.], 196 ; Sauer v. Kansas, 69 Mo., 46 ; Lemon
v. Sweeney, 6 111. App., 507.)

Neither the statement of fucts in the petition nor the
proof is sufficient to show that the judgment is unjust or
that the plaintiff had any defense to the action. So in re-
gard to the proofs of loss. It is not stated wherein they are
defective; nor that the plaintiff has not waived the defect.

There is testimony in the record tending to show that
the plaintiff had no defense to the action and simply em-
ployed attorneys to secure a dissolution of the injunction,
and that the contest was really between creditors of Carter.
These were disputed questions of fact which were submit-
ted to the trial court,and the evidence being nearly equally
balanced, the judgment must be sustained.

We desire to say, however, that if the plaintiff had a
defense to the action on the policy, the attorneys for the
defendant, nor either of them, could consistently appear
for the plaintiff and should not have done so, but in the
condition of the record this fact cannot be determined.

The judgment of the district court is

AFFIRMED.

THE other judges concur.
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Miger v. Bristol.

qﬂb
Yo
B. F. Mi1zer v. C. N. BristoL.

[FILED JuLY 8, 1890.]

1, Evidence examined, and held, to sustain the verdict.

2 Trial: RIGHT To OPEN AND CLOSE. Where upon the issues
joined the plaintiff is required to introduce any evidence in
support of his case, he will be entitled to open and close.

ERROR to the district court for Webster county. Tried
below before GASLIN, J.

J. N. Rickargs, for plaintiff in error.
Case & McNeny, contra.

MaxweLL, J.

This action was brought by the defendant against the
plaintiff to recover the sum of $500 for money had and
received, and on the trial of the cause the jury returned a
verdict in his favor for the sum of $225, upon which judg-
ment was rendered. The plaintiff in error in his answer
alleges that *“the money mentioned and described in plaint-
iff’s petition was received by defendant from plaintiff under
the following state of facts, to-wit :

“On the 2d day of December, 1886, plaintiff and de-
fendant entered into a certain written agreement, by the
terms of which this plaintiff was to purchase of defendant
and defendant was to sell to plaintiff his entire stock of
queensware, groceries, provisions, and fixtures, and further,
the said plaintiff was to rent of said defendant the store-
room and cellar situate on lot nine of block five, Red Cloud,
Nebraska, at an annual rent of $800 per year, paysble in
monthly installments of $66.67 per month. A true copy
of said written agreement is herewith filed attached to this
(answer) and made a part hereof,

o

_—
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“That in pursuance of said agreement the plaintiff, at the
completion of said agreement, paid to defendant the $500
as a part payment of said stock of goods, and in no other
manner, and thereafter and on or about the — day of De-
cember, and about the time the invoice mentioned in said
contract was nearly completed, the plaintiff, without any
just cause and without any fault on the part of this defend-
ant, voluntarily abandoned said agreement and refused to
further proceed under the same and refused to accept said
goods and pay the balance due therefor as per the terms of
said agreement.

“This defendant did and performed all the terms and con-
ditions to be done and performed by him under said agree-
ment, and at the time of the breach aforesaid was ready
and willing to fully perform his part of said agreement.

“This defendant, by. reason of the plaintiff’s failure, neg-
lect, and refusal to perform said agreement, has sustained
damages in the sum of $1,000 over and above the amount
so received. The same is now due and wholly unpaid.”

The reply need not be noticed.

The contract referred to is as follows:

“This agrcement, entered into by and between Benjamin
F. Mizer, of the first part, and Charles N. Bristol, of the
second part, both of Red Cloud, Nebraska, witnesseth :
The said Mizer agrees on his part to sell and convey to said
Bristol, free and clear of incumbrance, his entire stock of
groceries, queensware, produce, and fixtures now owned by
him and kept in storeroom and cellars situate on lot nine
of block five of Red Cloud, Nebraska.

“The said Bristol, agrees on his part, to purchase said
goods and take same as follows : Queensware and groceries
to be taken at invoice and to be invoiced at first cost thereof,
and in addition thereto said Bristol is to pay an amount
rqual to twelve and one-half per cent of said invoice to
wover freight, drayage, and other expenses. Fixtures to
be agreed upon by the parties hereto. The price of all
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home produce to be first cost thereof. Said Bristol agrees
on his part to pay cash the sum of $500 upon the comple-
tion of this agreement, $1,000 upon completion of invoice
herein mentioned, $500 to be paid in thirty days after pos-
session is given under this agreement, and $500 each and
every thirty days till said stock is fully paid for. The
invoice above mentioned is to be made between the 15th
and the 20th of December, 1886, and possession to be given
as soon as invoice is completed and the payment above
mentioned made. It is understood and agreed that all
deferred payments above mentioned shall draw ten per
cent from date of delivery of possession.

“ When possession is delivered as above specified said
Mizer agrees on his part to execute and deliver to said
Bristol a written lease for said premises for three years
(giving said Bristol the option to hold said premises there-
under for two additional years) for the annual rental of
$800, payable in monthly installments of $66.67 per
month.

“In witness whereof, we have hereunto set our hands
this second day of December, 1886.

“Witness: B. F. Mizkg.

“J. N. RIcKARDS. : C. N. Brisror.”

The testimony tends to show that at the date of the
contract the plaintiff in error was conducting a grocery in
Red Cloud and that the defendant in error had made a
proposition to purchase the same. The testimony also
tends to show that when the defendant in error inquired of
the plaintiff in error as to the value of his stock of goods
he stated that it was about $5,000.

The defendant in error testifies that he thereupon in-
formed him that the stock was of greater value than he
was able to purchase ; that soon afterwards the plaintiff in
error stated to him that he had examined his invoices and
looked over his stock and that it would not exceed in value
$3,800 to $4,000, and that with that understanding he
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entered into the contract above set forth, and that upon the
signing of the contract he paid the plaintiff in error $500;
that thereupon they proceeded to invoice the stock and it
was found to amount to $5,000 or more, and that there-
upon he declined to complete the contract.

The plaintiff in error denies that he stated to the defend-
ant in error that the stock was of less value than $5,000.

There arc a number of *matters, however, testified to by
the defendant in error and his witnesses which he fails to
explain, and it is evident that he did make representations
of the kind charged. The clear weight of testimony also
shows that after it was found that the goods invoiced were
of the value of $5,000 or more, and more than the defend -
ant in error felt able to pay for, the plaintiff in error prom-
ised to refund the $500 which he had received. This was
coupled with a proviso, “as soon as I hear from my
brother-in-law.” This was a recognization of the debt and
obligation to pay the same; but without such recognization
the defendant in error under the proof would be entitled to
recover. It is apparent that the defendant in error is en-
titled to the whole $500 with interest thereon, but as he
is not complaining that matter cannot be considered.

The plaintiff in error complains that he was entitled to
open and close on the trial of the cause. In this, however,
he is mistaken, as it was necessary for the plaintiff below to
offer proof to sustain his action. The rule is that if any-
thing remains for the plaintiff to prove affirmatively, he is
entitled to open and close. (Lexington Ins. Co. v. Paver,
16 Ohio, 324; Vifquain v. Finch, 16 Neb., 505.)

There is no error in the record by which the plaintiff in
error has been prejudiced. The judgment is therefore

AFFIRMED.
THE other judges concur,
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Donisthorpe v. F., E. & M. V., R, Co.

F. B. DONISTHORPE ET AL., APPELLANTS, V. FREMONT,
E. & M. V. R. Co., APPELLEE,

[FiLED JuLYy 9, 1890.]

1. Right of Way : REPRESENTATIONS OF INTENDED Usk: Pa-
ROL EVIDENCE. Where the agent of a railway company nego-
tiating for the right of way for the proposed road across certain
lots on which the plaintiff resided, stated to him that the prop-
erty sought for right of way was designed for the main line and
not for side tracks, and thereupon the plaintiffs execated a deed
for such right of way. Afterwards three side tracks were laid
along said line past the plaintiff’s residence. Held, That the
purpose for which the deed was executed might be shown.

: DAMAGES. That if the plaintiffs sustained spe-
cial damages by reason of the conmstruction and operation of
theside tracks near their house, they may recover for any excess
of damages over those which would arise from the operation
of the main line.

APPEAL from the district court for Fillmore county.
Heard below before MoRRis, J.

F. B. Donisthorpe, and Robert Ryan, for appellants, cited
as to fraudulent representations of intended use of land:
Barber v. Lyon, 16 Ia., 37; Richardson v. Bleight, 8 B.
Mon. [Ky.], 584; Rumph v. Abercrombie, 12 Ala., 64;
Wyche v. Greene, 16 Ga., 49; Walker v. Hunter, 27 Id.,
331; Hileman v. Wright, 9 Ind., 126 ; Woodruff v. Water
Power Co., 10 N. J. Eq., 489 ; Abbott v. Abbott, 18 Neb.,
505 ; Bishop, Contracts, sec. 665 ; Clark v. Tennant, 5 Neb.,
556 ; Carpenter v. R. Co., 9 C. E. Green Ch. [N. J.], 249.

John B. Harley, and J. Jensen, contra, contending that
the deed embodied all agreements between the parties, and
that their rights could not rest partly in writing and partly
in parol, cited : McClure v. Campbell, 26 Neb., 58-9 ; Mar-
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shall v. Gridley, 46 111., 250; Purinton v. R. Co., 1d., 297,
299, 300; Waldron v. R. Co., 55 Mich., 420; Druse v.
Wheeler, 22 Mich , 442, 443; Cedar Rapids, ele., R. Co. v.
Boone Co., 43 Ia., 45; Conwellv. R. Co., 81 11l., 232; Pierce
on Railroads, p. 133, n. 2; 520.)

MAxwELL, J.

This action was brought by the plaintiffs against the
defendant to abate certain stock yards near their residence
as a nuisance and to enjoin the defendant from using cer-
tain side tracks near their residence for the same cause; or,
in case an injunction would not be granted, then to recover
damages.

On the trial of the cause the court below granted an in-
junction in effect abating the stock yards, but found for
the defendant as to the side tracks, and rendered judgment
accordingly. Other matters were presented to the court
below which do not seem to be involved in the issues before
us and therefore will not be considered. No appeal has
been taken from the judgment abating the stock yards, so
that the only question presented for consideration is the
correctness of the judgment as to the right of way.

It appears from the record that in the spring of 1887
the defendant was anxious to extend its road to Geneva
and beyond, and after various conferences with the citizens
of Geneva they entered into a written guaranty that the
right of way from “the east line of the northeast quarter
of section 36, township 7 north, of range 3 west, of
the sixth principal meridian, and for station grounds at
Geneva certain lots and alleys, and a portion of Lincoln
street in said Geneva” should not cost to exceed $13,500 ;
that one Stanley was the right of way agent of the defend-
ant and he exhibited to the plaintiffs a map purporting to
show the line of the road through the town of Geneva and
across their lots. - He stated in effect that the side tracks
would not extend to the plaintiff’s place, and evidently
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relying upon this assurance the citizens of the town made
similar statements. The B. & M. R. R. runs south through
the tier of blocks next west of the plaintiff’s residence,
the side tracks, however, being some distance away. The
testimony shows that the wife of F. B. Donisthorpe, one
of the plaintiffs, stated that if she could be assured that
the side tracks of the defendant would also be placed
away from near their residence, she would execute the
deed as desired. Upon securing such assurance she there-
upon with her husband executed a deed as follows;

“This indenture, made this 8th day of April, A.D.
1887, between Frederick B. Donisthorpe and Laura V.
Donisthotpe (his wife), in her own right, of the county of
Fillmore, in the state of Nebraska, party of the first part,
and the Fremont, Elkhorn & Missouri Valley Railroad
Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of
the state of Nebraska, party of the second part, witnesseth:

“That whereas the said Fremont, Elkhorn & Missouri
Valley Railroad Company, party of the second part, is
now constructing a railroad, which said railroad is to pass
through the county of Fillmore, in said state of Nebraska,
and the said party of the first part, being desirous of the
construction of said railroad and to aid the same by the
grant herein made, in consideration of the premises and the
sum of $750 to them in hand paid, the receipt whereof is
hereby acknowledged, have given, granted, bargained, sold,
conveyed, and confirmed, and by these presents do give,
grant, bargain, sell, convey, and confirm, to the said party
of the second part, and to its successors and assigns, for-
ever, for the purpose of constructing a railroad thereon,
and for all uses and purposes connected with the construction
and use of said railroad, a strip of land fifty feet in width,
being fifty feet in width on west side of the center line of
said railroad where the same has been definitely located
over and across lots 15, 16, and 17, in W. J. Tate’s first
addition to the village of Geneva, Fillmore county, Ne-
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braska, of the sixth P. M., and the said party of the first
part, for the consideration aforesaid, do Lereby release and
discharge the said party of the second part, its successors
and assigns, from all costs, expenses, and damages which
the said party of the first part has now sustained, or shall
at any time hereafter sustain, in any way by reason of the
construction, building, or use of the said railroad; to
have, hold, and enjoy the lands above conveyed, with the
appurtenances and privileges thereto pertaining, and the
right to use the said land and material of whatsoever kind
within the limits of the said fifty feet above conveyed, unto
the said party of the second part, the Fremont, Elkhorn
& Missouri Valley Railroad Company, and to its suc-
cessors and assigns, forever, for any and all uses and
purposes connected with the construction, prescrvation,
occupation, and enjoyment of said railroad ; Provided, That
if said railroad shall not be located and graded within ten
years from the date hereof| or if, at any time after said rail-
road shall have been constructed, the said party of the
second part, its successors or assigns, shall abandon said
road, or the route thereof shall be changed so as not to be
continued over said premises, the land hereby conveyed and
all rights in and to the same shall revert to the said party
of the first part, their heirs and assigns.

“And the said party of the first part do for themselves,
their heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, covenant
and agree to and with the said party of the second part, its
successors, and assigns, that they are the true, lawful, and
rightful owners of all and singular the above granted and
described premises, and every part and parcel thereof, with
the appurtenances, and are now lawfully seized and pos-
sessed of the same as a good, perfect, and absolute estate of
inheritance in fee simple; and that the same or any part
thereof at the time of signing and delivery of these pres-
ents are not in any manncr incumbered ; and also that the
said party of the first part and their heirs will and shall

10
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warrant and forever defend all and singular the lands and
premises hereby conveyed unto the said Fremont, Elkhorn
& Missouri Valley Railroad Company, the said party of
the second part, its successors and assigns, forever, against
the lawful claims and demands of all and every person
and persons, free and discharged of and from all manner
of incumbrances whatsoever.

“In testimony whereof, the said party of the first part
have hereunto set their hand the day and year first written
above. F. B. DONISTHORPE.

“LAUurA V. DONISTHORPE.
“8igned and delivered in presence of
“J~o. D. Carson.”

Upon the construction of the line, three side tracks were
built by the defendant, which extend beyond the plaintiff’s
residence, and such residence being so near the side tracks
is greatly affected by the switching of cars thereon.
As there must be a new trial to ascertain the amount of
damageés which the plaintiff has sustained, and as no ques-
tion is involved as to the rule for estimating the damages,
we will not discuss that branch of the case.

The attorneys for the defendant insist that the deed
merged all prior conversations and statements of the par-
ties and therefore the plaintiffs cannot now complain, as
there is no reservation in the deed. This is true, but not-
withstanding the rule, the purpose for which the deed was
made may be shown. (Collingwood v. Merchants Bank, 15
Neb., 121.) This rule is constantly applied where an ab-
solute conveyance is made as security for a debt. In such
and like cases the entire transaction may be shown in order
to determine the effect of the conveyance. So in the case
at bar. Here the professed purpose of the agent was to
obtain a conveyance of the right of way for the line of the
road—not for depot grounds and side tracks. It is well
known, too, that the grounds required for a station and the
consequent side tracks are usually much wider than along
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the line of the road away from the station. This, how-
ever, is a mere circumstance, which to have any weight
must be supported by other circumstances showing that the
company usually required more than 100 feet in width for
side tracks at its stations. While every reasonable facility
should be given a railway company organized under the
laws of the state to acquire the right of way, and to con-
struct its road, yet the land and lot owners over which its
line is located have rights in the premises which must be
considered and protected, and the damages which they each
sustain by reason of the location, proper construction, and
careful operation of the road must be paid or deposited
with the county judge. Justice and fair dealing require
that a fair compensation be paid, and that there shall be no
secret reserve in favor of the party acquiring the right of
way. The side tracks having been constructed, an injunc-
tion will not be granted, but the plaintiffs will be entitled -
to recover damages for the injury sustained in excess of
those which arise from the proper use of the principal line
of the road.

The judgment is therefore reversed and the cause re-
manded for further proceedings.

REVERSED AND REMANDED.

THE other judges concur.
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‘Wills: REPUBLICATION: A CobICIL ratifying and confirming a
will, in whole or in part, will amount to a republication of the
will, bringing down its words and causing it to speak as of the
date of the codicil.

CONDITIONS: REFORMATION OF DEVISEE. A devise in a
father’s will in favor of a son addicted to the intemperate use of
intoxicating liquors, and who had intermarried with one Mrs,
G. against his father's will, made in form to the executors of the
will, directing them at the end of ten years from his death, in
case the son and legatee should have, in their judgment, thor-
oughly reformed of his intemperate habits, of his immoral con-
sortings, and evil associations, and should then be living, with
(149)

L 8




150 NEBRASKA REPORTS. [Vor. 30

Hawke v. Euyart.

evident promise so to continue during life, a virtuous, temperate
and commendable life, to convey the lands and trust funds
devised, to the son and legatee. Held, That in so far as the devise
was conditional on the reformation of the son and devisee the
same would be upheld.

3.

: RESTRAINT OF MARRIAGE. But a subsequent provision
that such trust property and funds should not be transferred
until the executors should have satisfactory proof that the devisee
“has permanently freed himself from all influence, connections,
associations, cohabitations, and relations of every name, character,
and description of and with Mrs. G., and her relatives, friends
and intimates,’’ held, to be a condition against public policy, and
void ; and that upon the first condition, exempt from the second,
the devises will be entitled to the transfer and conveyance of
the land and trust funds of the legacy.

APPEAL from the district court for Otoe county. Heard
below before FiELD, J.

John C. Watson, Frank P. Ireland, and L. W. Billings-
ley, for appellant :

A condition annexed to a devise which discourages or
interferes with the marriage relation is void. (Potter v.
MecAlpine, 3 Demarest [N. Y. Sur. Rep.], 108; Conrad v.
Long, 33 Mich., 78; Wren v. Bradley, 2 De Gex & Sm.
[Eng.],49; Brown v. Peck, 1 Eden [Eng.], 140; Tennant
v. Braie, Tothill [Eng.], 241 ; 18tory, Eq. Jur.,sec. 291,and
note ; Keily v. Monck, 3 Ridgw., Parl. [Ir.], 205, 244, 247,
261; Morley v. Rennaldson, 2 Hare [Eng.], 570 ; Orawford
v. Thompson, 91 Ind., 266 ; Wilkingon v. Wilkinson, L. R..
12 Eq.[Eng.], 191 ; 2 Redfield, Wills, sec. 285; 2 Jarman,
Wills, 57, 58; Schouler, Wills, sec. 604.) An illegal condi-
tion precedent defeats the devise, while an illegal condition
subsequent is void and the devise stands. (Williams, Exrs.
[6 Am. Ed.], 1372; 2 Redfield, Wills, p. 286; 20 Am. L.
Rev., p. 510, sec. 10, and note ; 1 Roper, Legacies, ch. 13,
sec.11; Randall v. Marble, 69 Me., 310 ; Parker v. Parker,
123 Mass., 585 ; Merrill v. Emery, 10 Pick. [Mass.], 597 ;
4 Kent, Com., 130.) . The condition in this case is an
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evasion of, and fraud upon, the law. (Scott v. Tyler, 2
Dick [Eng. Ch.], 720; Harvey v. Aston, 1 Atk. [Eng.],
379 ; Richardson v. Baker, 2 1d., 321 ; Marples v. Bain-
. bridge, 1 Madd. [ Eng.], 590.)

M. L. Hayward, contra:

The condition is one precedent and not impossible
(2. Jar.,, Wills, pp. 520-1); and until it has been per-
formed no estate can vest ( Van Horne v. Dorrance, 2
Dall. [U. 8.], 317; Finley v. King, 3 Pet. [U. 8.], 375).
A condition that a legatee must first learn to live and con-
duct himself properly is valid (Den v. Messenger, 4 Vroom
[N. J.], 499 ; West v. Moore, 37 Miss., 114); likewise one
that no estate shall pass until legatee’s debts are paid
(Redfield, Wills, vol. 2, 300; vol. 3, 496 ; Lewin, Trusts,
135; 2 Jarman, Wills, pp. 548-9; Nichols v. Levy, 5 Wall,
[U. 8.], 441 ; Bramhall v. Ferris, 14 N. Y., 41; 1 Otto
[U.8.], 16). While it is true that a condition in general
restraint of marriage is void, a special restraint as to mar-
riage with a particular person, imposed for the welfure
of the legatee, is valid. (Story, Eq. Jur., secs. 274, 277,
281, 285; 2 Redfield, Wills, sec. 30, ch. 11; Collier v.
Slaughter, 20 Ala., 263 ; Finlay v. King, 3 Pet. [U. 8.],
346; 2 Jarman, Wills, 513, 564-6,and notes 28-31; Gar-
rett v. Scouten, 3 Denio [N. Y.], 334; Luigart v. Ripley,
19 O. St., 24; Pringle v. Dunpley, 53 Am. Dec., 110;
Snider v. Newsom, 24 Ga., 139; Cooper v. Remsen, 5 Johns,
Ch. [N. Y.], 459 ; Bostick v. Blades, 59 Md., 231; Gray-
don v. Graydon, 23 N. J. Eq., 220.) Where the condi-
tion becomes impossible, no estate will vest. (Coke, Litt.,
206 a, I 376, 206 b; Jarman, Wills, vol. 1, pp. 575, 677,
796, 805 ; vol. 2, p. 520 ; 4 Kent [5th Ed.], 125; Moank-
ley v. Riggs, 19 Johus. [N. Y.], 14; Tuylor v. Bullen, 6
Cow. [N. Y.], 627 ; Wells v. Smith, 2 Edw. Ch. [N. Y.],
78; Davis v. Angel, 8 Jur. [N. S.], 1024.) If the con-
dition is void, it will not benefit the devisee. (Zaylor v.
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Mason, 9 Wheat. [U. 8.], 350.) A legacy whose condi-
tions have not been complied with, does not vest because
of the absence of a reversionary clause. (Parsons v, Wine-
low, 6 Mass., 180.)

Cong, CH. J.

The appellant alleged in his petition to the county court
of Otoe county that he was the son and heir at law of
Robert Hawke, late of said county, deceased, whose last
will was offered for probate by Logan Euyart and George
W. Hawke, executors named therein, and that he appeared
and objected to the probate of said will for the reasons:

I That no citation of notice was issued or served upon
him,

II. That the paper purporting to be the last will and
testament of deccased was not his will, but was obtained
and procured by circumvention and by ruse on the part of
Logan Euyart, one of the executors; that the will is void
so far as appellant is concerned, as in absolute restraint of
marriage and against public policy, and that deceased was
not, at the time of making it, of sufficient testamentary ca-
pacity to make a will, and that the contingency upon which
its bequest to appellant was to take effect was too remote.

The appellant asked that if the will be admitted to pro-
bate, the estate depending upon the marriage condition
of appellant be ordered to immediately take effect, absolved
from the condition imposed, and that he be entitled to the
property willed to him.

Notice having been given by publication of the motion
to admit the will to probate, there was a hearing in the
county court on June 20, 1887. Nathaniel Adams and
William F. N, Houser were sworn and examined as wit-
nesses to the will, and the court found that the will and
the several codicils thereto were duly executed by Robert
Hawi.., who was, at the time of executing the same, of full
age, of sound mind and memory, and not under restraint
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or under influence of any kind, and was competent in all
respects to devise real and personal estate; that said in-
strument is the last will and testament of said deceased and
ought to be allowed as such, agd that the persons therein
named as executors are appointed as such upon giving
bond in the sum of $30,000, with sufficient sureties in ac-
cordance with the statute.

To all of which the appellant objected and took his ap-
peal to the district court.

There was a stipulation by the parties, proponents and
contestant, that the appeal should apply and extend only
to the matter of the bequest to William Hawke, and should
not in any way affect the other devisees and legatees of the
estate, the contestant asking no greater amount than is
given him in the will, and he appeals only from the condi-
tions and restrictions attached to such bequest.

There was a trial in the district court, July 10, 1888, in
which the proceedings of the county court were affirmed,
and the petition of the appellant was dismissed, to which
exceptions were taken, and the appeal brought into this
court.

The bequest to appellant under the will dated February
16, 1884, is as follows: :

“Item Third. I give devise and bequeath to the exec-
utors of this my will, hereafter nominated and appointed,
and to the survivors or survivor of them, all that certain
piece or*parcel of land sitnate in the county of Otoe, and
state of Nebraska, known and described as the northwest
quarter of section six, township eight north, of range four-
teen east, of the sixth principal meridian, containing one
hundred and seventy-four and one-half acres, more or less,
together with the tenements, hereditaments, and appurte-
nances to the same belonging, or in anywise appertaining,
and the sum of ten thousand dollars in money in trust,
nevertheless, and to and for the uses, interests, ar.:l pur-
poses hereinafter limited, described, and declared; that is
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to say, upon the trust that my said executors, the surviv-
ors or survivor of them, shall, within six months after my
decease, enter into and upon the above mentioned and last
described lands and tenements, and lease and to farm let
" the same to a good, careful, capable, honest, and industri-
ous tenant or tenants, on such terms and conditions as my
said executors, or the survivors or survivor of them, shall
deem meet and just, and out of the rentsand profits arising
from said lands, first, pay and discharge all taxes, revenue,
duties, and assessments of every name and nature legally
imposed, levied, and assessed thereon.

“Second. Make all nece-sary and proper repairs to the
buildings, fences, and enclosures, including painting of
buildings and pruning of all orchards, trees, and shrubs
growing on said premises, and embracing the replanting of
fruit trees if destroyed by the elements, to the extent of
preventing the premises deteriorating in value or going to
waste ; and any balance of such rents, issues, and profits
remaining to invest in some good six per cent interest
bearing security issued by Otoe county, in the state of
Nebraska, or in securities issued by said county legally
bearing a greater rate of interest than six per cent per
annum ; and in like securities my said executors, or the sur-
vivors or survivor of them, are hereby directed to invest
the said sum of $10,000 and the income thereupon, less
such sum or sums as shall be required to pay the taxesand
assessments levied and assessed on the trust funds so held
by them as aforesaid, to be in like manner invested from
time to time for the period of ten years from the time of
my decease. In the event my executors shall not be able
to procure the class of securities above mentioned for the
investment of such trust funds, then they, or the survivors
or survivor of them, may invest such trust funds and the
accumulations therefrom in bonds or other securities legally
issued by the state of Nebraska, bearing at least six per cent
per annum interest, or in bonds or promissory notes secured
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by a first mortgage on lands situate in Otoe county, under im-
provement, as farms, of at least double the value of the
amount of the mortgage, exclusive of the buildings, fences,
and enclosures, bearing interest at not less than seven per cent
per annum, payable annually. And in case, at the end of ten
years from my decease, my son William Hawke shall have
become, in the judgment of my said executors, the sur-
vivors or survivor of them, permanently and thoroughly
reformed of his intemperate habits, of his immoral con-
sortings and evil associations, and shall then be living with
evident promise to continue so to live, during the remaindenr
of his life, a virtuous, industrious, temperate and commend-
able life, then and thereupon, within twelve months after
the expiration of ten years from my decease, my said exec-
utors, the survivors or survivor of them, are hereby directed
and required to convey the lands and premises hereinabove
last mentioned in item third of this my last will and testa-
ment, with the tenements and appurtenances, to my said
son William Hawke, and pay over, assign, transfer, set
over, and deliver to him, my said son William Hawke, the
securities held by them, or by either of them, together with
all moneys, rents, interest, and profits, representing the
said sum of $10,000 held in trust as aforesaid, and the
unexpended income arising therefrom, and the net rents,
issues, and profits of said real estate during said period;
Provided, nevertheless, further, That such trust property and
funds shall not be transferred by my said executors, or by
the survivors or survivor of them, until my said executors,
or the survivors or survivor of them, shall have satisfac-
tory proof and evidence that my said son William Hawke
bas permanently freed himself from all influence, connec-
tions, associations, cohabitations, and relations of every
pame, character, and description of and with a certain noto-
rious and disreputable woman known by the name of Mrs.
Sadie Gladstone, and with all relatives, friends, and inti-
mates of that woman. It being my imperative command
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that no part, parcel or portion of such trust funds, or of any
other part or portion of my worldly goods or estate, shall
come to the hands of, or be used, or applied for the use or
“benefit of said woman Sadie Gladstone under any circum-
stances or conditions whatsoever.
¢ And provided further, That in the event my said son
William Hawke should, at any time before the expiration
of ten years from my death, througlr illness or otherwise,
become so impoverished as to be liable to become a public
charge, then my executors, or the survivors or survivor of
them, are authorized and empoywered out of the rents, issues,
and profits, and the income of said trust property and trust
funds, from time to time to afford and provide him such
reasonable, necessary support and raiment as they shall
deem just and proper under the circumstances, but they
are not to furnish any money or other means to gratify the
cravings for intoxicating liquors or for immoral associa-
tions, * * *
¢ But in the event of my said son William Hawke shall
leave issue of his body him surviving, born of a respectable
maternal parent in lawful wedlock, and not born of the
said Mrs. Sadie Gladstone, then I order, direct, and require
my said executors, thesurvivors or survivor of them, to use,
from time to time as they may deem proper, out of the
reuts, issues, and profits and income of said trust property
and trust funds, to afford a comfortable support, including
raiment and education for such child or children of my said
son William Hawke, until such child or children shall
attain the age respectively of twenty-one years, and upon
reaching that age, or marrying, if a female or females, my
executors are authorized and empowered to make such
reasonable advancement, in their discretion, as the circum-
stances and position in life of such child or children of my
said son William Hawke shall seem to justify out of the
profits and income which have arisen from such trust prop-
erty and trust funds, and upon attaining the age of thirty-
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three years respectively, said real estate and funds so held
in trust as aforesaid' to be divided, share and share alike,
less any advancement made, from each share respectively,
betwecn such children of my said son, and their heirs by
representation ; Provided, always, That my executors, or
any of them, shall not, with any funds, money, or property
coming from my estate, aid, maintain, or support, or assist
therein, directly or indirectly, any child or children by my
son begotton-on the body of the said notorious and dis-
reputable woman Mrs, Sadie' Gladstone, whether born in
lawful wedlock or not.

“ And if the heirs of his body surviving my son William
Hawke shall be born of the body of the said Sadie Glad-
stone, then said trust property and trust funds shall be
distributed and disposed of by my said executors, as herein-
above directed, the same as if my said son William Hawke
had died without issue, him surviving.

“In the event my son William Hawke should fail to
reform his intemperate habits, and from his immoral con-
sortings and evil associations, or otherwise refuse to comply
with the conditions upon which my executors are author-
ized and required to convey the real estate described and
the $10,000, with the net rents, issues, profits, and income
thereof mentioned in this item third of my last will and
testament, then and in that case it is my will and I order
and direct my said executors to hold said premises and trust
funds with the net accumulation therefrom invested and
rented as aforesaid, and out of the proceeds thereof, from
time to time as required, use sufficient, if my said son’s
circumstances shall require it, to pay and discharge the
expenses for a comfortable maintenance and support during
his natural life, or until he shall have complied with all the
conditions and farnished the evidence te entitle him to a
conveyance and assignment from my said executors to said
trust property and trust funds with the accumulation
thereof, as is hereinabove provided and directed, when,
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although more than ten years shall have passed since my
decease before the conditions aforesaid have been complied
with by my said son William Hawke, my said executors,
the survivors or survivor of them, will and shall convey
and assign said trust property and trust funds and the
accumulations therefrom upon the express condition, how-
ever, that such conveyance and assignment of said property
and trust funds and the accumulations therefrom shall be
void, and the property thereby conveyed and assigned shall
revert to my said executors, the survivors or survivor of
them, or to my said wife and daughters, if all my executors
shall than be dead, they thercupon shall be repossessed
thereof, the same as if said eonveyance and assignments
had never been made, if my said son William Hawke shall,
at any time after the execution and delivery of said con-
veyance and assignment, marry or cohabit with the said
notorious and disreputuble woman Mrs. Sadie Gladstane,
and he, my said son William Hawke, having failed or
refused to comply with such conditions, and failed to receive
a conveyance and assignment of such trust property and
trust funds, after the death.of my said son William Hawke,
my said executors, the survivors or survivor of them, are
directed and required to distribute such trust property and
trust funds, with their accumulations, to my wife, Elizabeth
A. Hawke, and daughters, Ella Spencer, Lulu Hawke
Rector and Minnie Hawke, and to their heirs by repre-
sentation, share and share alike, at the time and in the
manner hereinabove directed; Provided, No part thereof
shall descend to the heir or heirs of my son William
Hawke begotten on the body of thesaid Sadie Gladstone.”

The first codicil to the will of Robert Hawke was exe-
cuted on July 29, 1885, and the second and last codicil is
dated March 8, 1887, so that the last date is the comple-
tion and publication of the will. It will be observed that
the devises to, and provisions in favor of, the appellant are
. made to depend upon certain conditions. These are, first,
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that at the expiration of ten years from the death of the
testator the appellant should have become, in the opinion
and judgment of the executors, permanently and thor-

oughly reformed of intemperate and evil habits, his im- -

moral consortings and associations, and should then be
living with evident promise to continue to live, for the
remainder of his life, a virtuous, temperate, and commend-
able life.

Second, that the executors should have satisfactory proof
and evidence that the appellant had permanently freed
himself of all influences, connections, associations, cohab-
tiations, and relations of every name, character, and de-
scription with Mrs. Sadie Gladstone. .

After the argument of this case, and at the consultation
of the court, we were all of the opinion that the first condi-
tions imposed in the testator’s will were valid and bind-
ing on the executors and on the legatee; but that those of
the second class, in view.of the facts and circumstances
given in evidence, were void as against the public policy
of the state and could not be sanctioned.

While the will itself was executed and bears date of
February 16, 1884, there is a codicil to it, which, to all
intents and legal purposes, republished and executed the
will on the 29th day of July, 1885.

It appears from the bill of exceptions, and is not dis-
puted, that the appellant was married to Mrs. Sudie Glad-
stone on the 16th of September, 1884, It is to be men-
tioned, not as a controlling fact, that while there is an
entire absence of direct evidence on the subject, yet from
all the evidence, and from the legal inferences to be drawn,
there is a strong presumption that the marriage of the
appellant with Mrs. Gladstone was known to the testator
at the time of the last publication of his will. That con-
dition had taken its place for two years and six months
prior to the last fact. As to the rule in this instance, see
Van Cortlandt v. Kip, 1 Hill, 590: “ Where a codicil is so
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executed as to operate a republication of the will, both
should be read and construed together as one entire in-
trument.” See, also, Brimmer v. Sothier, 1 Cushing, 118;
Neff’s Appeal, 48 Pa: 8t., 501 ; Snowhill v. Snowhill, 3
Zabriskie, 447. ’

The question then is not wholly whether the exactions
of the will that the appellant shall have freed himself of
all the influences and associations of Mrs. Gladstone, but
are in restraint and in the continuation of the marriage rela-
tion, the same having been entered into as stated.

I think there can be no doubt, either as a question of
reason from moral premises, or of legal authority, not only
that such condition is void, but having been declared void
it leaves the l;equest of the testator operative the same as
though the condition had not been sought to be made by
will. (See Roper on Legacies, 757, and cases cited; Con-
rad v. Long, 33 Mich., 78; Wren v. Bradley, 2 De Gex
& Smales, 49; Brown v. Peck, 1 Eden, 140; Tennant v.
Braie, Tothill [Ed. 1820], 77.) .

These authorities, cited by counsel for appellant, are di-
rectly to the point stated and seem to be conclusive of it.
Had the devisee not been lawfully married at the date of
the last publication of the will of the testator, I should be
of the opinion that, under the arguments and authoritics of
the counsel for appellees, the peculiar conditions of the
will here considered would be upheld; but wholly other-
wise when the.marriage had been solemnized before the
publication of the will.

The decree of the district court is reversed and the cause
is remanded with a direction to that court to enter a decrce
in accordance with this opinion.

JUDGMENT ACCORDINGLY.

THE other judges concur,




Vor. 30] SEPTEMBER TERM, 1890. 161

Blerbower v. Miller.

ErLs L. BiErBowER v. JonNx F. MILLER.
[FILED SEPTEMBER 16, 1890.]

Romoval of Caises: LoOAL PREJUDICE: AMOUNT IN CONTRO-
VERsY. The right of a non-resident defendant to remove a sunit
from any state court to the circuit court of the United States,
upon the ground that from prejudice or local influence he will
not be able to obtain justice in such state court, etec., is confined
to cases in which the matter in dispute exceeds, exclusive of in-
terest and costs, the sum or value of two thousand dollars.

ERRoR to the district court for Lancaster county. Tried
below before CHAPMAN, J.

Monigomery & Jeffrey, for plaintiffs in error:

The application for removal was properly made to the
federal court. (Fisk v. Henarie, 32 Fed. Rep., 422; Ma-
lone v. R. Co., 35 Id., 628; Kaitel v. Wylie, 38 Id., 865.)
The right to remove accrues to any non-resident defendant,
when there is a controversy between him and a citizen of &
state where suit is brought (Fisk v. Henarie, supra); and
the right is not confined to cases wheve the controversy is
separable (Whelan v. R. Co., 35 Fed. Rep., 849.)

G. M. Lambertson, contra:

The cause was not removable under the act of 1887, be-
cause (1) intervenors cannot remove when the state court
alone had jurisdiction at the commencement of the action
(Ohlquist v. Farwell,13 Fed. Rep., 305 ; Allin v. Robinson,
1 Dill. [U.8. C. C.], 119, and citations; Houston, etc., R.
Co. v. Shirley,111 U. 8,,358; Cable v. Ellis, 110 Id., 396;
Thorn, ete., Co. v. Fuller,122 1d., 535; Phelps v. Oaks, 117
1d., 236; Stewart v. Dunham, 115 1d., 64; Bronson v.
Lumber Co., 35 Fed. Rep., 634); (2) not all defendants
are non-residents, nor did all join in the application for

11
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removal (Sewing Machine Cases, 18 Wall. [U. 8.], 553;
Vannevar v. Bryant, 21 1d., 41 ; Hancock v. Holbrook, 119
U. 8., 586);_(3) it could not have been commenced origi-
nally in the circuit court (McNeil Co. v. Howland, 99 N.
Car., 202 [6 Am. 8t. Rep., 513]; King v. Cornell, 106 U.
8., 395; Smith v. Lyon, 133 1d., 315; Malene v. R. Co., 36
Fed. Rep., 625) ; (4) the amount is less than $2,000 (Ma-
lone v. R. Co., supra). The interests of defendants in such
actions are not severable (Louisville R. Co. v, Ide, 114 U.
S, 52; Putnam v. Ingraham, 1d., 57; Pirie v. Tvedt, 115
U. 8, 41; Sloane v. Anderson, 117 1d., 2756; Thorn, ec.,
Co. v. Fuller, 122 1d., 635.)

Coss, CH. J.

The plaintiff in the court below alleged that on Novem-
ber 11, 1886, he was the owner and in possession of a gen-
eral stock of goodsand merchandise in Deloit, Holt county,
consisting of dry goods, clotliing, hats and caps, boots and
shoes, hardware, groceries, fruits and candies, powder and
shot, paints and varnishes, trunks, and such other goods
as are kept in a country store, also counters, show cases,
lamps, and other fixtures, with books and book accounts,
in all of the value of $3,200, as per schedule attached,
Exhibit A; that on said day Ellis L. Bierbower, who is
made defendant, wrongfully, forcibly, and unlawfully took
said goods from the possession of the plaintiff and con-
verted them to his own use, to the plaintiff’s damage
$3,250.

II. And for a second cause of action alleged that on said
day he was engaged in a large and profitable retail business
of buying and selling general merchandise at Deloit, Holt
county, and was the owner and in possession of the goods
and stock of merchandise hereinbefore mentioned.

That on said day the defendant forcibly, wrongfully, and
unlawfully took possession of all of said goods and chat~
tels, and converted them to his own use,
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IIT. That prior to said day the plaintiff had borne a
good character as a merchant, and was in good financial
credit and standing.

IV. That by the wrongful acts of the defendant in tak-
ing pnssession of said goods and converting them to his
own use the plaintiff has been greatly injured in his good
name, credit, and Business standing insomuch that various
merchants and persons who formerly dcalt with him have
ceased to do so, and he is no longer able to buy goods on
credit of foreign merchants as he was formerly accustomed
to do, whereby he has lost gains which otherwise would
have accrued in his business; that by said wrongful acts
his business has been broken up and destroyed by the de-
fendant, to the damage of the plaintiff $3,250, of which
there Las been paid $1,287, leaving a balance due of
$1,963, with interest at seven per cent per annum from
November 11, 1886, for which he asks judgment.

The defendant made his special appearance in the suit
for the purpose of objecting to the sufficiency of the serv-
ice of the summons, and to the jurisdiction of the court
over his person, for the reason:

“That he is a resident of Douglas county, and was at
the time of the service of the summons, and now is, and
long had been marshal of the United States circuit and
district courts for this state, and as such was under an
order in pursuance of the duties of his office, and was re-
quired to be in attendance upon the sessions of the January
term, 1888, of said circuit and district courts, by law held
at Lincoln, in Lancaster county, at the time of the service
of the summons upon him, and that the pretended service
of the same upon him was while he was so in the discharge
of his official dutics at and in Lancaster county, in attend-
ance upon said courts as required by law, and is wholly
void, and he should not be further required to answer or
obey said summons.”

On April 20, 1888, at the February term of the court
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below, the motion to quash the service of summons on
defendant was heard and argued and was overruled, to
which the defendant excepted on the record.

On June 9, 1838, at the May term of the court below,
the motion of William Groneweg and John Schocentgen
for leave to intervene as parties defendant was heard aud
argued and was sustained ; and for answer to the plaintiff’s
petition they state:

“That they deny each and every allegation in the peti-
tion contained.

“Count II. They admit that on November 11, 1886,
they directed the United States marshal to levy upon a
certain stock of merchandise in the town of Deloit, Ne-
braska, the taking of which is the seizure complained of,
but whether Exhibit A is a correct list of the property
taken defendants are unable to say, but deny the same and
leave plaintiff to his proof. They allege that plaintiff’s
claim to the property is based upon a pretended purchase
made from D. L. Cramer and D. V. Coe, or one of them,
without consideration and with the purpose and intent on
the part of all of them to hinder, delay, and defraud these
defendants and other creditors of Cramer and Coe, who
were at the time of said pretended sale greatly embarrassed
financially, and unable to meet their obligations, and were
insolvent, all of which was then well known to the plaint-
iff, by reason of which defendants allege:the plaintiff’s
claim is fraudulent and he cannot recover.

“Count ITI. For further answer defendants aver that on
November —, 1886, they commenced their action in the cir-
cuit court of the United States for the district of Nebraska,
claiming of D. L. Cramer and D. V. Coe $1,800, upon
certain promissory notes of theirs, in pursuance of which
a writ of attachment was issued and levied upon the prop-
erty as stated in count II of this answer; that on Decem-
ber 4, 1886, the plaintiff herein filed in said cause in said
circuit court his petition as follows:
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“¢Comes now John F. Miller, as intervenor, and informs
this court and avers that the property attached herein be-
longs to him, and so belonged at the time it was seized and
levied upon by virtue of the order of attachment herein,
and at the time of making said levy said property was in
the possession of said intervenor in the county of Holt, in
this state, and was wrongfully, unlawfully, and forcibly
taken from his possession without his consent.

“¢IL Since the taking of said property from his pos-
session he has demanded of the marshal a return of the
same, and said marshal has refused to return or in any
manner account for the same. He prays that said attached
property be returned to him and that he have judgment
for his costs.’ :

“That on February 23, 1887, at a term of the United
States circuit court, then being held at Lincoln, the plaint-
iff’s claim was tried and submitted to a jury, upon which
was the following verdict:

“‘GRONEWEG AND SCHOENTGEN,

D. L. CRAMER ET AL., DEFENDANTS,

Jorx F. MILLER, INTERVENOR.

“¢We, the jury, find that at the time of the taking of
the property herein attached, the title to the property, and
the possession of the same was in the intervenor, John F.
Miller, and was then of the value of $2,800, and the price
at which the same was sold by the marshal was $1,260.’

“The plaintiff thereupon elected to take, and did take
and receive from the United States marshal the amount in
his hands realized by the sale of said attached property,
which is the sum of $1,287, mentioned in the second count
of plaintiff’s petition.+

“And defendants a]lege that all the claim of the plaint-
iff against them, arising out of said attachment, was fully
adjudicated and settled in said intervening proceedings, and
plaintiff cannot now relitigate the same.”
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On June 29, 1888, at said May term of the court below,
leave was given defendant Bierbower to answer instanter
and answer was filed as follows:

“The said defendant says that in whatever he did in the
premises he did in his capacity of United States marshal,
under the direction of Groneweg and Schoentgen, and has
no interest in the controversy; that said defendaunts are
wholly responsible, if anybody, for whatever damage, if
any, was sustained by plaintiff on account of said levy and
seizure and attachment complained of. Defendant denies
each and every allegation in said petition contained.”

The plaintiff replied to the respective answers of de-
fendants, denying each and every allegation therein con-
tained not expressly admitted.

“II. He admits that he purchased the property levied
on by defendant Bierbower at the instance of the other
defendants, but denies that the same was made with any
fraudulent intent, or with intent to defraud Groneweg or
Schoentgen, or any of the creditors of the vendor. On the
other hand, such purchase was bona fide and for a valua-
ble consideration. He denies that Cramer and Coe were
financially embarrassed and that he had full knowledge of
that fact at the time he made the purchase.

“JII. He admits the allegations in the third count of
the answer respecting the intervention of the plaintiff in a
suit in the circuit court of the United States by Groenweg
and Schoentgen against Cramer and Coe, being that in
which the attachment was issued, except the plaintiff’s
rights were absolutely concluded in that proceeding, and
by the decree of that court they were barred from prose-
cuting this action. Plaintiff denies that his intervention
in this action and the proceedings and judgment that fol-
lowed are a bar to the proceedings of this action. On the
other hand plaintiff avers that by the verdict and judg-
ment of the circuit court, the title and ownership of the
property in question were conclusively found to be in him,
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and the defendants are thereby barred and estopped from
setting up the defense and claim that the plaintiff is not the
owner of the property in question, or that the sale to him
was a fraudulent one, as all those matters were put in issue
by the answer of the defendants filed therein in reply to
intervenor’s petition as follows:

“¢GRONEWEG AND SCHOENTGEN, PLAINTIFFS,

V. ’

CRAMER AND COE, DEFENDANTS, AND

JouN F. MILLER, INTERVENOR,.

“¢They admit that at the time of the levy, said inter-
venor was in the possession of the property attached, and
that the marshal refused to return to him the property
taken, and they deny every other allegation in his petition
contained.

«¢II. Plaintiffs allege that they are informed and believe
and charge that the intervenor claims the title to said prop-
erty by virtue of a pretended sale thereof, made by D. V.
Coe, and plaintiffs allege that said pretended sale is void for
the reason that the same was without consideration ; that at
the time said Coe was largely indebted to plaintiffs and other
creditors, of which the intervenor had notice ; that said
pretended sale was made with the fraudulent purpose and
intent to hinder, delay, and defraud the creditors of said
Coe, in collecting their claims against him, and said con-
veyance was received by the said intervenor with the
fraudulent intent and purpose to assist Coe in hindering,
delaying, and defrauding his creditors.

«¢III. Plaintiffs farther say that they are informed and
believe and charge that at.the time of the said pretended sale
of the said property there was no delivery thercof, nor did
said intervenor take possession until a long time thereafter,
nor was any instrument conveying said property, nor copy
thereof, filed in the office of the county clerk of O’Neill
county, wheresaid Coe then resided, and by reason of such
fact the pretended conveyance is absolutely void by force
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of the statute in such cases, and no rights in or to said
attached property accrued to said intervenor thereunder.’

“The plaintiffs aver that while the title to the property
in question was adjudged in that proceeding to be in the
plaintiffs, yet the court by its final judgment simply ordered
the payment of the amount realized at the marshal’s sale,
instead of the full value of the goods found by the jury, and
expressly reserved to these plaintiffs in said judgment the
right to prosecute this action against the defendant for the
full damages occasioned by the levy of the attachment, as
appears by the judgment of the circuit court of the United
States for the district of Nebraska as follows :

V.
CrAMER AND COE, DEFENDANTS, AND
Joux F. MILLER, INTERVENOR. J

€¢(GRONEWEG AND SCHOENTGEN 1

¢ This cause was heard on the motion for a new trial
and in arrest of judgment, and the motion of the intervenor
to correct the judgment entered in this action, and it is
ordered and adjudged that the marshal and clerk pay over
to the intervenor the amount of money now in their hands
realized upon the sale of the goods and property claimed
by the said intervenor, to-wit, the sum of $1,289.34, and
seized by the marshal by virtue of a writ of attachment
issued in this cause. )

“¢This order to be without prejudice to the rights of
John F. Miller to bring suit against the marshal or the
plaintiffs for the recovery of damages caused by the illegal
" seizure and detention of the goods and property seized
under said writ of attachment, and for the recovery of the
full value of the same.

“¢It is further adjudged that the intervenor recover the
costs of his intervention herein, and that the plaintiffs pay
all costs of the seizure and sale of the goods and property
levied upon by the marshal under the writ of attachment
and now adjudged to be the property of the intervenor.
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It is ordered that the motion for a new trial and arrest of
judgment be overruled.’

“ Wherefore plaintiff asks that the prayer of the petition
be granted, and judgment be allowed for the amount prayed
for therein.

“STIPULATION OF TIE PARTIES IN THE COURT BELOW.
FiLep NoveEMBER 22, 1888.

It is hereby stipulated that this case shall not be tried
before December 15, 1888, and not then except by agree-
ment of parties, and in consideration the defendants agree
that they will make no application to remove the cause to
the federal court, but that the same shall be tried in this
court.

“Tt is further stipulated that the original files marked
by the clerk of the circuit court of the United States, in
the cause of Groneweg and Schoentgen against Cramer et
al., including the petition of intervention of John F. Mil-
ler, and the answer thcreto, and the reply to the answer,
may be used and treated on the trial of the cause the same
as copies duly certified by the clerk of the circuit court.

“At a session of the circuit court of the United States
at Omaha, on May 13, 1889, before Hon. Elmer 8. Dundy,’
U. S. district judge, the cause of John F. Miller, plaintiff,
against William Groneweg and John Schoentgen, defend-
ants, was heard upon the defendants’ petition for the
removal of the cause from the district court of the state
of Nebraska, for Lancaster county, to the circuit court of
the United States for the district of Nebraska, and upon
the proofs offered in support thereof, and it having been
made to appear that from prejudice and local influence the
said defendants will not be able to obtain justice in the
court in which this action is pending, or in any other state
court to which said defendants may on account of such
prejudice or local influence have a right under the laws of
the state of Nebraska to remove this cause, and it further
appearing that this suit is oné properly removable under
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the acts of the congress of the United States to the said
circuit court, it is hereby ordered that the said suit be, and
the same hereby is, removed from the said state district
court of Nebraska within and for the county ‘of Lancaster
into the circuit court of the United States for the district of
Nebraska.”

On May 22, 1889, there was a trial in the court below
to a jury and verdict for the plaintiff for $1,780, with
judgment for that sum and costs, $41.15.

Subsequently the defendants filed their motion to vacate
the judgment, set aside the verdict, and grant a new trial
for the reasons:

1. Because the verdict is not sustained by the evidence
and the law in the case, and was rendered by the jury
without authority to render it, because the court was with-
out jurisdiction to try the cause at the time it was tried.

II. Because the verdict is contrary to law, the court and
jury being without jurisdiction to try the cause and render
the verdict.

III. Because of error at law occurring at the trial and
excepted to by defendants, and especially because the court
had no jurisdiction of the cause or right to try it at the
time of trial, which motion was heard and overruled.

The plaintiffs in error assign the following causes for
review :

I. The district court was without jurisdiction to try the
cause.

II. The court erred in overruling defendants’ objection
to the trial of the cause prior to the trial and to the impan-
eling of the jury.

III. The court erred in overruling defendants’ objection
to the introduction of evidence.

IV. In rendering final judgment in favor of the plaint-
iff below.

V. In overruling defendants’ motion for a new trial.

The above assignments all resolve themselves into a
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single proposition of law, to-wit, that the cause having
been removed from the district court of the state of Ne-
braska to the circuit court of the United States, the former
tribunal was, at tlie date of the trial and judgment com-
plained of, without jurisdiction to hear or determine the
cause, and therefore said judgment is erroneous. Doubtless
if the premises be true both in fact and in law, the conclu-
sion follows. If the action had been, pursuant to the law
of the land, removed from the district court, then its judg -
ment is void and should be reversed. But it is quite
conceivable that certain forms of law may have been gone
through with for the purpose of removing said cause, and
the circuit court may have assumed jurisdiction of it when
in law the case remained with the district court, and this
is the case whatever steps were taken, if the cause is not
one of those of which the circuit court of the United States
has jurisdiction under the law, and the removal of which
from the state to the federal courts has been provided for
by law, and that it is not, is the contention of the defendants -
in error. .

In disposing of the case I will give the act of congress
of March 3, 1887, such examination as is dcemed necessary
in order to express my views of its application to the case
at bar, but will make no attempt to reconcile the conflict-
ing opinions of the courts in respect thereto. The title of
the act is “An act to amend the act of congress approved
March 3, 1875, entitled ‘An act to determine the jurisdic-
tion of the circuit courts of the United States and to reg-
ulate the removal of causes from state courts and for other
purposes, and to further regulate the jurisdiction of circuit
courts of the United States and for other purposes.’”
By the act of which this is amendatory it was provided
that the circuit courts of the United States should have
original cognizance, concurrent with the courts of the sev-
eral states, of all suits of a civil nature, at common law or in
equity, where the matter in dispute exceeded, exclusive of
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" costs, the sum or value of five hundred dollars and arising
under the constitution or laws of the United States, or trea-

ties made or which should be made under their authority,
or in which the United States were plaintiffs or petitioners,
or in which there should be a controversy between citizens
of different states. By the amendatory act it is provided
that the circuit courts of the United States shall have orig-
inal cognizance, concurrent with the courts of the several
states, of all suits of a civil nature, at common law or in
equity, where the matter in dispute exceeds, exclusive of
interest and costs, the sum or value of two thousand dol-
lars, and arising under their authority, or in which contro-
versy the United States are plaintiffs or petitioners, or in
which there shall be a controversy between citizens of
different states, in which the matter in dispute exceceds,
exclusive of interest and costs, the sum or value aforesaid.

It clearly appears from the language of the first section
of the amendatory act that where there is a controversy

" between citizens of different states, the circuit court of the

United States has jurisdiction, provided the matter in dis-
pute exceeds, exclusive of interest and costs, the sum or
value of two thousand dollars, and it is as certain, although
not expressed in words, that such court has not jurisdiction
if the matter in controversy, exclusive of costs, does not
exceed the sum or value of two thousand dollars. Itis
equally certain from the reading of the first section that
the matter in controversy shall exceed, exclusive of inter-
est and costs, the sum or value of two thousand dollars,
as it is that the controversy must be between citizens of
different states. .The jurisdiction of the federal court is
as much dependent upon one of the facts as it is upon
the other; in the absence of either that court has not
Jjurisdiction of the cases mentioned:in the third provision
of the first section of the amendatory act. In the enact-
ment of the amendatory law the intent of congress was
to raise the minimum sum or value of the matter in dis-
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pute from five hundred dollars, exclusive of costs, to two
thousand dollars, exclusive of interest and costs.

The second section of the amendatory act provides:

“That amy suit of a civil nature, at law or in equity,
arising under the constitution or laws of the United States,
or treaties made, or which shall be made under their au-
thority, of which the circuit courts of the United States are
given original jurisdiction by the preceding section, which
may now be pending, or which may hereafter be brought
in any state court, may be removed by the defendant or de-
fendants therein to the circuit court of the United States
for the proper district. Any other suit of a civil nature,
at law or in equity, of which the circuit courts of the
United States are given jurisdiction by the preceding sec-
tion, and which are now pending, or which may hereafter
be, brought in any state court, may be removed into the cir-
cuit court of the United States for the proper district by
the defendant or defendants therein, being non-residents
of that state. And when in any suit mentioned in this
section there shall be a controversy which is wholly be-
tween citizens of different states, and which can be fully
determined as between them, then either one or more of the
defendants actually interested in such controversy may re-
move said suit into the circuit court of the United States
for the proper district. Apd where a suit is now pending, or
may be hereafter brought in any state court in which there
is a controversy between a citizen of the state in which the
suit is brought, and a citizen of another state, any defend-
ant, being such citizen of another state, may remove such
suit into the circuit court of the United States for the
proper district at any time before the trial thereof, when it
shall be made to appear to said circuit court that from prej-
udice or local influence he will not be able to obtain justice
in such state court, or in any other state court to which
said defendant may under the laws of the state have the
right, on account of such prejudice or local influence, to re-
move said caunse.”
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Under this scction it is claimed that a defendant may,
where there is a controversy between citizens of different
states, remove a pending cause into the circuit court of the
United States for the proper district, regardless of the sum
or value of the matter in dispute. That no application
for a removal nced be made to the state court, and that no
petition for a removal need be filed in the state court, and
that no bond is required of the party removing.

It is clear that under section 2 of the amendatory act
only those suits are recmovable to the federal court ot
which that court was given jurisdiction by the preceding
section (section 1 of the amendatory act). In other
words, only such sunits can be removed into the circuit
courts as could originally have been commenced there.
The clause of section 2, which authorizes a defendant to
remove a suit into the circuit court on account of prcjudice
or local influence, simply gives the right of removal at any
time before the trial and dispenses with petition and bond,
while in other cases of removal the petition or application
therefor must be filed in the state court at or before the
time that the defendant is by the state law or rule of the
state court required to answer or plead. But this clause
of the second section is to be construed with the preceding
clanse of the same section, which requires, as a prerequisite
to removal, that the matter in dispute shall exceed the
specified amount.

In the enactment of this amendatory act congress evi-
dently had in view the fact that if a party desired to re-
move a case on the ground of citizenship alone he could
as well make his application therefor on or before the
answer day as thereafter, but that he might not be aware
of the existence of prejudice or local influence which would
prevent his obtaining justice in the state courts, until after
issues were joined, and hence a party who might be willing
to litigate in the state courts provided he could obtain jus-
tice therein, if he afterwards and before the trial was able
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to make it appear that on account of prejudice or local in-
fluence he could not obtain justice in any state court, should
have the right to remove the case into the federal court at
any time before the trial; but a reasonable interpretation
of the statute does not lead to the conclusion that a de-
fendant could remove a case where the amount in contro-
versy did not exceed two thousand dollars; and hence of
a class of cases of which jurisdiction had not been con-
ferred upon the federal courts. It is the first section alone
of the amendatory act which gives the federal court juris-
diction ; the second and third sections simply provide the
manner in which causes shall be brought within that juris-
diction. Had it been the intent of congress to authorize
a defendant to remove a suit in which was involved less
than- the prescribed amount, the first section of the act, the
section giving jurisdiction, would have conferred upon the
circuit courts of the United States jurisdiction, concurrent
with the courts of the several states, of all suits of a civil
nature, at common law or in equity, in which there was a
controversy between a citizen of the state in which the
suit was brought and a citizen of another state, without
regard to the sum or value of the matter in controversy,
whenever it should be made to appear to said circuit court
that the defendant in such suit, not being a citizen of the
state where the suit is brought, could not, on account of
prejudice or local influence, obtain justice in any state court.
" That congress did not, in terms, confer such jurisdiction
regardless of the amount involved argues strongly against
the contention that a defendant may under the last clause
of the second section remove a suit into the federal court
regardless of the amount involved.

The position that the last clause of section 2 relates
merely to the time when the defendant may make his ap-
plication for removal, and dispenses with the petition or
bond, is strengthened by the first part of section 3, which
reads as follows: “Sec. 3. That whenever any party entitled
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to remove any suit mentioned in the next preceding section,
except in such cases as are provided for in the last clause
of said section, may desire to remove such suit from a state
court to the circuit court of the United States, he may
make and file a petition in such state court at the time, or
any time before the defendant is required by the laws of
the state or the rule of the state court in which such suit
is brought to answer or plead to the declaration or com-
plaint of the. plaintiff, for the removal of such suit into
the circnit court to be held in the district where such suit
is pending, and shall make and file therewith a bond, with
good and sufficient surety for his or their entering in such
circuit court on the first day of its then next session a copy
of the record in such suit, and for paying all costs that
may be awarded by the said circuit court if said court shall
hold that such suit was wrongfully or improperly removed
thereto, and also for their appearing and entering special
bail, if special bail was originally requisite therein.”

It thus appears from the third section that in all cases,
except those mentioned in the last clause of section 2, viz.,
“those where the defendant may remove on the ground of
prejudice or local influence, the party entitled to remove
must file his petition on or before the answer day, and must
file therewith the prescribed bond; while in the cases men-
tioned in the last clause of the second section the applica-
tion for removal may be made at any time, and the cause
may be removed at any time before trial, provided it be
made to appear to the circuit court that by reason of prej-
udice or local influence the defendant will not be able to
obtain justice in the state courts, Before it can be held
that the purpose of congress was to confer upon the federal
courts jurisdiction of suits between citizens of different
states, regardless of the sum or amount in controversy,
under a statute the first section of which confers such
jurisdiction, there must be something in the section which
confers jurisdiction showing that intent. There being, as
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I conceive, nothing either in the letter or spirit of the
statute, I conclude that no such jurisdiction was conferred.
The act of September 24, 1787, conferred jurisdiction
“of all suits of a civil nature, at common law or in equity,
where the matter in dispute, exclusive of costs, exceeds the
sum or value of fivé hundred dollars, and an alien is a
party, or the suit is between a citizen of the state where the
suit is brought and a citizen of another state.” This pro-
vision remained undisturbed until the passage of the act
approved March 8, 1875, in which act jurisdictional lan-
guage somewhat different is used, but so far as the limita-
tion of guch jurisdiction to suits where the matter in dis-
pute exceeds, exclusive of costs, the sum or value of five
hundred dollars is concerned, it is substantially the same.
And the act of 1875 contains a repealing clause by which
all acts and parts of acts in conflict with the provisions of
said act are thereby repealed. The act of March 3, 1887,
is, a8 we have seen, amendatory of the act of 1875, and its
provisions, including the jurisdictional clause, are made
expressly to take the place of the provisions of said act.
So that, as I conclude, there is no act of congress now
in force conferring -jurisdiction upon the circuit court un-
accompanied by the limitation of two thousand dollars.
It is probably unnecessary here to meet the possible ob-
jection that the judicial power of the United States, having
been declared by the 1st clause, 2d section, of 3d article of
the constitution of the United States, to “extend to * *
controversies * * * between citizens of different states,”
that jurisdiction exists in the circuit court by virtue of that
instrument. This question was before the supreme court
of the United States in the case of Sheldon v. Sill, 49
U. 8., 440, where it was expressly held that (I quote the
gyllabus): “Courts created by statute can have no jurisdic-
tion but such as the statute confers.” The circuit court of
the United States, thus having been created by act of con-
gress, received and retains its jurisdiction in such terms and
12
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with limitations as congress has expressed and imposed.
The circuit court therefore being without jurisdiction to
order the removal of the cause from the district court of
this state to the circuit court of the United Stutes for the
district of Nebraska, for the reason that the matter in dis-
pute did not exceed, exclusive of interest and costs, the
sum or value of two thousand dollars, the district court of
this state was not divested of jurisdiction to hear and de-
termine said cause, notwithstanding the record presented
in the case. *
The judgment of the district court is

AFFIRMED.
Norvay, J., concurs.

MaxweLL, J., dissenting.

I concur in the opinion of Judge CoBB so far as the
points stated in the syllabus are involved. I am unable,
however, to agree with him that the petition for removal
_ on the ground of bias or prejudice is to be filed in the fed-
eral court. We must remember that the state and federal
courts are of concurrent jurisdiction in cases where the de-
fendant is a non-resident of the state and the amount in-
volved, exclusive of interest and costs, exceeds the sum of
$2,000. In such case the defendant may remove the case
into the federal court. Ordinarily his petition must be
filed before the time to answer. In case of alleged bias or
prejudice, however, he may file the petition at any time
before trial. And this in my view is the exception in
the third section of the act—that is, that in all cases ex-
cept those where bias or prejudice are shown the petition
must be filed before the answer day, while in cases of
alleged bias or prejudice it may be filed at any time before
the trial. If the petition shows a prima facie case for re-
moval, the state court should, and, so far as I am advised,
invariably has ordered the cause removed.
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If the plaintiff disputes the charge of bias or prejudice
he may then appear in the federal court and contest the
charge. In this respect the act of 1887 differs from that
of 1867. Under the former act, upon the proper affidavit
being filed in the state court, although false in fact, the case
was ordered removed. Under the present statute, however,
it requires more than a prima facie case to justify the re-
tention of the case by the federal court. There must in
fact be bias or prejudice shown so that it would prevent a
fair trial.

The mere fact of a petition being filed in the state court
and the cause ordered removed, will not prevent the plaint-
iff from appcaring in the federal court and contesting the
truth of the charge. The language of the statute is some-
what vague, but this is the evident purpose. The object
of the statute was to restrict the right of removal, not to
extend it, and this fact must be kept in view. In other
words, the act is not remedial in the sense of extending
the jurisdiction of the federal courts, but was intended to
curtail such jurisdiction. It does not create a new mode
of removal, but in many respects limits the old.

Section 61 of the Code of Civil Procedure provides:
“That in all cases in which it shall be made to appear to
the court that a fair and impartial trial cannot be had in
the county where the suit is pending, or where the judge is
interested or has been of counsel in the case or subject-
matter thereof, or is related to either of the parties, or is
otherwise disqualified to sit, the court may, on application
of either party, change the place of trial to some adjoin-
ing county wherein such impartial trial can be had; but if
the objection be against all the counties of the district, then
to the nearest county in the adjoining district.” In order
to show cause for removal it must "-e alleged in the peti-
tion, and, if denied, proved, that a fair and impartial trial
cannot be had in the county where the suit is pending or
other counties in the district; or, if the objection applies to
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all of the counties of the district, then to the nearest county
in' an adjoining district to which the objection does not
apply.

It is of the utmost importance that there should be no
clashing of jurisdiction between the state and federal courts.
From the necessity of the case the supreme court of the
United States is the ultimate arbiter in all cases of doubt,
and in its decision the state courts cheerfully acquiesce. It
would be a sad spectacle, however, to witness a race be-
tween the state and federal courts for the commencement
or retention of business in either of said courts. This, no
doubt, has been felt by both courts and every effort made
to avoid a conflict; and on the part of the state court of
this state at least many cases have been surrendered, or
rather permitted to be removed, while the papers on their
face did not show the right of removal. This, in my view,
should not be permitted, as the court should not surrender
its jurisdiction except upon a showing that another court
is entitled to exercise it. In many cases an improper re-
moval operates as a great wrong upon the party against
whom it is made, by subjecting him to great and unneces-
sary costs.

This is not a question of courtesy between courts, but
must be determined by the law asitexists. The prejudice
act of 1867 arose out of matters connected with the war;
it has never had any solid foundation in this state.

There are twenty-one judges of the district courts of
this state. Many of these judges had held important
offices of trust and profit for many years before being called
to the bench. They are capable lawyers whose integrity
is unquestioned, In an equity case how can an affiant
swear that these twenty-one judges are biased or prejudiced
against him? They are men of whom he has no personal
knowledge in all probability, and they probably have no
knowledge of him whatever.

It is very plain that an oath that they are all biased or
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prejudiced against him, borders very closely upon perjury ;
and even where the oath is predicated upon the prejudice
or bias of the people of a particular county, no one can
truthfully assert that the people in the more than ninety
counties of this state are prejudiced against the affiant.
There are many reasons why the district court should
not surrender its jurisdiction until a proper showing is
made in that court. Suppose an action is brought for less
than $2,000 and the case is removed into the federal court,

and judgment or a decree of foreclosure rendered for a -

sum less than that fixed by statute authorizing the removal
of the cause, how can the validity of such judgment be
upheld? Not by the statute, certainly, for that only au-
thorizes a removal where the amount claimed exceeds
$2,000, exclusive, etc. The effect would seem to be that
the decree of foreclosure, or judgment and all the proceed-
ings thereunder, would be null and void.

The supreme court of the United States has held that
the circuit court was a court of limited jurisdiction and
had cognizance only of a few cases specially circumstanced,
and that the fair presumption was that the cause was with-
out its jurisdiction till the contrary appeared. (Turner v.
Bank of North America, 4 Dallas, 8; Turner v. Enville,
I1d., 7; Bingham v. Cabot, 3 1d., 381.) Being a court
of limited jurisdiction as to parties and amounts, like any
other court of that kind, it must act within its powers. I
do not care to make a comparison with other courts of
limited jurisdiction where judgments in excess of their
powers, as to amounts, have been held to be void; but it
is well known that such is the law. It is necessary, there-
fore, to set forth in the record the facts and circumstances
which give jurisdiction. The importance of taking the
necessary steps to oust the state court of jurisdiction, there-
fore, plainly appear, and until such steps are taken by
filing a proper petition and other papers in the state court,
it should proceed with the case.

In Boyden v. Burke, 55 U. 8., 576, it was held by the
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supreme court of the United States that a lawful demand
must be made in a respectful manner. Surely the same
rule will be applied where it is sought to oust a court
having lawful jurisdiction of an action.

More than one hundred years ago the original act for the
removal of cause was passed, one of the requisites of
which was that a petition showing the necessary facts to
entitle the petitioner to remove the cause, together with a
bond, shounld be filed in the state court. This law is still

- in full force and applies to all cases.

In Trafton v. Nougues, 4 Central Law Journal, 230, in
a case before the United States circuit court of California,
Judge Sawyer says: '

“I think it is of the highest importance to the rights of
honest litigants, and to the due and speedy administration
of justice, that a petition for transfer should state the exact
facts and distinctly poiut out what the question is and how
and where it will arise which gives jurisdiction to the court
so that the court can determine for itself from the facts
whether the suit does really and substantially involve a
dispute or controversy properly within its jurisdiction.
‘Whenever, therefore, the record fails to distinctly show
such facts in a case transferred to this court it will be re-
turned to the state court.”

I fully concur in all that is said above, but unless a
prima facie case is made for removal, it is the duty of the
state court to procced with the trial, and it should not sur-
render its jurisdiction unless a proper application is made
to it showing the necessary facts for that purpose, while,
if a prima facie case is made for removal, the cause should
be ordered removed.

If upon such petition being filed the state courts refused
to transfer the case, there might be a just cause of com-
plaint, but no such case has occurred in this state, so far as
this court is advised, and the respect due to the state no
less than the federal court requires that the proceedings be
conducted in an orderly manner and in conformity to law.
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M. E. GANDY ET AL. V. J. M. EARLY.

[FiLep SEprEMBER 16, 1890.]

Trial: ORDER OF PROOF: VARIATION. The statute prescribes the
order of proof on the trial of a cause. This, however, may be
varied by the court where it will work no injustice to the parties.
If a plaintiff fail to introduce all his evidence in chief in open-
ing his case and afterwards, when off:ring evidence to rebut the
defendant’s proof, introduces evidence in chief, the defendant
has a right to offer proof to deny, modify, or explain such new
evidence.

ERrror to the district court for Richardson county.
Tried blow before APPELGET, J.

E. W. Thomas, for plaintiffs in error.
F. Martin, and E. A. Tucker, contra.

MAxweLL, J.

This action was brought in the district court of Rich-
ardson county by the defendant in error against the
plaintiffs in error to recover the possession of certain per-
sonal property, or, in case the same could not be recovered,
of the value thereof, which is to be alleged to be the sum
of $350. The answer is a general denial.

The property was not taken under the order of replevin
and the action proceeded as one for damages.

On the trial of the cause the jury rendered a verdict in
favor of the defendant in error and against the plaintifts in
error for the sum of $350, for which judgment was ren-
dered.

The plaintiff in error in support of the motion for a new
trial filed the following affidavit :

“I, E. W. Thomas, being duly sworn, say I am attorney
for defendant in the above action and was so when the
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same was tried March 8th and 9th last week. On the trial
of said cause, after plaintiff had introduced his evidence
tending to prove that one of the notes offered in evidence
by plaintiff (to-wit, the note for $95.50) had been paid by
plaintiff and his brother turning over and giving to de-
fendant two timber claims. I called James L. Gandy and
attempted to prove by him that said note had never been
paid either in whole or in part, and I then asked said
Gandy a question to that effect, but the court refused to
allow said question to be asked and, as I understood the
matter, the court ordered that said question should not be
taken down by the reporter, with my exceptions to the
rulings of said court about the same. Thereupon I pre-
sented to the court the following offer of proof in writing,
to-wit:

¢« ¢Defendant now offers to prove by the testimony of
James L. Gandy and others that the promissory note,
which is in evidence, dated May 27, 1886, for $95.90 signed
by James M. Early and W. D. Early in favor of M. E.
Gandy, or order, has never been paid either in whole or in
part.’

“The court, however, refused to allow me to put in the
said proof, or to examine the witnessesthereon. To all which
ruling I at the time excepted. Thereupon the court stated
positively that if I should ask any more questions of my
witnesses on any other point than on the question whether
the said larger chattel mortgage had been changed since it
was executed and delivered I must retire from the case, or
the court would fine me for contempt. I at the same time
asked of witness E. D. W. Sheckell, whom I then had on
the stand, whether or not he had heard James W. Early,
on December 1, 1887, at a certain restaurant nearly oppo-
site the Filson house in Humboldt, Nebraska, say that he
(Early) was then justly indebted to M. E. Gandy in the
sum of $150. ’

“In asking the said question I attempted to put to the
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witness the same question I had asked, and about the same
matter on which I had cross-examined plaintiff when upon
the stand as a witness for himself. The court refused to
permit said question to be asked, to which ruling I then
excepted. The court, as I understood ‘the matter, ordered
that my objections and exceptions do not appear upon the
reporter’s record. To all of which I at the time excepted.
The court ordered positively, and under a threat of fine
for disobedience, that I should not ask any questions what-
ever, except such as might tend to prove that said chattel
mortgage had not been altered since it was made. By the
said order of the court I was prevented from contradicting
by my witnesses statements which had been made by
plaintiff and his witnesses when presenting their case.
“The said testimony was rejected and said procedings
took place while defendant was offering his testimony after
plaintiff had last examined his witnesses. I make this affi-
davit for the purpose of ‘getting the above facts upon the
record, and with all due respect for the court. I obeyed
the order of the court, and thereupon asked no further
questions than concerning the alleged change of the chattel
mortgage. E. W. THoMas.”

On pages 98-99 of therecord J. L. Gandy, being called
as a witness, testified as follows:

Q. Where was that mortgage made?

A. At my office.

Q. At what place?

A. At my office in Humboldt, Nebraska. After I
made the mortgage I read it over carcfully to Mr. Early,
and he took the mortgage himse]f and read it; then after
reading it he said, “It is all right, but I want it under-
stood that I can sell the stock and you will take the notes
to pay on the mortgage;” and I told him it would be all
right.

Q. I believe Mr. Early stated yesterday that all he got
for that was $30. What about that? (Objected to, as im-
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material and not proper redirect examination. Sustained.
Defendants except.)

Q. Was the consideration for which the note was given
only $30, as stated by Mr. Early?

A. It was not.

Q. What was the consideration then? (The court here
objected to going into this case in chief and orders that no
questions shall be asked witnesses on any subject but as to
the alteration of the mortgage. Defendants except.)

Q. Was the note dated May 27,1886, for $95.90, signed
by James M. Early and W. D. Early, paid? (The court
rules the question inadmissible. Defendants except.)

Q. Defendants offer to prove by the testimony of J. L.
Gandy and others that the note in evidence dated May 27,
1886, for $95.90, signed by James M. Early and W. D.
Early in favor of M. E. Gandy, or order, has never been
paid, either in whole or in part. (The court rules the
question inadmissible and orders that the only thing the
witness can be questioned about is, whether the mortgage
of October 29, 1886, was ever changed. To which ruling
and order the defendants except.)

The action was brought by Early against the Gandys
to recover certain personal property mortgaged by him to
them, or in case the property could not be found, then to
recover the value thereof. His right to recover depended
on the fact that he had paid the debt. In his proof in re-
buttal he introduced evidence which should have been given
in chief, and this is the evidence which the plaintiffs in
error sought to deny or explain. The statute provides the
order of proof on the trial of a case but gives the court a
discretion in admitting evidence out of its proper order.
If, therefore, the court permits a party to introduce ma-
terial evidence out of the proper order, the adverse party
must be permitted if he so desire to introduce proof on
that matter. The law gives to both parties the right to be
heard—that is, each party may present his proof and sub-
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mit it to the court and jury—have his day in court so to
speak, and submit his own side of the controversy, and he
cannot be deprived of this right by the failure of the
plaintiff to introduce all the evidence on which he relies on
the opening of the case. The law favors a full inquiry
into the merits of a controversy so that justice may be done
in the case. Both parties, therefore, must have a fair op-
portunity to offer their proof. This seems to have been
denied in thé case at bar.

The judgment of the district court is reversed and the
cause remanded for further proceedings.

REVERSED AND REMANDED,

THE other judges concur,

G. L. VALLINDINGHANM ET AL. v. W. G. ScorT.

[FiLED SEPTEMBER 186, 1890.]

1, Bill of Exceptions: AFFIDAVITS used on the hearing of a
motion for a new trial must be preserved in the bill of excep-
tions to be available in the supreme court, and cannot be at-
tached as an exhibit to an assignment of error in the motion for
& new trial.

2. Evidence held to sustain the verdict.

ERrRrOR to the district court for Richardson county.
Tried below before BRoADY, J.

E. W. Thomas, for plaintiffs in error.
Frank Martin, and E. A. Tucker, contra.
MaxwELL, J.

This action was brought in the district court of Rich-
ardson county to recover the possession of three mules.
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The property not being taken on the writ, the action pro-
ceeded as one for damages, and on the trial of the cause
a verdict was rendcred in favor of the defendant in error
for the sum of $305. A motion for a new trial having
been overruled, judgment was entered on the verdict.

The first error assigned in this court is the order com-
pelling the plaintiff in error to proceed with the trial of
the cause in the absence of their attorney. To this assign-
ment there is an affidavit of their attorney attached to the
motion for a new trial as an exhibit, but is not certified by
the judge before whom the trial was had nor included in
the bill of exceptions. Under these circumstances the affi-
davit cannot be considered, and there being no evidence in
support of the assignment it must be overruled.

Second—There are a number of assignments of error in
the petition in error which may be grouped together as
containing but one proposition, viz.: That the verdict is
against the weight of evidence.

The defendant in error is a son of Wm. F. Scott, and
claims to be the owner of the property in dispute. His
testimony upon the question of ownership is clear, direct,
and explicit, and he is corroborated by a number of wit-
nesses and not directly contradicted by any.

The father, Wm. F. Scott, who, it is claimed, executed
a chattel mortgage to Gandy, denies that he ever executed
such mortgage. The only evidence in support of the
mortgage is that of Gandy himself. There is no proof
whatever that Wm. F. Scott owned the mules in contro-
versy at the time the mortgage in question was executed,
while, personally, he denies such ownership.

It is difficult to perceive, therefore, how the jury could
have rendered a different verdict in the case. There is no
material error in the record, and the judgment is

AFFIRMED.

THE other judges concur.
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GusT. UPPFALT, APPELLEE, V. AUGUST WOERMANN ET
AL., APPELLANTS,

[FiLEp SEPTEMBER 16, 1890.]

Ejectment: A CoUNTER-CLAIM based on a contract of purchase,
being in the nature of a cross-action, the defendant is not com-
pelled to interpose it in an action of ejectment as a defense. If
he so0 elect he may bring a separate action to enforce the con-
tract, subject, however, to a liability to pay the costs in the sec-
ond case.

ApPpEAL from the district court for Cuming county.
Heard below before PowERs, J.

T. M. Franse, for appellants, cited, on the point that ap-
_ pellee was estopped from usserting an equitable title, since
in the ejectment suit he had remained silent in reference
thereto: Niven v. Belknap, 2 Johns. [N. Y.], 673; Hall
v. Fisher, 9 Barb. [N. Y.], 17; Bank v. Bank, 50 N. Y.,
575; Blair v. Wait, 69 1d., 113; Chouteau v. Goddin, 39
Mo., 229; Dickerson v. Colgrove, 100 U. 8., 578; Jamison
v. Miller, 64 Ia., 402; Tiffany v. Andcrson, 56 1d., 405;
Beebe v. Wilkinson, 30 Minn., 548 ; Pitcher v. Dove, 99
Ind., 175. The subject matter is res adjudicata : Fischli
v. Fischli, 1 Blackf. [Ind.], 360; Stockion v. Ford, 18
How. [U.S.], 418; Doty v. Brown, 4 Comst. [N. Y.],
71; Babeock v. Camp, 12 O. St., 11; Cromwell v. Sac
County, 94 U. 8., 351; Case v. Beauregard, 101 1d.,
688.

Bruner & Lewis, in reply to the latter contention, cited :
Cromucell v. Sac County, supra; Wilch v. Phelps, 16 Neb.,
515; Brizham v. McDow:ll, 19 1d., 407 ; Russell v. Place,
4 Otto [U. 8.], 606; Nims v. Vaughn, 40 Mich., 356.

41
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MAXwELL, J.

This is an action to enforce specific performance of a
contract. The petition is very long and need not be spe-
cially referred to. The principal defense relied upon is a
prior adjudication, which is set forth in the answer as fol-
lows:

*The defendants further allege that on or about the 29th
day of September, 1883, the defendant John Nelson com-
nienced in the district court in and for Cuming county,
Nebraska, a court having jurisdiction of the parties and of
the subject-matter of the action, a suit in ejectment against
the plaintiff Gust. Uppfalt to recover possession of the land
described in plaintiff’s petition herein, and that said. suit
was based upon the same title and claim of title set forth
in the petition herein as existing in the defendants Scran-
ton, Olson, and Nelson; that said Uppfalt appeared in said
action and based his defense upon the same contract and
equitable rights thereunder set up by him as the basis of
this action; that such proceedings were had in that case,
that final judgment was in due time, and before the com-
mencement of this action, rendered therein, awarding the
possession of said premises to defendant Nelson, plaintiff
in said action; and defendants allege and ask this court to
adjudge that said judgment so rendered is and constitutes
a bar to this action, and that all the questions involved
herein are res adjudicata in the suit so prosecuted to final
judgment.

“That in said suit in ejectment the defendant therein,
plaintiff in this action, on or about May 25, 1886, made
application to the said district court to be compensated for
the same improvements and upon the same premises as are
set forth in the petition in this suit, and that said applica-
tion was heard by said court, and on the 27th of July,
1886, final judgment rendered thereon, denying said ap-
plication ; that said application was based upon the same
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equities as are set forth in the petition herein and made the
basis of this action, and defendants allege and ask this
court to decree that said judgment rendered upon said ap-
plication estops plaintiff from prosecuting this action and
is in law a bar thereto.

“That defendant Olson held a contract of purchase of
the premises in question prior to the contract of plaintiff;
that said contract of purchase was from defendant Scran-
ton and was a legal and valid contract, and was duly filed
for record in the clerk’s office of Cuming county, Nebraska,
on the 23d day of November, 1881, prior to the contract
of plaintiff, which was made December 22, 1882, and that
plaintiff had notice of the same when he took his said con-
tract, and at all times after February 12, 1883, had notice
that the defendant Olson held a warranty deed of said
premises.

“That the defendant Scranton is amply responsible finan-
cially and that if plaintiff has any claim or right under
his contract with said Scranton said plaintiff has an ample
and adequate remedy at law to enforce the same.”

On the trial of the cause the court found as follows:

“1st. That plaintiff on the 7th day of December, 1880,
bought of Wm. W. Scranton, executor of the last will of
Joseph H. Scranton, deceased, the owner thereof, the fol-
lowing property to-wit: the N. } of the 8. W. } of sec-
tion 23, township 22, range 7 east, in Cuming Co., Neb.,
the premises in controversy in this action, for the agreed
price of four hundred and eighty dollars ($480) by an
agreement in writing of that date duly executed by the
said Wm. W, Scranton and said plaintiff.

“2d. That plaintiff paid to said Scranton on said con-
tract the sum of eighty dollars ($80) on December 1, 1880,
and twenty-four dollars ($24) on December 1, 1881, and
on December 1, 1882, the sum of one hundred and twenty-
four dollars ($124), and also the taxes assessed on said
land for the years , amounting to eleven dollars
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(811), and took possession of the same in June, 1882, under
said contract and retained such possession until June, 1886.

“3d. That plaintiff has made improvements on the land
since the exccution of the contract, of the value of two
hundred and fifty dollars ($250).

“4th. That said premises were unoccupied and unim-
proved at the time of such purchase by plaintiff.

“5th. That on the 22d day of December, 1882, the
plaintiff had his said contract duly acknowledged and re-
corded in the numerical index of lands in said county.

“6th. That at the time of making the contract the
plaintiff had no notice of any claim or interest in said
premises by the said defendants, or any of them, and knew
nothing of such claim or intercst until some time in June,
1882. ‘ :

“7th. That plaintiff tendered the balance due on said
contract at the time and in the manner therein provided, and
that plaintiff has complied or offered to comply with the
the terms of said contract.

“ 8th. That defendant Niels M. Olson entered into an
agreement for the purchase of said lands, together with
other lands, with the said Wm. W. Scranton on the 23d
day of October, 1880.

“9th. That said contract of Olson was not ackowledged
or proven, but that on the 23d day of November, 1881,
was spread upon the miscellaneous record of said county
and was entered upon the numerical index of lands therein.

“10th. That on January 30, 1883, said Olson paid
for said land in full under his said contract to said Scran-
ton and obtained a deed-in fee for said premises, which deed
was placed upon record February 12, 1883.

“11th. That said Olson conveyed the premises by deed
to defendant Nelson on February 9, 1883, who, in turn,
sold and conveyed to defendant Woermann June 23, 1886,
and on May 10, 1886, defendant Nelson mortgaged the
same to defendant Renard, and on June 26, 1886, defend-
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ant Woermann morigaged the premises to his grantor,
Nelson.

«12th, That on June, 188G, the plaintiff was ousted
from the possession of said premises by the defendant
Nelson, and as a conclusion of law, that the plaintiff, by
virtue of his contract as aforesaid, had an equity or inter-
est in said premises superior to that held by defendant
Olson, under his contract, and that, at the time of making
final payment for said premises and accepting a deed there-
for, the said Olson had notice of plaintiff’s interest in said
premises, and took title thereto subject to such interest;
that the said defendants Nelson, Woermaun, and Renard
acquired their several interests in said land with at least
constructive notice of plaintiff’s rights in such premises,
and that the conveyances of the same from said Scranton
to said Olson, and from Olson to Nelson, and from said
Nelson to defendant Woermann were in effect an assign-
ment of said Scranton’s interest under said contract with
plaintiff' to said partics, and that said defendant Woer-
mann took and now holds the legal title to said premises in
trust for said plaintiff, and it is therefore considered and
adjudged that, upon payment, or tender of payment, to the
said Woermann of the balance due and to be paid by the
said plaintiff to said Scranton, under said contract, together
with interest thereon, as provided in said contract, and all
taxes paid on said land by the said defendants, or either of
them, and interest on said amounts then paid, amounting,
in the aggregate, to five hundred and 3¢ dollars ($530.30),
the said Woernrann is to execute a conveyance of said
premises to the said plaintiff, and upon his failure or refusal
so to do for the space of twenty (20) days after such pay-
ment or tender of payment, then this decree to stand as
and for such conveyances, and that the said mortgage deeds
from the said Woerman to said Nelson, and from said
Nelson to said Renard, be canceled and held for naught to
the extent that they cover said premises and that the plaint-
13



194 NEBRASKA REPORTS. [Vor. 30

Uppfalt v. Woermann,

iff have and recover his costs from defendants, taxed at
$45.48.”

The principal question in this case is, whether or not the
former action in ejectment is & bar to the prosecution of
this action.

The case of Uppfalt v. Nelson,18 Neb., 533, was brought
by Nelson against Uppfalt to recover the possession of the
land in controversy. The answer in that case was a gen-
eral denial and the judgment was in favor of .Nelson. The
question of the equitable rights of Uppfalt under his con-
tract was not pleaded in that action, although proof tending
to show such rights was admitted. The proof, however, in
that case, so far as the conclusiveness of the judgment is
coucerned, could go no farther than the pleadings, and the
pleadings not being amended to conform to the proof, it
was unavailing. The rule is well established * that the
judgment of a court of concurrent jurisdiction directly
upon the point is, as a plea, a bar; or as evidence, con-
clusive between the same parties, upon the same matter
directly in question in another court; second, that the
judgment of a court of exclusive jurisdiction, directly upon
the point, is, in like manner, conclusive upon the same
matter between the same parties, coming incidentally in
question in another court for a different purpose. But
neither the judgment of a concurrent or exclusive jurisdie-
tion is evidence of any matter which came collaterally in
question though within their jurisdiction, nor of any mat-
ter incidently cognizable, nor of any matter to be inferred
by argument from the judgment.” This yule was adopted
and approved by Story, J., in Harvey v. Richards,2 Gall.,
229, and by Chief Justice Gibson in Hibshman v. Dulle-
ban, 4 Watts [Pa.], 191. ’

The question arose in this court in Gayer v. Parker, 24
Neb., 643. It was held that a former verdict and judg-
ment are conclusive only as to all the facts directly in the
issue, and do not extend to facts which may be in contro-
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versy and which rest upon evidence and are merely collat-
eral. That case was carefully examined and it is believed
that the decision is right. In ejectment under the statute
the defendant under a general denial may prove an equity
which negatives the plaintiff’s right to the possession (Dale
v. Hunneman, 12 Neb., 221); but can obtain no affirmative
relief (The Duchess of Kingston’s Case, 20 Howell’s State
Trials, 538).

Where he seeks affirmative relief by setting up a con-
tract which will give him the right to demand specific per-
formance, this must be done by answer in the nature of a
counter-claim. In such case he becomes an actor in fact,
and plaintiff, in the matter therein set forth, and such
counter-claim does not come under the term defense. In
effect, it is a cross-action in which the defendant seeks af-
firmative relief. He is not compelled to seek this relief in
an action of ejectment any more than he is required to set
up a set-off or counter-claim in other cases. The failure to
set up the counter-claim may be ground upon which the
oourt may tax the plaintiff with the costs of the second
action, upon the principle that had the matter been sub-
mitted in the first action the extra cost would have been
avoided.

There is no claim or pretense that the matter now in
controversy was in issue in the former case and no case
has been cited under a statute like our own holding that a
defendant must set up his counterclaim in an action against
him to recover the possession of land or be barred of the
right to recover, and we cannot so hold. The other points
in the case are not seriously urged and there is no error in
the record. The judgment is therefore

AFFIRMED.

THE other judges concur,
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R. R. TINGLEY ET AL., APPELLEES, V. J. 8, GREGORY
ET AL., APPELLANTS,

[FIiLED SEPTEMBER 186, 1890.]

Homestead: VALUE EXCEEDING S8TATUTORY LiMiT: L1ENS. In
an uction in the nature of a creditor’s bill to collect a judgment
on premises held as a homestead the value of which exceeded
$2,000 subject to certain liens, keld, that a decree applying the
excess over $2,000 subject to the liens existing against the home-
stead prior to the commencement of the action was supported
by the weight of testimony.

APPEAL from the district court of Lancaster county.
Heard below before CHAPMAN, J.

George E. Hibner, and J. 8. Gregory, for appellants.
Robert Ryan and Thomas Ryan, for appellee Tingley.
MAxwELL, J.

This is an action in the nature of a creditor’s bill brought
by the plaintiffs against John S. Gregory and E. Mary
Gregory to subject certain real estate in the city of Lin-
coln, which is occupied as a homestead by said Gregory
and wife, to the payment of a judgment. The petition is
in the usual form-and alleges the recovery of the judg-
ment for deficiency after the sale of certain mortgaged
premises, the issue of an execution thereon returned
unsatisfied, and that the property in controversy belongs
to J. S. Gregory and wife and exceeds in value $2,000.

W. W. Gregory is a son of J. S. Gregory and wife and
purchased the property while this action was pending. In
what way a deficiency judgment came to be rendered against
the wife does not appear. The only question as to her lia-
bility raised by the answer is in connection with her hus-
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band. If she was simply surety for him, the right to
render a deficiency judgment against her is very doubtful.
As the question is not raised by the pleadings it is proba-
ble that the debt was incurred in relation to her own sep-
arate estate, and that, therefore, she is liable as principal.

On the trial of the cause in the court below the issues
were found in favor of the plaintiff and a decree rendered
accordingly. A pretty careful reading of the testimony
convinces us that the decree is the only one that should
have been rendered, as it is in accord with the clear weight
of testimony. The excess in value of the homestead over
$2,000 is subject to valid liens which existed against it at
the commencement of this action. Such liens will be paid
in the order of their priority.

JUDGMENT AFFIRMED,

THE other judges concur.

Brack Er AL. v. CHICAGO, B. & Q. R. Co.
[FILED SEPTEMBER 16, 1890.]

1. Common Carriers: LIVE STocK: ACT OF GoD. A common
carrier of live stock is not an insurer against injuries unavoid-
ahly resnlting from the inherent nature or propensities of the
animals, or against loss caused by the act of God. While a car-
rier, when overtaken by an occurrence known as the act of God,
is not bound to the highest degree of diligence to preserve the
property from injury, yet, in such an emergency, he is required
to bestow such care as an ordinarily prudent person or carrier
would use under like circumstances, and if he fail to do so and
loss results therefrom, he is liable.

2. : : . A snow storm of such violence as to
prevent the moving of "trains is an act of God.

3. The instructions given and refused considered, and Aeld, prop-
erly given and refused.

|

las
28
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ERroRr to the district court for Kearney county. Tried
below before GasLIN, J.

L. W. Hague, and Stewart & Rose, for plaintiffs in error,
cited: 4. & N. R. Co.v. Washburn, 5 Neb., 122; Kinnick
v. R. Co., 29 N. W. Rep. [Ia.], 772; Lindsley v. R. Co.,
33 N. W. Rep. [Minn.], 7; Wilson v. Hamilton, 4 O. St.,
722; K. P. R. Co. v. Nichols, 9 Kan.,235; St. L. & S. R.
Co. v. Dormon, 72 111, 504; Agnew v. Costa, 27 Cal., 425;
Clark v. R. Co., 4 Kernan [N. Y.],570; Maslin v. R. Co.,
14 W. Va,, 180; Angell, Carriers [5th Ed.], sec. 214;
Lawson, Contracts of Carriers, sec. 16.

Marquett & Deweese, and J. L. McPheely, contra, cited:
Parrish v. State, 14 Neb., 60; 1 Am. and Eng. Ency. of
Law, 174, 177; Phil., etc., R. Co. v. Anderson, [6 Am. &
Eng. R. Cases, 407] 94 Pa. St.,351; R. V. R. Co. v. Fink,
18 Neb., 93; Gleeson v. Va. M. R. Co., 28 Am. and Eng.
R. Cases, 202; Balt., etc., R. Co. v. Sulphur Springs, etec.,
Dist., 96 Pa. St., 65; Nugent v. Smith, L. R. 1 C. P.D. 19,
423.

Norvar, J.

On the 16th day of November, 1886, the plaintiffs de-
livered to the defendant at Minden, in this state, 136 hogs
to transport to Omaha. On account of a severe wind
and snow storm, the train on which the hogs were being
shipped, was blockaded at Hastings for more than a day.
When the cars arrived in Omaha, sixteen of the hogs were
dead. Plaintiffs brought suit to recover the sum of
$126.62 as their damages sustained. The defendant, in its
answer, admits the receipt of the hogs, the loss of sixtcen,
and the value thereof as claimed by the plaintiffs. The an-
swer also alleges “that after said hogs were received for
shipment, and while in transit, there occurred a very severe,
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unusual, and extraordinary snow storm, on account of
which it was impossible for the defendant to move its cars,
and maike said shipment as promptly as it ordinarily
would, and said hogs were conveyed to Omaha in the
shortest possible time ; that whatever damage the plaint-
iffs sustained, on account of the injury to the said hogs,
and the death of the same, was caused on account of said
storm and extreme cold weather.” The answer also denies
that the defendant was guilty of any negligence in the
matter. The trial was had to a jury, resulting in a ver-
dict for the company. The case is now before us on error.

The testimony discloses that it was storming when the
hogs were started from Minden on the morning of the 16th
of November, that they arrived in Hastings between ten
or eleven o’clock the same forenoon, and at that time the
snow was drifting, and the wind blowing a gale. The
train was immediately made up to go east, when advices
were received that the road was blockaded, and the train
was abandoned. The hogs remained in the cars until the
next forenoon, when they were unloaded,and it was dis-
covered that eleven were dead and six crippled.

Thé principal question presented by the record for our
consideration is, Did the detendant’s employes exercise such
diligence as to relicve the company from liability for dam-
ages as a common carrier? There is no conflict in the tes-
timony as to the character and scverity of the storm, or as
to the efforts that were made to protect the hogs from the
effects of the storm. J. K. Tainter, who was agent of the
company at Hastings, testified that the train carrying
plaintiffs hogs arrived at Hastings during a blizzard, the
wind was blowing a gale and the snow was falling ; that
the train was made up to go east, and waited for advices
as to how the storm was along the road. The train was
then reorganized with a less number of cars, when orders
were received to wait until afternoon. Then they got ad-
vices not to start a train out that day. The train was aban-
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doned on account of the severity of the storm, the road
cast of ITastings being blockaded. The yards in Hastings
at that time were impassable on account of the depth of
the snow, and the high wind. Drifts had formed that
were difficult for a man to pass through, some as tall as an
ordinary sized man. After the train was abandoned, an ef-
fort was made to get the cars to the stock yards. The yards
being full of snow, an attempt was then made to put grain
doors up to the sides of the cars; that was a failure on
account of the wind. The next morning the yards were
shoveled out, and as soon as possible the cars were taken
to the yards and the hogs unloaded, fed, and given bed-
ding. They were kept until the morning of the 18th,
when they were forwarded on the first train leaving for
the east, after the storm. On the evening of the 16th the
stock yards were filled with snow, the fence on the north
side was covered up, and the wind was blowing very hard.
On the morning of the 17th the yards were in such condi-
tion that the switch engine could not reach the cars until
they were shoveled out. The witness testified further, on
cross-examination, that it began snowing early on the
morning of the 16th and continued into the night ; ‘that it
was very cold; that an effort was made to get the hogs
to the stock yards on the 16th; that the switch engine
stuck in the yards and remained out all night ; that the
storm was the most severe the witness had seen during
four years he had been with the road.

G. H. Hartsangh testificd that at noon of the 16th
there was a *‘ blizzard,” and that it continued during the
afternoon and evening. It was a very severe storm, snow-
ing very hard, wind from the north and cold towards cven-
ing ; that he had seen one or two storms in the course of a
number of years, just as bad, but had never seen a worse
one. It was growing worse all the time.

Albert Gains testified that his business was checking
cars and taking care of the stock yards at Hastings ; that
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he remembers the cars containing plaintiff’s hogs ; that
when they arrived it was snowing, blowing, and getting
colder; that they were put into a train made up to go east,
and it was abandoned on account of the severity of the storm.
Nothing was done with the cars containing the hogs that
afternoon, for the reason that the snow had drifted too bad.
By three o’clock in the afternoon it had drifted under-
neath the cars solid. He tried to put up grain doors on
the north side to keep the wind off, but the wind blew so
hard that he failed in the attempt. He says, “ the one I
had the wind blew it away from me, then I helped another
man with his; we got about ten feet further and had to
stop; there were four of us trying with the doors.”
The weather was cold and getting colder. The cars quit
moving through the yards and switches about noon of the
16th. .

John Glennan testified that it was snowing and blowing
hard on the 16th; that the hogs were unloaded on the
forenoon of the 17th, and were watered and fed. Before
unloading it was necessary to get them out of the drift.
Some of the cars were nearly covered, and the stock yards
were pretty nearly covered up.

G. M. Rogers testified that the storm was severe and
cold ; that he tried to carry grain doors and tack them on
north side of the cars, but could not possibly do so as the
wind was so strong ; that at noon the snow in the yards
was deep and getting deeper.

George Jacobs testified that on the 16th it. was impos-
sible to see a house an either side of the street on account
of the snow and wind. Witness states that he saw four
persons trying to carry the grain doors to the cars, and
that they got a few feet with them but could not get any
further..

W. G. Melson, called as a witness for the plaintiff, testi-
fied that in cold, stormy weather, hogs once put in motion
in cars, at the first delay will begin to “pile up” away from
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the doors, and are likely to smother those underneath;
that the proper thing to do when they cannot be unloaded
is to put a man there to keep them from piling up; that
while the cars are in motion there is no such danger. The
‘witness was then asked this question upon cross-examina-
tion: “You would probably been standmg there frozen
to death covered with snow in the morning, with a stick in
your hands?” The witness answered, “ I guess so.”

The plaintiff Jeppa Jorgenson testified that the hogs
were in good condition when delivered to the defendant.
The remainder of his testimony was the same as the wit-
ness Melson’s, except that he did not think he would have
been frozen to death had he remained with the hogs and
given them the proper care.

That the storm which overtook the train containing
Plaintiff’s hogs was unprecedented cannot be doubted. On
account of the drifting snow it was impossible for the
train to leave Hastings for Omaha on the afternoon of
November 16; that the snow had so drifted as to block-
ade the cars in the yards at Hastings, and filled the stock
pens with snow so that the hogs could not be unloaded.
All reasonable efforts were put forth by the employes of
the defendant to nail grain doors on the north side of the
cars containing the hogs, for the purpose of protecting
them from the storm.

It is contended by the plaintiffs that some one should
have remained with the hogs and prevented them from
smothering each other. It was for the jury to say whether
in view of the severity of the storm such care should have
been given. After a careful reading of the testimony we
are satisfied that there was sufficient evidence to warrant
the jury in finding that the defendant was not guilty of
negligence in that respect. .

Objections are made to certain instructions given by the
court on its own motion, and to the refusdl to give the in-
structions requested by the plaintiffs,
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The fourth, fifth, and sixth of the instructions given are
as follows :

“Fourth—If you find the loss of the sixteen hogs and
damage was occasioned by the snow storm and said cold
weather and the elements, the defendant using the ordinary
care in protecting and caring for said hogs and shipped
them as svon as practicable, under all circumstances you
will find for the defendant.

“Fifth—If you find the defendant did not use ordinary
care in protecting, caring for, and transporting the said
hogs, under the circumstances you will find for the plaint-
iffs, assessing their damages at such sum as you think the
evidence warrants, not exceeding the amount sued for in
" the petition. '

“8ixth—Unless you find from the evidence the loss and
damage complained of was occasioned by the act of God,
or, in other words, the severe storm and cold, which could
not have been prevented by use of ordinary care, under the
circumstances you will find for the plaintiffs, bearing in
mind the burden is upon the defendant to show the loss
was occasioned by the storm and cold which ordinary care
could not prevent, and it would require a greater degree
of care; or, in other words, greater care and caution in car-
ing for the hogs would be required in a snow storm than
in ordinary fair weather.”

The plaintiffs requested the following instructions, which
were denied :

“First—In transporting the hogs in question the de-
fendant, being a common carrier, was an insurer of the safe
delivery of the property and was bound to use all care and
precaution for their safety while in transit, so far as human
vigilance and foresight and care would go. The defendant
would be absolutely liable to plaintiffs for all injuries sus-
tained by the hogs in question while in their possession
from the time they were received at Minden, Nebraska,
until they were delivered to the consignee at Omaha, Ne-
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braska, except only for such injuries as may have been
‘unavoidable’ from the essential nature of the property
itself, the nature and propensity of the hogs, and except
further such injuries as may have resulted from the act of
God or the public enemy.

“Second—To excuse the defendant from liability on the
ground that the injury to the hogs in question was caused
by the act of God, the burden of proof is upon the defend-
ant to prove to you by a preponderance of evidence that
the act of God was the immediate cause of the injury. By
the term ‘act of God’ is meant superhuman, or something
beyond the power of man to foresee or guard against.”

“Third—If you believe from the evidence that the loss
of the hogs in question was caused by the ¢piling up’ and
thus suffocating or being otherwise injured while the cars
were standing in the yards at Hastings, Nebraska, and if
you further believe from the evidence that such loss could
have been prevented by the defendant unloading them into
the stock pens, and while in such pens given them good
bedding, care, and personal attention, or if you believe from
the evidence that the defendant could have prevented the
hogs in question from piling up in the cars while standing
in the yards at Hastings, by vigilant watching, and thus
prevented the loss, and that the defendant negligently failed
to do cither, then you will find for the plaintiffs, for under
such circumstances the act of God was not the cause of the
loss, in such sense as to exempt the defendant from the
liability.”

" In passing upon the rulings of the district court on the
giving and refusing of these instructions, we must neces-
sarily determine the extent of the defendant’s liability asa
common carrier. The rule seems to be that a carrier of
live stock is an insurer of the safety of the property while
it is in his custody, subject to certain well defined excep-
tions. He is not liable for injuries resulting unavoidably
from the nature and propensities of the property, nor for
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damages resulting from the act of God, or the public en-
emy. The evidence brings this case within the exception
to the general rule. An unprecedented snow storm of such
violence as to obstruct the moving of trains falls within
the term act of God. (Bailentine v. N. M. R. Co., 40 Mo.,
491; Pruitt v. H. & St. J. R. Co., 62 Id., 527.) Wlile
carriers are not insurers against loss occasioned by the act
of God, they cannot, on the happening of such an event,
abandon the property. What degrec of care and diligence
at such a time is required in caring for and protecting the
property from injury and loss? The plaintiffs insist that
the carrier is required to bestow the highest degree of care,
and if he fails to exercise all possible diligence, and injury
occurs by reason thereof, he is liable.

In Gillespie v. St. L., K. C. & N. R. Co., 6 Mo. App.,
554, the court, in considering the degree of diligence re-
quired of a common carrier as against-an act of God, say :

“By these instructions the difference between the re-
sponsibility of the carrier as against the act of God, and as
against these perils which the carrier is answerable for, is
ignored. The carrier is held by the instructions to the
highest degree of foresight and care as against an act of
God. But the law imposes on him no such liabilty. It
has been truly said there is hardly any act of God, in a
legal sense, which an exhaustive circumspection might not
anticipate, and supposable diligence not avert the conse-
quence of. So that the doctrine would end in making the
carrier responsible for acts of God, when by law the pass-
enger and not the carrier assumed the risk. It has bcen
said that to make the rule a working rule, and give to the
carrier the practical benefit of the exemption which the
law allows him, he must be held, in preventing or averting
the effect of the act of God, only to such foresight and
care as an orlinarily prudent person, or company in the
same business, would use under all the circumstances of the
me‘”
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We have carefully examined the numerous authorities
bearing upon the question, and the rule established by the
adjudicated cases is that the carrier is required to exercise
ordinary or reasonable care and diligence to secure the
property committed to his custody from loss or damage in
order to protect himself from injury arising from the act
of God. If his negligence contributes to the injury, he
cannot claim exemption from liability. (Morrison v. Davis,
20 Pa. St., 171; Railroad v. Reeves, 10 Wall,, 176 ; Nash-
ville, etc., R. R. v. David, 6 Heisk., 261; Denny v. N. Y.
Cent. R. Co., 13 Gray, 481; Sweetland v. R. Co., 102
Mass., 276 ; R. Co. v. Anderson, 6 Am. & Eng. R. Cases,
407; Gleeson v. V. M. R. Co., 28 1d., 202; Ballentine v.
N. M. R. Co., 40 Mo., 491 ; Pruittv. H. &. 8t. J. R. Co.,
62 Id., 527; Hutch., Carr., secs. 201, 202.)

In the instructions given the rule is stated that if the
defendant did not use ordinary care in protecting, caring
for, and transporting the hogs, it was liable. We were at
first inclined to believe that the instructions were faulty,
on account of the using of the word ordinary; but after fur-
ther consideration we are satisfied that there is no substantial
difference between ordinary care and reasonable care. It
seems that the words are interchangeably used. (Kendall
v. Brown, 74 111, 232; Fallon v. Gity of Boston, 3 Allen,
38; Neal v. Gillett et al., 23 Conn., 436.)

Under the testimony, there was but one controverted
fact to submit to the jury, and that was whether the de-
fendant was guilty of negligence. The instructions taken
as a whole, stated the law applicable to the case, and fairly
. submitted to the jury the question of negligence. The
only conclusion that could have been drawn from the testi-
mony was that the storm was extraordinary and unprece-
dented for that season of the year. While the charge of
the court did not state, in so many words, that the act of
God must have been the immediate or proximate cause of
the loss, in order to excuse the company from liability, yet
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that was the plain purport of the language used in the
fifth paragraph. The jury could not fail to understand
from that instruction that if the defendant did not use
ordinary care, the negligence of the defendant was the proxi-
mate cause of the loss, and that the plaintiffs were entitled
to damages.

The plaintiffs in error further contend that ¢ there was no
evidence to justify the submission to the jury by instruc-
tions the question as to whether the loss was occasioned by
theact of God.” True the loss occurred by the hogs “ piling
up,” and thereby smothering those underneath, yet the
propensity to do this was only while the cars were stand-
ing. If it were not possible to unload the hogs on account
of the-drifting snow, as the testimony tends to show, and
if the defendant’s employes omitted nothing that a prudent
person or carrier would have done under the circumstances
to avert the loss,then the loss must be attributed to the
storm.

By the first instruction requested by the plaintiffs the
defendant was held responsible if it failed “to use all
care and precaution for the safety of the hogs while in
transit, so far as human vigilance, foresight, and care
would go.” This was a higher degree of diligence than
the law demanded of the defendant. The second request
was substantially covered by the sixth instruction given.
By it the jury were told that the burden was upon the
defendant to establish that the loss was occasioned by the
storm, and it also stated, in language easily understood, that
the severe storm and cold was an occurrence known as the
act of God.

The third request held the defendant liable, if, by vig-
ilant watching, the hogs could have been prevented from
smothering in the cars. It was not to be expected that
any one would remain in such a storm and care for the
stock.

The plaintiffs allege error on the part of the court in
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making certain remarks in the presence of the jury. The
judge, in ruling upon an objection made to the testimony,
stated : ““I shall instruct the jury that the defendaut, to
avoid liability, must show that it used all reasonable means
to care for this stock.,” Subsequently, the jury were so
instructed. 'We do not see how the language of the court
could have been prejudicial to the plaintiffs.

The plaintiff, Jeppa Jorgenson, was asked this question:
“You may state, from your experience in handling hogs
and shipping them, if there is any danger, while a car is
standing still, of their piling up.” Counsel for the de-
fendant objected, as improper, incompetent, and no foun-
dation laid. The attorney for the plaintiffs then stated
what he considered proper testimony, and the court, in

" reply, said: “I will allow the gentleman to prove any-

thing he wants. I will instruct the jury what the law is
when we get to that.” The objection was sustained and
exceptions were taken to the ruling, and to the language of
judge. By sustaining the defendant’s objections to the suc-
ceeding questions propounded to this witness, and to the
plaintiffs’ offer of testimony subsequently made, the jury
could not have understood that the court intended to per-
mit immaterial or improper testimony to be received, if
offered by the plaintiffs. Better, it would have been, had
the remarks not been made, yet we have no doubt that
they did not influence the verdict.

The remaining assignment of error consists in sustain-
ing the defendant’s objection to this question asked by
plaintiffs of the witness Melson: “State whether, from
your experience, fat hogs, when in cars, would freeze to
death when the thermometer was at zero or a few degrees
above.” The error, if any, in sustaining the objection
was subsequently cured by allowing plaintiffs to fully
prove the fact sought to be elicited by the question, which
testimony was not controverted by the defendant.
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There is no reversible error in the record, and the judg-
ment is
AFFIRMED,

THE other judges concur.

Epwarp F. Davis v. H. W. GIDDINGS ET AL.

[FIiLED SEPTEMBER 16, 1890.]

1. Conditional Sale. The evidence sxamined, and keld, not to
establish a conditional sale.

2. The instructions requested by the defendant, not being based
upon the testimony, were properly refused.

ERRoOR to the district court for Gage county. Tried
below before BrRoADY, J.

R. W. Sabin, for plaintiff in error, cited: MecCormick v.
Stevenson, 13 Neb., 72 ; Romberg v. Hughes, 18 1d., 581 ;
Rawson Mfg. Co. v. Richards, 35 N. W. Rep. [Wis.], 40;
Thomas v. Richards, 1d., 42; Hoagland v. Van Etten,
22 Neb., 681.

R. 8. Bibb, contra.
NoORVAL, J.

This was an action of replevin, brought by the defend-
ants in error to recover the possession of a bay mare which
the plaintiff in error, as sheriff of Gage county had taken
under a writ of attachment issued out of the county court
of said county, in an action wherein one 1. L. Curley was
plaintiff and A. N. Wilcox was defendant. The case was
tried before a jury, who found the right of property and
right of possession to be in the plaintiffs below,

14
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The first assignment of error is that the verdict is not
sustained by the evidence. It is claimed by the plaintiff
in error that in May, 1886, the mare was sold by one of
the defendants in error, H. W. Giddings, to Wilcox upon
certain conditions, and that neither the judgment creditor,
Curley, nor the sheriff, at the time the mare was attached,
had any notice of the conditions of such sale. On the part
o’ the defendants in error it is urged that the mare was
ovned by them, and that Wilcox never bought or owned
her. The only testimony bearing upon the question of
ownership was given by H. W. Giddings. He testified
that the mare was the property of the defendants in.error.
His explanation of how the mare came into the possession
of Wilcox is as follows:

“About the 20th of May, 1886, Wilcox came to me and
wanted to buy a team; I could not spare a team; I told
him if he could get along a week or ten days I could spare
one critter; in a few days he came back, and he had lost
one horse and he said he wanted one horse badly to work
on his mill that he ground mortar for brick. I told him
I had one, if it suited, I could spare after the 1st of May,
but I did not know whether it would suit him ; it was rather
an inferior critter about some business, work well some
places, and some it would not; I told him I would let him
try it and if it suited him he might have it for so much;
he appointed a day I should bring it over, which I did;
we hitched it up and put it on the sweep and I told him I
thought it would work all right; I think it was about nine
o’clock we hitched on, and I staid until abont eleven; he
seemed to be satisfied it was all right, and in case it was
all right he said he would give mc $90 for it and give
E. C. Saulsbury for security for sixty days; he rather pay
the money, he had it earned but could not get it then,
and if I would get along with that he would take it. Well,
about the time we got ready to leave, Saulsbury came in a
buggy—this was on the 10th day of June, but we had
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talked about the way it should be paid in case the critter
suited him, before that several days. Saulshury was called
to sign the note, and he had quite a long talk with this
gentleman, and he refused to sign it; the man said he didn’t
know what he was going to do, he wanted a horse and I
wanted my pay, and he proposed to give me a mortgage on
the horse for that amount and wait on him sixty days; I
told him I could not do that, that he owed me then consid-
erable money and I wanted it, and if I couldn’t get any
money on the horse I proposed to keep the horse; he said
he didn’t know.but he might pay me some the next week,
I think this was Tuesday or Wednesday, and he said by
Saturday I will let you know what I can do; I left with
this understanding if he paid me what he owed me and
made enough more to make fifty dollars—he finally agreed
to pay me $25 on this mare and give me a note for the bal-
ance back.

Q. What was he to do in the meantime?

A. In case he did do that he was to pay me twenty-five
cents a day for the use of this horse, and if he did I was
not to receive anything from this time until he did that
business.

Q. State whether or not he ever paid any money.

A. On this horse? No, sir.

Q. Did he ever give that note and mortgage?

A. No, sir,
* * * » » » *

Cross-examination :
Q. You and Wilcox agreed on the price?
A. Yes, we didn’t disagree on anything,
Q. What was the price?
A. Ninety dollars.
Q. Under that agreement you left the horse in his pos-
session ?
A. That is the price named.
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Q. Under the agreement that he should give you a'hote
in the future, you left the horse with him?

A. No; the agreement was he was to pay me $90;
twenty-five dollars in cash and the balance a note to make
it up to §90.

Q. You said that he was to give you a note with Sauls-
bury on it?

He was to give me $90 for the mare.

He was to give you a note of $30 on Saulsbury?
That was the first contract.

And under that you left the horse in his possession ?
No, sir.

. Do you mean to say Saulsbury was there the day
you took the horse over?

A. Yes, he was there and failed to sign the note.

Q. Then you made another agreement with him?

A. I was going to take the mare home.

Q. Then you lefi it there under the agrcement that he
was to pay you $25 and give a mortgage on the mare for
the difference?

A. Here is what I done. When he failed to give that
note with the man as security, I asked if he could pay some
money, and I would sell the mare on time if he paid
enough money, and he said he couldn’t do it, he hadn’t
enough money. I said, “ Won’t Saulsbury get the money
and let you have $24?” He says, “I don’t know just
how I stand with Saulsbury ; we are in rather a muss about
brick and I don’t know what damage he is going to call
on me for;” he says, “I will tell you what I will do, I
will pay you what I can.” What he would do he said he
would do by the first of July. I says, “If you can pay
me enough money now so I am sure of the balance you
and I can trade yet.” He asked what I woulddo. I says,
“Pay what you owe me now, about $18 or $19, and enough
to make it $50, or $25 on the mare, and then I will take
a note and your brother-in-law for security.”

ororor
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Q. Was there any time fixed?

A. He was to do thut by the first day of July.

* * * * * * -

Q. And if he didn’t it was to be your mare?

A. If he didno’t do it, it was to be my mare and he was
to pay for the use of it.

* Q. Well, under that agreement you left the mare in his
posscssion ?

A. I left the mare in his possession.

Q. As I understand, if he came up to the agreement it
was a trade, and if he did not it was not a trade?

A. If he filled that agrcement it was a trade, if he
didn’t it was not a trade, the horse was mine; that was my
understanding and I know it was his.

The testimony also shows that Wilcox absconded about
the 23d or 24th day of June, leaving the mare in contro-
versy on the place where he had resided, and that she was
immediately attached to pay a claim against Wilcox. The
testimony falls very far short of establishing a conditional
sale. There was but an offer to sell, and Wilcox had until
July 1 to comply with the terms of the proposition by
paying $25 in cash and giving a secured note for the bal-
ance of the agreed price. Wilcox having never accepted
the offer, no title to the mare ever passed to him. She was
therefore not subject to attachment for the debts of Wilcox.

Complaint is made of the refusal of the court to give
certain instructions requested by the plaintiﬁ' inerror. The
first request was as follows:

“The court instructs the jury that if they ‘believe from
the evidence that the plaintiffs made a conditional sale of
said horse in controveray to the attachment deutor, A. N.
Wilcox—that is, in the fore part of June, 1886, made a con-
tract of sale to said Wilcox of said horse upon condition
that he (Wilcox) would on the first dny of July following
pay plaintiffs twenty-five dollars and give plaintiffs his
secured note for the difference between that and ninety
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dollars in payment of said horse, but with the further
agreement between them that the ownership of the horse
should remain in plaintiffs until said Wilcox should pay
said money and give said note, and in case he should do so
by the first of July, as above stated, the horse should be his
property, but if he did not, to pay twenty-five cents a day
for the use of her while he had her, and that thereupon the
plaintiffs delivered the possession of said horse under said
agreement to said Wilcox—the court instructs you that if
you find these facts to exist from the evidence, that this
was a conditional sale of said horse from plaintiffs to said
Wilcox ; and the court further instructs you that if you
find from the evidence said conditional sale to exist as
above set forth, and find from the evidence that the de-
fendant, as sheriff, levied the attachment in evidence on
said horse on the 28th day of June, 1885, while the said
property was still in the possession of said Wilcox under
said agreement, without notice on the part of the sheriff
or I. L. Curley, the attachment creditor, of any claim of
ownership to the horse by plaintiffs, then you should bring
in a verdict for the defendant.”

It is apparent that it would have been error to have
given this request. It, in effect, held that the evidence es-
tablished a conditional sale and that Wilcox had possession
of the mare under such an agreement. As has already
been stated no such an inference could properly be drawn
from the testimony,

The plaintiff in error’s second request was an instruction
to find for the defendant. Under the testimony the de-
fendant was uot entitled to have the jury so instructed.
Instead of the evidence being all on the side of the defend-
ant, it fully sustained the position of the plaintiffs below.

The third request of the plaintiff in error, which was
denied, was in language as follows:

“The court instructs the jury that actions must be pros-
ecuted in the name of the parties in interest, and the evi-
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dence in this case having disclosed the fact that the plaint-
iff Ilarvey Giddings, at the commencement of this suit, had
no interest in the property in controversy more than being
the husband of the real party in interest, the court in-
structs you the plaintiffs were improperly joined, and must
fail. You are therefore directed to bring in a verdict for
the defendant.”

There is in the bill of exceptions testimony tending to

show that the mare was owned jointly by both of the plaint-
iffs, and there is likewise testimony from which the infer-
ence could be drawn that Mrs. Giddings was the sole owner.
In view of this conflict in the testimony the court had no
right to assume in an instruction that one of the plaintiffs,
Harvey Giddings, had no interest in the property. It was
for the jury to say, under all the testimony, who owned the
property at the commencement of the action.

Finally, it is urged that the court erred in refusing to
submit special findings to the jury. It nowhere appears
in the record before us that the defendant made a request
for special findings. This point, therefore, cannot be con-
sidered. The judgment is

AFFIRMED.

THE other judges concur.

Cuicaco, B. & Q. R. Co. v. Pavi. Kriskr

[FILED SEPTEMBER 17, 1£90.]

1. Malicious Prosecution: PKoBABLE CAUSE. In an action of
P. K. against the C., B. & Q. R. Co. for malicious prosecution
in the arrest and trial of the plaintiff for the larceny of railroad
ties, on the oath and evidence of B. F. P., the agent of defend-
ant, held, that if, from the evidence, the agent had reasonable
ground for suspicion, supported by circumstances sufficiently
strong in themselves to wurrant & cautious man in the belief

80 215

137]
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that the accused was guilty of the offense, and that the agent
believed that he was guilty, then there was probable cause for
the prosecution of the accused, and therefore malice was not to
be presumed on the part of defendant or its agent.

: NEw TRIAL. The court below having so in-
structed the jury upon the trial, and the evidence clearly war-
ranting the instructions given, and the jury having returned a
verdict for the plaintiff, keld, ercor in overruling the defendant’s
motion for a new trial.

ERRoR to the district court for Platte county. Tned
below before Posr, J.

J. B. Strode, Marquett & Deweese, and M. Whitmoyer, for
plaintiff in error, cited: Dunbier v. Day, 12 Neb., 596 ;
Meyer v. R. Co. 2 1d.,342; Turner v. O’ Brien, 5 1d., 543;
Cooley, Torts, 210, 211, 213; Ross v. Langworthy,13 Neb.,
495; 1 Addison, Torts [6th Ed.], 225 and cases cited.

George G. Bowman, and Sullivan & Reeder, contra, cited :
Johnson v. Miller, 29 N. W. Rep. [Ia.], 743; Ross v.
Langworthy, 13 Neb., 492; Chapman v. Dunn, 56 Mich.,
31; A. & N. R. Co. v. Bailey, 11 Neb., 333; Moller v.
Moller, 22 N. E. Rep. [N. Y.], 169.

Cogs, CH. J.

This action is brought on error to the district court of
Platte county.

The plaintiff alleged in the court below that the de-
fendant falsely and maliciously, and without reasonable or
probable cause therefor, caused the plaintiff to be charged
before a justice of the peace of Platte county, with having
on the 20th day of May, 1887, unlawfully and felomousl\
stolen and carried away twenty-five railroad ties, of the
value of $5, the property of defendant; that said charge
was reduced to writing and sworn to by Benjamin Pinneo,
an employe of defendant who at the time was in the service
of defendant, and in making said charge was acting within
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the scope of his employment and authority; that the
defendant, through said employe, on the 23d day of May,
1887, caused said justice to make out a warrant for the
apprehension of plaintiff, and falsely and maliciously, and
without reasonable and probable cause therefor, caused
plaintiff to be arrested on said charge, and to be impris-
oned against his will in the common jail of said county;
that a trial was had and that plaintiff in thisaction was ac-
quitted and discharged; that he was innocent of the charge
so made against him; that by reason of the premiscs,
plaintiff was greatly injured in his credit' and reputation,
and brought into public scandal, infamy, and disgrace, and
has suffered great anxicty and pain of body and mind, and
has been damaged in the sum of $1,900, for which said
sum he asks judgment.

Defendant in its answer in the lower court alleged that
on or about the 20th day of May, 1887, railroad ties be-
longing to it, of the value of $5, had been stolen, taken,
and carried away from it, in said Platte county; that two
persons, believed to be Peter Kriski and Paul Kriski,
father and son, the latter the plaintiff in this action, were
seen at said date loading, taking, and carrying away from
defendant’s track in said county said railroad ties, and
hauling and taking them to the residence of the said Peter
Kriski ; that Benjamin Pinneo, having good and probable
cause to suspect and believe that said Peter and Paul
Kriski committed said offense, made complaint before J.
C. Cowdry, a justice of the peace in and for said county,
charging them jointly with stealing said ties, upon which
charge said Peter and Paul were arrested as alleged, held
in custody for trial, and on the 25th day of May, 1887,
tried, and said Peter was found guilty by a jury, and Paul
was found not guilty; that the said complaint was made
without malice and upon reasonable and probable cau-e for
believing that the plaintiff, Paul Kriski, was guilty as
charged.



218 NEBRASKA REPORTS. [Vor. 3(

C., B. & Q R. Co. v. Kriski,

The plaintiff replied denying each and every allegatior
of new matter contained therein.

There was a trial to a jury March 29, 1889, with a ver:
dict for the plaintiff for $250.

The defendant’s motion for a new trial was overruled,
and judgment entered upon the verdict, and upon which
the plaintiff in error assigns errors for rehearing:

“1. The court erred in admitting the testimony offered
by the defendant herein, which was objected to by the
plaintiff herein, as shown by the record and the rulings of
the court excepted to at the time.

“2d. The court erred in rejecting testimony offered by
the plaintiff hercin, which error the plaintiff herein ex-
cepted to at the time.

“3d. For errors of law occurring at the trial and duly
cxcepted to by the plaintiff herein.

“4th. The court erred in overruling the motion of the
plaintiff herein to set aside the verdict of the jury and for
a new trial.

“5th. The court erred in giving the 9th paragraph of
its instructions to the jury. .

“6th. The court erred in giving the 10th paragraph of
its instructions to the jury, as not applicable to the issues,
and misleading.” A

On the trial the plaintiff called B. F. Pinneo who testi-
fied that he resided in Lincoln, Nebraska, in May, 1887,
and that he then was, and still is, in the employ of defend-
ant; that it was in the line of his duty to protect the com-
pany from theftsand to prosecute thieves andlike characters;
that he had been in the employ of the company since June,
1881, and that he made the complaint against the defend-
ant in error before J. C. Cowdry, justice of the peace of
Platte county, in May, 1887. This witness was after-
wards recalled by defendants, in the district court, and tes-
tified that he was the same who signed the complaint
against Peter and Paul Kriski, charging them with steal-
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ing railroad ties from the defendant; that at the time
stated he reccived a letter from the company’s superintend-
ent, McConniff, of the B. & M. division, written by the
section foreman, David McDuffy, giving information of
the loss of ties, with directions for witness to pay attention
to the business. Witness went with the letter to Colum-
bus, and there saw McDuffy, and his son John, and John
Mitcek, who informed witness of the stcaling of railroad
ties from the line of the road; that they had seen two
persons loading ties on a wagon, start and drive on north
from the line of the road; that John McDuffy had been
sent to observe where and by whom the ties were taken,
and had followed the parties up to the house of Peter
and Paul Kriski, who were in the yard unhitching their
team from the wagon on which the ties were then loaded.
On hearing this circumstantial account of the apparent
theft of the ties, the witness procured Geo. Harmon, a
deputy sheriff, to accompany him to Peter Kriski’s house;
that coming within a short distance of the place they saw
a son of Peter Kriski herding cattle, who told them, in
answer to inquiries, that his father and older brother had
hauled some railroad ties, and pointed in the direction of
both the lines of the B. & M. and U. P. roads. The wit-
ness asked where his elder brother was, and the boy said
he was up at the house, about the horses. Witness and
the deputy sheriff then went to where Paul, the plaintiff,
was engaged with the horses, near the house, and asked
him about the ties; he said “they had got some ties and
flood-wood about the bridge,” pointing the same way, to
the lines of both roads mentioned ; that the boy, Paul, told
conflicting stories as to where the ties came from; they
then went to the house and had quite a talk with Peter
Kriski, who said he got the ties on the railroad; there
were from seven to fiftecn ties on the wagon, and ties
were scattered all around the yard. Witness asked Peter
Kriski if he wanted to buy the ties, and he replied with
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the inquiry what was wanted for them, and was told
thirty cents each. Kriski said they were old and rotten and
not worth that ; there was no one present except deputy
sheriff, Peter Kriski, and witness.

It appears that at this time neither the witness nor the
deputy sheriff could converse in German or Polish, nor
could Kriski speak or understand English but imperfectly ;
that Pinneo and Harmon returned to the town of Colum-
bus and, procuring an interpreter, went again to Kriski’s
and told him, through the interpreter, that he would bave
to pay thirty cents each for the ties, which he refused.
After returning to town and procuring a warrant the dep-
uty sheriff arrested Peter Kriski and his son Paul and
brought them before J. C. Cowdry, a justice of the peace.
Witness had no other conversation or intercourse with the
parties arrested than that stated, and had never before seen
or heard of either one of them; that he had no ill feeling
towards either, and his only motive in causing their arrest
was the same as in all other cases of punishment for crime,
and was a matter of duty only with him.

By counsel for defendant :

Q. State whether you believed they were the parties who
had taken the railroad ties.

A. I did fully believe it, or would not have made the
complaint. I was acting in good faith in the prosecution
of the complaint.

Returning to the evidence of the plamtlﬁ' Charles
Schroeder testified that he knew Benjamin Pinneo, by sight,
and knew Peter Kriski., knew of his arrest for stealing
railroad ties; that he speaks the German tongue as also
does witness ; that witness interpreted between Pinneo and
Kriski shortly before the latter was arrested and tried.

By counsel for plaintiff:

Q. Was there anything said in that conversation as to
where Kriski got the ties found at his place?

A. (Over the objections of defendant.) Yes, sir; Kriski
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stated that he had not stolen them, and that they had not
been stolen from the B. & M. railroad at all ; that he had
received them from the U. P. Co.’s section boss; that a
young fellow had been working under the boss and brought
them there ; that his name was Peters, and that one Barn-
ish had taken the ties from the river.

John Herbert, a witness for the plaintiff, testified that
he lived at Benton in the year 1887; that he was em-
ployed as section foreman on the Union Pacific railroad ;
that L. Peters worked for the company, under him, at sev-
eral different times, and nearly every season part of the
time; that he lived at different places while working under
witness, and that for the last two years with his father-in-
law, Peter Kriski, prior to May, 1887, and for a short time
on the Bowman farm ; that Kriski’s was two miles west
and a little north from Benton; remembers that in May,
1887, it was alleged that railroad ties were stolen from the
B. & M. railroad. Witness cannot say if Peters worked
with him just at that time, but he did shortly afterwards,
and during the time that he worked and lived at his father-
in-law’s, Kriski’s, witness let him have some ties from time
to time; that witness saw Pinneo, at Benton, a year and a
half ago when he was down to see us for a witness, claim-
ing that ties had been stolen from the B. & M. road. It
was the case before J. C. Cowdry at Columbus; that Pinneo
had some conversation with Peters and witness and asked
witness if he had given Peters any railroad ties, and wit-
ness told him that he had, and there was something said
about new ties, and witness told him that he had given
Peters a new tie that was broken which he took away;
didn’t remember that he told Pinneo at the time that the old
and new ties he had seen at Kriski’s had corue from the U.
P. Co.’s road ; this was the forenoon of the day of the trial
which was heard after noon.

George Hoagland, a witness for plaintiff, testlﬁed that
he lived in Colfax county, distant two and a half miles
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west and a little north of Benton, on the farm adjoining to
Kriski’s; remembers that it was said there had been rail-
road ties stolen {rom the B. & M. road in May, 1887; that
during that morning he saw Peter Kriski (but did not see
Paul) planting corn, with a planter, a little eastward of
his house, sometime towards noon-day, at which time young
McDuffy came to his house and made inquiries as to who
lived at the house below, their names and appearance, etc.
Witness hesitated to reply, and asked him his business,
etc.; he said they had been stealing ties from the B. & M.
road; that he had followed them up, and described their
team ; witness told him he was mistaken, that he had just
come up from there, and saw the old man planting corn that
forenoon. '

Peter Kriski was sworn and examined for the plaintiff
and testified through an interpreter; thathe lived in Colfax
county in May, 1887; that he knows B. F. Pinneo, who
visited him in that month and year, at his farm; that he
could not talk with him, and had an interpreter brought
by Pinneo, who told him he should pay $40.

For what?

For railroad ties,

What ties ?

Old ties.

Where were they?

In my yard.

. Did he say what he would do with you if you did
not pay the forty dollars ?

A. Hewould arrest me; and wanted to get me arrested.

Q. Did you pay him, and why not?

A. No. Should I pay him any money, if I was inno-
cent?

Q. Did he make any charges or accusations against you
there?

A. He accused me of having me arrested if I did not
want to pay.

OPOPOPO
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Q. Did he accuse you of any crime?

A. He charged me with being a thief, that I had stolen
ties.

Q. What did you tell him?

A. That the ties were from my son-in-law, L. Peters;
that was when I refused to pay the $40. Pinneo went
away and afterwards the same sheriff who was with Pinneo
returned and arrested him and his son Paul, bringing them
to Columbus before the justice of the peace late in the
evening.

The testimony of the witness as to what occurred in and
about the justice’s court, and especially as to what was said
and done by Schroeder, the interpreter, is not important
to report, but he stated that while he told his story to the
interpreter, the interpreter did not talk with Pinneo at
all. The witness knew the young man McDuffy, saw him
in May, 1887, but did not talk to him ; that he, McDuffy,
talked to witness in regard to the Barnishes, father and son,
who were there, ““and came there to his yard”” with a wagon
and team ; witness was planting corn when he saw them,
on Friday; on Tuesday following witness was arrested;
had not been to the river that day, nor had his son Paul;
that his son-in-law, Peters, had hauled ties from the Bow-
man farm with a mule team.

It appeared from his cross-examination that the interpre-
ter mentioned as accompanying Pinneo and the deputy
sheriff to his house was a shoemaker from Columbus,
named Garbert, whose whereabouts were unknown at the
time of the trial.

The plaintiff was sworn in his own behalf and testified,
that he remembered the day that McDuffy came to his
father’s house, in May, 1887, about noon; that on that
morning he had been hauling wood for his brother-in-law,
L. Peters, and helping him move from the Bowman place
to his father’s; that they had a mule team,and had some
railroad ties in their wagon brought away from the Bow-
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man place to “our place”; that when they got to his
father’s house Theo. Barnish and Steve Barnish, his son,
came along there, after witness, from the direction of the
river ; they had a wagon and team ; witness’s father had
been planting corn that morning ; the Barnishes had an
iron gray and bay horse in their team ; his father had a
white mare and dark brown horse, not resembling the
other team much ; saw young McDuffy come up there after
the Barnishes came, froni the same direction, on foot; he
went down to Barnish’s wagon, and showed something,
and said something; Barnish and his son were in their
wagon; McDuffy talked to them, but not to witness or to
his father; he saw witness unhitching the team but said
nothing to him; that Barnish does not look like the wit-
ness’s father, nor does witness look like Barnish’s son;
that Pinneo asked him where they got the ties, and he
told him they were not their ties but belonged to Peters;
that Joe Garbert was sitting in the buggy, but witness
talked to Pinneo and not with Garbert. Witness was
arrested, taken to Columbus, at 9 P. M. and put in jail.
L. Peters, a witness for the plaintiff, testified that he
resides in Colfax county; that his business is working on
the U. P. railroad as section hand under one Herbert as
his boss ; that he lived with his father-in-law, Peter Kriski;
had every year got section ties from his railroad boss, and
while living at the Bowman place, when he moved from
there he moved the ties to Kriski’s. Herbert gave him the
ties. In May witness moved to Richland; had ties at that
time, and left them at Kriski’s. The day it was claimed
that somebody had stolen ties witness was moving from
the Bowman place. Paul Kriski was with him, and they
had a mule team, a cross between bay and yellow ; remained
at Kriski’s until noon; when unhitching the team, Barnish
and his son Steve came up; we had some float-wood on
the wagon; their team was an iron gray and bright bay;
old man Kriski was planting corn, his team was a white
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mare and dark brown horse; witness was talking to Bar-
nish when young McDuffy came up from the south, the
same direction that Barnishes came; Paul Kriski was then
unhitching the team in the yard; McDuffy did not talk
with either of the Kriskis; neither one resembles the Bar-
nishes; Barnish has gray whiskers, a bald head, and is
nearly fifty years old; witness knew Pinneo, saw him first
when he came to subpeena witness on the Kriski trial; he
told witness and Herbert that Kriski had stolen the ties;
witness said not; that the ties were his, that he left them
there; and he said these are new ties, buf there were but
two new ties, split and broken, and were given to witness
by the section boss, who was present and told him so; this
talk with Pinneo was the same day before the trial.

Upon the trial, one David McDuffy testified on behalf
of the defendant, in the court below, that he was a section
foreman in the service of defendant at the time of the prose-
cution complained of; that he as such section foreman had
charge of the railroad ties belonging to the defendant and
on his section of defendant’s road ; that a short time prior
to the arrest and prosecution of plaintiff and his father, he
had piled two piles of railroad ties belonging to the defend-
ant on the right of way, ready for loading onto cars, and
that all in one of the piles, containing more than 200 ties,
were stolen ; that about the 20th day of May, 1887, he saw
two men with a team loading some of these ties a few rods
west of the railroad bridge across the Platte river; that
the men would load on a few ties and then get up on the
road-bed and look around as if watching to see if any one
saw them; that they loaded on ties and drove away ; that
he sent one of his section men, John McDuffy, his son,
to follow the team and see where they were going with the
ties; that he got on top of the hand car and watched the
team closely, and saw it plainly, and that it was driven
into the grove at Peter Kriski’s place, that being the home
also of Paul Kriski, a son of Peter Kriski; that John

15
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McDuffy reported to him and told him it was Peter and
Puaul Kvriski who loaded and bauled the ties; that he re-
ported to defendant’s superintendent at Lincoln that ties
and bridge timber belonging to defendant were being
stolen; that the superinteudent sent Mr. Pinneo to look
after the matter; that he saw Pinneo within a very few
days; that they were on the defendant’s railroad track,
near where the ties had been taken from, and that he
pointed out to Pinneo the place to which the ties had been
taken; that he told Pinneo all he had seen himself and
also what John McDuffy, who followed the wagon, had re-
ported to him; that he told Pinneo that it was Peter and
Paul Kriski who had stolen the ties.

John McDuffy testified that he was employed as a sec-
tion hand upon defendant’s railroad, and was working on
the section with his father, David McDuffy, who was sec-
tion foreman; that the section hands had been missing
ties, and one day while at work on the road, at some dis-
tance from the bridge, they noticed a team and two men
near the bridge at the place where the ties were piled up;
that the men would load on ties a short time, and then get
on the track and look about them, and go back and load
on more ties; that when they got loaded they started off,
and at his father’s request he followed them to Kriski’s
house; that while following them he could see that the
wagon was loaded with ties; that at Kriski’s house he saw
Peter and Paul Kriski unhitching the team from a wagon
on which twenty or thirty ties were loaded, and that there
were ties scattered around the yard; that after he left
Kriski’s house we went to a neighbor of the Kriskis and
described the two men who were unhitching the team at
Kriski’s house, and that the neighbor said it was Peter
Kriski and his son; that he then reported to his father
what he had seen, and that he afterward told Pinneo all
he had observed ; that he did all this before the commence-
ment of the criminal prosecution against the Kriskis; that
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he told Pinneo that Peter and Paul Kriski had stolen the
ties of the defendant.

John Miteek, a witness on behalf of the defendant, tes-
tified that he was employed by the defendant and was
working under section foreman David McDuffy, and was
with him at the time the two men were seen loading ties on
defendant’s right of way, in May, 1887; that the team was
driven in the dircction of Kriski’s grove, and that John
McDuffy followed it; that ties were missing from the
place where they had been piled; that they were stolen that
day or the day before. On cross-examination he said these
men with the team stood right where the ties were and
that he saw them put some of them on the wagon.

Benjamin  Pinneo, upon whose action in prosecuting
plaintiff this action is based, testified that he received a
letter from defendant’s superintendent (which had been
written by Mr. McDuffy to the said superintendent) with
directions to attend to the matter; that within a few days
he went to Columbus and there saw David McDuffy, John
McDuffy, and John Mitcek, the witnesses whose testimony
is hereinbefore abstracted; that David McDuffy told him
that there had been a lot of defendant’s railroad ties stolen,
and told him the direction they went, and pointed out the
place they had been taken to; told him that his son, John
McDuffy, had followed them to the house. He further
testified that John McDuffy also told him that “he was
down there with his father working on the section, and
they saw somebody loading ties down the track, and his
father started him cornerways, and gave him instructions
to follow them if it took a week, and he told me he fol-
lowed that team up the road to that house inthe grove, and
that Paul Kriski and Peter Kriski were there in the yard;
I think he said they were unhitching the team from the
wagon; I asked him very particular about it; I didn’t
want to make any mistake;” that he then went and got
the deputy sheriff to go with him to Kriski’s place; that
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before they reached the house they saw a son of Peter
Kiriski’s herding cattle near the road; that this boy told
him and the deputy sheriff that his father and older brother
had hauled some ties, and pointed in the direction from
whence the defendant’s ties were taken when asked where
they got them; that he and the deputy sheriff then went
to where Paul, the plaintiff, was engaged, near the house,
and asked him about the ties; that ‘“ he said they had gotten
some ties and flood-wood at the Lridge, and I asked him
where, and he pointed the same way ;”’ that the boy Paul
told different stories in trying to tell them where the ties
came from; that he then went to the house and that he
and the deputy sheriff had a talk with Peter Kriski; that
they asked him where he got the ties, and he said he got
them on the railroad; that he then asked Kriski if he
wanted to buy them, and that Kriski asked the price; that
when he was told the price was thirty cents a tie, he said
they were not worth that; that he (Pinneo) then went back
to town (Columbus) and got an interpreter and took him
out to Kriski’s house and told him that he wanted thirty
cents apicce for the ties, and that Kriski said he wouldn’t
pay for them; that Peter Kriski told several different sto-
ries about the ties, and that his last story was that he
bought them from the U. P. foreman; that he then went
back to town and made complaint before the justice of the
peace, charging the said Peter and Paul with the larceny
of said ties. The witness further testified that he had
never seen or heard of the plaintiff or his father before he
went to look after this matter; that he had no ill feeling
toward them ; that he believed these parties were the par-
tiés who had taken the ties; that his only motive was to
punish them for the crime charged. In rebuttal to the
testimony of plaintiff’s witness, Schroeder, Pinneo said he
had never spoken to Schroeder nor had Schroeder spoken
to him, and that Schroeder had not told him anything
about the old man Kriski having said he received the ties
from the U. P. R. R.
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Geo. Harmon, a witness on behalf of the defense, testified
that he was deputy sheriff of Platte county at the time of
~ the arrest of the Kriskis, and that he made the arrests;

" that before any complaint was made or warrant issued, he
went with Pinneo to Kriski’s house; that before they
reached the house they talked with one of Kriski’s boys, who
said his father and a brother had hauled the ties; that he
and Pinneo then went to where the plaintiff wasand talked
with him, and that he, plaintiff, said they got the ties
over at the bridge; that they then went to and talked with
Peter Kriski about where he got the ties, and that he told
two or three different stories about the matter. “I think
he said some one gave them to him the first time, and then
he said he had bought them of the U. P. section foreman.”

The defendant also called J. C. Cowdry, Esq., as witness,
who testified that he was the justice of the peace of Platte
county in May, 1887, before whom Peter and Paul Kriski
were charged with stealing railroad ties, and were tried by
a jury; that the entries of that trial were on pp. 8, 9, of
his docket of that yeat, which he had with him, and by
which proof was offered of the conviction of Peter Kriski
of the offense charged, which, being objected to by plaint-
iff’s counsel, was sustained by the court, and the offer of
evidence overruled.

The giving of the paragraphs 9 and 10 of the court’s
instructions to the jury is assigned as error:

“9. The mere belief of Pinneo in the guilt of the plaint-
iff will not of itself justify the prosecution complained of.
He could not close his eyes to facts within his knowledge
which tended to prove plaintiff’s innocence. On the other
hand, he was not required, at his peril, to accept as true
the denial of defendant or other parties. If all the known
facts in the case, including such denial, were sufficient to
induce a reasonable ground of suspicion of plaintiff’s guilt,
then you could not find that the prosecution was without
probable cause.
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10. Should you find that the witness Pinneo demanded
$40, or any other sum of money, from the plaintiff, or his
father, for which sum he agreed to not prosecute said wit-
ness, or the plaintiff, such fact may be considered by you
in determining whether or not said Pinneo acted mali-
ciously ; but such demand, if made, would be no evidence
of want of probable cause, and should not be considered
for that purpose.”

The first three errors assigned are neither of them pre-
sented in the brief of counsel, and it is not, therefore,
deemed of importance to further constder them here.

The cogent argument of the brief is directed to the as-
sumption that the verdict was contrary to the instructions
to the jury,and is not sustained by the evidence. This
proposition is somewhat embarrassed by the unusnal cir-
cumstance that it is not directly presented in an assignment
of error, but may be. entitled to be considered under the
fourth error, that the court erred in overruling the defend-
ant’s motion for & new trial. Itsapplication will be seen in
the following instructions of the court: :

“4, If the preponderance is with the defendant, or if the
testimony is evenly balanced upon any one or more of the
material questions in this case, you will have to find for
the defendant.

“5. The material allegations which are put in issue by
the pleadings herein, and which the plaintiff is required to
establish by a preponderance of testimony are:

“First—That the witness Pinneo, in instituting the pros-
ecution complained of, was acting as the agent of the
defendant and within the scope of his authority as such
agent.

“Second—That said Pinneo had no just or reasonable
cause for such prosecution, or for believing the plaintiff
guilty of the crime of larceny.

“Third—That said Pinneo in the said prosecution acted
maliciously; that is, was actuated by motives of malice
toward the plaintiff. -
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“6. That Pinnco was acting for the defendant in some
capacity appears to be undisputed from the testimony ;
hence, on that branch of the case you will confine your
inquiry to the question whether or not he was acting
within the scope or line of his employment or agency. If
you find from the testimony that Mr. Pinneo was author-
ized by the defendant company to institute the prosccution
against the plaintiff for stealing its ties, then it would
appear that he was acting within the scope of his authority.

“7. Probable cause for criminal prosecution is defined to
be a reasonable ground for suspicion supported by circum-
stances sufficiently strong in themselves to warrant a cau-
tious man in the belief that the person accused is guilty
of the offense charged.

“8. If the plaintiff has satisfied you that the defendant’s |
agent had no such reasonable ground for suspicion of plaint-
iff’s guilt, as explained in this charge, you will be justified
in finding that no probable cause existed for the prosecu-
tion complained of. The question of probable cause in
this case does not; however, depend upon whether or not
the plaintiff actually stole ties from the defendant ; neither
does the question of probable cause depend upon the ques-
tion of malice of defendant’s agent; but the question is:
Were the facts and circumstances within the knowledge
of such agent, and upon which he acted, sufficient in
themselves to raise a reasonable ground of suspicion in
the mind of an ordinarily cautious man, and did such
agent believe plaintiff guilty of stealing said ties? If such
reasonable ground of suspicion existed within the knowl-
edge of defendant’s agent who instituted the prosecution,
and if he actually Lelieved plaintiff guilty, then he had
probable cause therefor, and youn should find for the defend-
ant, even if you should find also that plaintiff did not in
fact steal said ties.

“9. The mere belief of Pinneo in the guilt of the plaint-
iff will not of it-elf justify the prosecution complained of.
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He could not close his eyes to facts within his knowledge
which tended to prove plaintiff’s innocence. On the other
hand, he was not required, at his peril, to accept as true
the denial of defendant or other parties. If all the known
facts in the case, including such denial, were sufficient to
induce a reasonable ground of suspicion of plaintiff’s
guilt, then you could not find that the prosecution was
without probable cause.”

Does the evidence, viewed in the light of these instruc-
tions, sustain the verdict? If this can be so considered, the
court was justified in overruling the motion for a new trial,
but, if otherwise, it was the duty of the court to have set
aside the verdict. .

Pinneo, as the agent of defendant, was acting in an
. useful and necessary capacity under the general instructions
of the superintendent of the railroad company, and was
located at a point nearly 100 miles distant from the
plaintiff, who was an utter stranger to him. Tle witness
McDuffy was a local section foreman of the company, near to
the residence of the plaintiff and to the scene of the transac-
tions testified to by all the witnesses. McDuffy informed
McConniff, the superintendent and immediate superior
of Pinneo, that railroad ties, the property of the defend-
ant, had been recently stolen from the line of the road, and
directed Pinneo to investigate the depredation, ascertain
the guilty parties, and, if possible, bring them to justice,
with such reparation to the company as his general instruc-
tions implied. Under these orders he proceeded to Platte
county to the section of the road under McDuffy’s charge,
and was informed by that official “that there had been
a lot of rairoad ties stolen, and pointed out the direction
and place to which the property had been taken, and that
his son, John McDuffy, had followed the property and
the parties to the house;” and was further informed by
John McDuffy “that he and his father, while working on
the section under their charge, saw somebody loading ties
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down on the track; that his father directed him to follow
them, and that he did follow the team up the road to the
house in the grove, and discovered that Paul Kriski, the
plaintiff,and Peter Kriski, his father, were there in posses-
sion and were then unhitching the team from the wagon
loaded with ties.” The agent testifies that he questioned
these informants narrowly as to circumstances detailed in
order that he should make no mistakeas to his own action.
He then,accompanied by the deputy sheriff, went to Kriski’s
place, and, before coming to the house, saw the younger
brother of the plaintiff herding cattle near the road, who
told them, in answer to inquiries, “that his father and
older brother had hauled some railroad ties,” and when
asked where from, pointed to the direction whence the de-
fendant’s ties had been taken. The plaintiff also said to
the deputy sheriff that “they had got some ties and flood-
wood at the bridge,” and when asked where from, pointed
out the same direction that the younger brother had, and
upon further inquiry told conflicting stories about the ties.

The father, Peter Kriski, being asked where he got the ties,
" said that he got them on the railroad, and upon an offer to
sell them to him at thirty cents each, refused to buy them
at that price, but gave different accounts as to their pos-
session. The last one was that he had bought them of the
U. P. Company’s foreman.

At the Kriski place there was found-a large amount of
said railroad ties of the kind and quality of those stolen
from defendant according to the information received by
the agent, and in possession of them the agent found the
Kriskis, both father and son. Upon these apparent facts
Peter Kriski and his son Paul were charged Ly the agent
Pinneo with the larceny of the tics. The agent testified
that they were total strangers to him, and that he was free
of any malice or ill-will in their prosecution.

In rebuttal of the testimony of Schroeder for the plaint-
iff, the agent testified that he had never spoken to that
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witness, and had not told him anything about old man
Kriski having gotten the ties of the U. P. Railroad Com-
pany. This evidence is corroborated by Kriski, who stated
that he talked with Schroeder only, and that Schrocder did
not talk with Pinneo for him at the time stated by that
witness. ‘

From the commencement of the prosecution forward,
the testimony is conflicting. Pinneo heard statements
from the elder Kriski, from the son-in-law, and probably
others, in explanation of the possession of the property
and casting doubt as to the accuracy of the information
previously given as to the guilt of the parties.

The court charged the jury in the 9th instruction that the
agent “ was not required, at.his peril, to accept the denial of
the defendant or other parties; that if all the known facts
in the case, including such denial, were sufficient to induce
a reasonable ground of suspicion of plaintiff’s guilt, it
could not be found that the prosecution was without rea-
sonable cause.”

It is undoubtedly one of the most usual circumstances
attending accusations of crime that the accused should
deny their guilt and endeavor to explain away any suspi-
cious facts leading to their arrest. And notwithstanding
the small confidence placed in such assertions, the absence
of such denial or explanation is liable to be regarded as
tending to a confession. Can it be said that the agent
Pinneo, with a due regard to his duty to his employer,
could have, after receiving the information from the
McDuffys, seemingly confirmed by the possession of the
property by the Kriskis, part of it upon the wagon as if
lately hauled upon the premises, accepted, as conclusive and
sufficient to turn him back from the pursuit of the prop-
erty, the denial of these persons as to their guilt or their
conflicting explanations of their possession of it? But we
may not be put to this inquiry, but rather rest upon the
fact that the court in its charge held that no such duty was
incumbent upon him.
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The question then recurs whether the court was bound
to enforce the law thus laid down, but this depends upon
the conclusion of that court, and of this, as ‘to the suffi-
ciency of the facts commuuicated to the agent, and within
his knowledge, to establish the existence, or the absence
of probable cause for the arrest and prosecution of the
plaintiff.

The court in its seventh instruction correctly charged the
jury that probable cause for criminal prosecution is a rea-
sonable ground for suspicion supported by circumstances
sufficiently strong in themselves to warrant a cautious man
in the belief that the accused is guilty of the offense
charged.

From the information, circumstances and facts presented
to the agent Pinneo by the McDuffys, and his own ocu-
lar demonstration of the property in the possession of the
Kriskis, can it be said that he was not warranted, as a
cautious man, in the belief that larceny had been commit-
ted, and that those in possession of the property, and not
accounting for it, were the guilty parties? If this ques-
tion be answered in the negative, the justification of the de-
fendant is clear, because the agent, who alone could testify
as to his belief] testified that he believed the plaintiff to be
guilty, and the court instructed the jury, and we believe
properly, that the agent was not bound to accept, at his
peril, the denials of the accused, or of-other parties, and
such denials were the only circumstances in evidence which
tended in any degree to disprove or contradict the strong
presumption of guilt under the criminating circumstances
of the case.

The legal and logical reasons, therefore, seem to me to
be unquestionable that a verdict for the plaintiff upon such
grounds and evidence, and under such instructions as the
jury were charged with, should have been set aside on mo-
tion, and that the court erred in overruling the defendant’s
motion for a new trial. Having reached this conclusion the
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fifth and sixth assignments of the plaintiff in error will not
be further considered in this opinion. The judgment of
the district court is reversed and this cause is remanded for
a new trial.

REVERSED AND REMANDED,

THE other judges concur.

HeNrY M. BrowN v. SAMUEL H. RicE ET AL.
[FiLED SEPTEMBER 17, 1890.]

1. Jurisdiction: SPECIAL APPEARANCE TO CHALLENGE. In an
action under sections 51 and 77 of the Code of Civil Procedure
where service was by publication, and the plaintiff’s affidavit
omitted to state that the defendants, or some of them, resided
out of the state, held, that it was compet. t for the defendant
to appear specially in support of a motion challenging the juris-
diction of the court, or to quash a juridical paper without fur-
ther appearing as a defendant in the case. (I’orter v. Chicago
& N. W. R. Co., 1 Neb., 14; Cleghorn v. Waterman, 16 1d., 226.)

2. Final Order. A ruling of the court sustaining the defend-
ant’s motion to quash the service against him by publication,
without a judgment of record, is not such a final order deter-
mining the plaintiff’s rights of action as will be reviewed on
error. (Brown v. Edgerion, 14 Neb., 453.)

ERROR to the district court for Madison county. Tried
below before CRAWFORD, J.

William V. Allen, for plaintiff in error:

All objections to jurisdiction must be made by the party
in person and cannot be raised by counsel. (1 Bouvier,
L. D.,title “ Appearances;” 1 Chitty, Pleadings [10th Am.
Ed.], 428 ; Knoz v. Summers, 3 Cranch [U. 8.],496.) The
tendency of this court’s holdings has been against special ap-
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pearances. (Maxwell, Just. Pr., 90.) The motion sought to
call into excrcise the power of the court to reconsider its
judgment as to the service, and this made the appearance
a general one. (Cropsey v. Wiggenhorn, 3 Neb., 108;
Crowell v. Galloway, 1d., 220; Porter v. R. Co., 1 1d., 14;
Johnson v. Jones, 2 1d., 136 ; Kane v. People, 4 1d., 512;
Newlove v. Woodward, 9 1d., 504; White v. Merriam, 16
Id., 96; Warren v. Dick, 17 1d., 246 ; Marsden v. Soper,
11 O. 8t., 503.) The affidavit, while perhaps incomplete,
is not void. (Fulton v. Levy, 21 Neb., 451; Britton v. Lar-
son, 23 Id., 806.)-

Wigton & Whitham, contras

An appearance for the purpose of objecting to jurisdic-
tion is not a general one. (Cleghornv. Waterman, 16 Neb.,
226; Crowell v. Galloway, 3 Id., 220.) The affidavit is
defective in not alleging that defendant is a non-resident.
(Atkins v. Athkins, 9 Neb., 200; Fulton v. Levy,21 Id.,482;
Britton v. Larson, 23 1d., 806.)

Coss, CH. J.

The plaiutiff in error exhibited his petition in the dis-
trict court of said county against the defendants Rice and
his wife, and Mary J. Brown, the petitioner’s wife, setting
up that on September 30, 1875, he purchased the west
half of the southeast quarter of scction 30, township 22,
range 4 west, in said county, for §400, the fee simple title
to which, “to pacify his wife,” was conveyed to her, in
trust, for his use and benefit; that on April 16, 1878, she
mortgaged the land to defendant Rice to secure her note
of that date to him for $79, due in sixty days, bearing
twelve per cent interest; that on January 20, 1879, the
mortgage was foreclosed against her in said court and the
land sold to the mortgagee and judgment creditor, and
sheriff’s deed made to him June 7, 1889, and that he had
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sincc paid taxes thereon of $58.42. The plaintiff seeks
to redeem the land of the mortgage, interest, and costs,
and the subsequent taxes, and to quiet his title.

Mesne process was not served on the parties, but on
November 25, 1885, the plaintiff’s attorney filed his affi-
davit for service by publication, stating “that service of
the summons in this case cannot be made within the state
on the said defendants or either of them, and that this is
one of the cases mentioned in section 77 of the Code of
Civil Procedure.” Accordingly it was ordered ¢ that service
upon the defendants be made by publication in the manner
required by law.” Notice to the defendants by publica-
tion was given, dated November 27, 1885, and proof of
publication in the Madison Chronicle, a weekly newspaper
printed and published in said county, and of general
circulation therein, for four consecutive weeks, was made
March 9, 1886, and on the same day default was taken and
entered in open court against the defendants.

On March 25, and subsequently on November 28, 1887,
the defendants being still in default, it was ordered that
the petition be taken as confessed ; that the sale of the land
to defendant Rice, and the sheriff’s deed to him, be set
aside and canceled; that the petitioner’s title to the land
be restored and quieted, and he be permitted to redeem
the same from the foreclosure and sale, and for that pur-
pose & referee was appointed to ascertain what mortgage
and tax liens existed against the land, from which the
plaintiff should be required to redeem, and the case was
continued for further hearing on the referee’s report.

On October 8, 1888, the defendant Rice appeared, by
his attorneys, specially for the purposes of his motion only,
and moved to quash the service by publication on him for
the reasons:

First—That the affidavit for service by publication is
not sufficient in law to authorize such service, in that it
fails to state that this defendant is, or was at the making
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or filing of the affidavit, a non-resident of the state of
Nebraska.

Second—That this defendant is, and ever since the com-
mencement of this action, and the filing of the petition,
has been, a resident of this state, and service of summons
could at any time have been had upon him in this state, as
shown by the affidavit of defendant in support of the mo-
tion, and which motion upon hearing was sustained by the
court, and to which the plaiutiff excepted.

On October 11, 1888, the plaintiff filed a motion for a
new trial:

First—Because the decision is contrary to law.

Second—Because of error of law occurring at the trial.

Third—Because the court erred in sustaining the special
appearance, and in setting aside the judgment, entered in
this case. '

Fourth—Because the question raised by the special ap-
pearance adheres and passed into the judgment, and the
defendant’s remedy was a motion or petition for a new
trial.

This motion for 4 new trial was overruled, to which the
plaintiff excepted.

The plaintiff in error assigns in his petition as causes
for review:

First—That the court erred in sustaining the special
appearance of defendant Rice, and in setting aside the serv-
ice and judgments made and entered in the cause.

Second—That the court erred in making a final order
setting aside, for want of jurisdiction, the judgment, entered
in the cause.

The first question presented on the record, is that of the
sufficiency of service on the defendant Rice by publica-
tion of notice. The action was brought under the first
clause of section 51 of the Code, “ for the recovery of real
property, or of an estate, or interest therein.” Constructive
service is provided for by publication in actions brougit
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under scction 51, by the first clause of section 77, ¢“where
any or all of the defendants reside out of the state.”

The affidavit required to be made under section 78, be-
fore service can be had by publication, stating that service of
a summons caunot be made within this state on the defend-
ants, and that they, or some of them, reside out of this
state, omitted the last material fact, and its suﬂicieuéy was
traversed by the defendant Rice, without denial by the
plaintiff. On the special appearance and motion of the
defendant, for that purpose only, the service by publication
was set aside. That it was competent for the defendant to
appear specially at any stage of the proceedings, in open
court, in support of a motion which directly challenged the
jurisdiction of the court, or quashed a juridical paper, with-

. out making any further appearance as a defendant, is not
doubted. It was so held in the case of Porter v. Chicago
& Northwestern Railroad, 1 Neb., 14, and in Cleghorn v.
Waterman, 16 Neb., 226, which have not been overruled or
modified, and whlch are adhered to.

The second error assigned, that the court erred in mak-
ing a final order setting aside the judgment, for the want
of jurisdiction, does not appear, in fact, in the record. No
judgment in form, or final order,is to be found in the
record before us affecting the plaintiff’s rights or determin-
ing the action in the court below, not even a judgment for
the defendant’s costs which may be supposed to have fol-
lowed the motions to quash the service, and for a new
trial. (See Brown v. Edgeiton, 14 Neb., 454.) Both the
plaintiff and his petition, so far as the record shows, are
recti in curia, where the case may be still pending.

There seems to be nothing in second error to be reviewed,
reversed, or affirmed, and the petition in error will be

DiIsMISSED.

THE other judges concur,
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Un~rox P. R. Co. v. Ira D, MaRrsTON.

[FILED SgPTEMBER 17, 1890.]

|ais‘§s

o

1. Common Carriers: INJURIES TO GooDS: VERBAL AGREE-
MENT: BILL oF LADING: VARIANCE. M. applied to an agent
of the Rock Island & Peoria R. Co., at one of its stations in
the state of Illinois, to ship certain office furniture, including a
stove, to Kearney on the line of defendant’s road in this state.
The agent informed M. that the custom was for shippers to re-
lease stoves, but advised him not to do it for reasons given, but
to pay the additional expense of sending it at carrier’s risk. To
this M. assented, and offered to pay the freight to said agent,
who informed him that he could as well pay it at the end of the
route. The agent placed the goods into a car of a freight train
which proceeded on its way. Four or five hours afterwards the
agent handed him a paper, saying that it was a receipt for the
goods shipped. This paper M. put in his pocket without exam-
ining it, and which proved to be a bill of lading of th.: goods,
.containing, infer alio, the condition, “stoves at owner’s risk of
breakage.”” The goods were received at C. B. from the R. I. R.
Co., by defendant and carried to K. Upon arrival the stove was
found to have heen broken en route. Inan action by M against
the U. P. Railway Company for damages for injury to stove,
held, that, as between M. and the R. I. & P. R. Co., the stove
was carried at carrier’s risk.

2 Certain instructions given as requested. and others modified
and given as modified, set out with such modifications in the
opinion, Aeld, rightly given, and rightly given as modified.

3. Trial: View: THE EVIDENCE keld to sustain the verdict, espe-
cially in view of the fact that upon the trial the jury were
ordered and permitted by the court, at the request of the de-
fendant, to go out in charge of a bailiff and examine the stove
in its broken and damaged condition.

ERrroRr to the district court for Buffalo county, Tried
below before HAMER, J.

J. M. Thurston, W. R. Kelley, and J. §. Shropshire, for

plaintiff in error:

Defendant in error, having vaccepted the shipping receipt
16 ‘

188
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and brought suit upon it, was bound by its terms. (Whit-
worth v. R. Co., 87 N. Y., 413; Carsure v. Harris, 4 G.
Greene [Ia.], 516 ;- Hutchinson, Carriers, secs. 240, 241,
243, 248, 265.) As the testimony shows that the loss did
not occur on defendant in error’s line, it is not liable. (Jen-
neson v. R. Co.,5 Pa. L. J. Rep., 409; Morse v. Brainerd,
41 Vt., 550; Burroughs v. R. Co., 100 Mass., 26.) De-
fendant in error, as a connecting line, had a right to rely
upon the bill of lading exempting the carrier from liabil-
ity. (St. Louis Ins. Co. v. R. Co., 3 Am. & Eng. R. R.
Cases, 271; Kiff v. R. Co., 18 1d., 618; Hot Springs R.
Co. v. Trippe, 1d., 562 [42 Ark., 465]; L., etc., R. Co. v.
Corcoran, Id., 602 [40 Ark., 375]) Reduced cost of
transportation is a good consideration for a clause in a bill
of lading, limiting liability. (Sprague v. R. Co.,23 Am.
& Eng. R. R. Cases, 685; Grogan v. Ezp. Co., 30 1d., 9.)

Ira D. Marston, contra :

A bill of lading given subsequently to a verbal agree-
ment with less stringent terms, does not bind the shipper
unless known to and approved by him. (2 Rorer, Rail-
roads, p. 1320 ; Bostwick v. R. Co.,456 N. Y., 712; Comp.
Stats., 1887, p. 558, sec. 5; Const., art. 11, sec. 4.) The
legislature carrying out the constitutional provision cited,
has provided for just such cases as the one at bar. (Comp.
Stats., ch. 16, sec. 111; 4. & N. R. Co. v. Washburn, &
Neb., 120-1.)

Coss, CH. J.

The plaintiff below alleged that the defendant is a rail-
way corporation under the laws of the United States, doing
business in this state as a common carrier of freight and
passengers ; that on December 30, 1885, by itself and its
duly authorized agent, it received at Cambridge, Illinois, for
transportation to Kearney, Nebraska, one hard coal base
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burner stove of the value of $40, and thereby agreed, in
consideration of $1.52 per hundred weight, to safely trans-
port and deliver the same to the plaintiff at Kearney.
That no part of said agreement was in writing, but that
the defendant, by its said agent, delivered to the plaintiff a
certain receipt or bill of lading, a true copy of which is
attached hereto, but that its conditions were not brought to
the plaintiff ’s notice or accepted by him ; on the contrary,
it was expressly agreed that said goods should be shipped
at the carrier’s risk, and the rate of freight demanded for
transportation at carrier’s risk was paid to the agent.

It is al legéd that the weight of the stove was 340 pounds ;
that he paid the defendant for transportation to Kearney,
one and fifty-two hundredths dollars per 100 pounds; that
the defendant did not safely transport the stove, but negli-
gently and carelessly brcke and destroyed the same while
in its possession as such common carrier, and has not de-
livered it as it was bound to do, to the damage of the plaint-
iff of $40, with interest from January 12, 1886, and asks
judgment therefor, and costs of suit.

Exuisir D.

“Rock IsLAND & PEORIA RAILWAY COMPANY,

“ CAMBRIDGE, ILL., Jany. 1, 1886.

¢ Received of Ira. D. Marston, by the Rock Island &
Peoria Railway Co., the following property in apparent
good order (except as noted), marked and consigned as in
the margin, which they agree to deliver, with as reasonable
dispatch as their general business will permit, subject to
the conditions mentioned below, in like good order (the
dangers incident to railroad transportation, loss or damage
by fire while at depots or stations, loss or damage of com-
bustible articles by fire while in transit, and unavoidable
accidents excepted) at Rock Island station, upon the pay-
ment of charges. The company further agrees to forward
the property to the place of destination, as per margin, but
are not to be held liable on account thereof after the same
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shall be delivered as above. The company, however,
guarantee the through rate of freight, as designated below.

“ConpIiTIONs: The company do not agree to carry the
property by any particular train, nor in time for any par-
ticnlar maiket. Qils and all other liquids at owner’s risk.
Liquids in glass or earthen, drugs and medicines in boxes,
glass and glassware in boxes, looking glasses, marbles,
stoves, stove plates, and light castings, earthen or queens-
ware, at owner’s risk of breakage.

“Agricultural implements, cabinetware and furniture
not boxed, and carriages at owner’s risk of breakage or
damage by chafing. Oysters, poultry, dressed hogs, fresh
meat, and provisions of all kinds, trees, shrubbery, fruits,
and all perishable property at owner’s risk of frost and
decay.

“Itis a part of this agreement that all other carriers trans-
porting the property herein receipted for, as a part of the
through line, shall be entitled to the benefit of all the ex-
ceptions and conditions above mentioned ; and if carried
by water, he is entitled to the further benefit of exception
from loss or damage arising from collision, and all other
damages incident to lake and water navigation. All freight
not taken away on arrival will be stored free for twenty-
four hours, after which regular storage rates will be
charged.

“ MARKS AND CoNsIGNEES: Ira D. Marston, Kearney,
Neb.

“Agents will sign this form of shipping receipt, and no
other, unless authority is given by the general freight
agent. Agents will be particular to number both receipt
and shipping bill, which must be alike.

“RATE: 1562 per cent from Cambridge, Ill., to Kearney,
Neb. :

“ ARTICLES: b6 bx. books; one desk, boxed ; 1 blank
case bks; 1 office chair, 1 stove; 1940 weight (subject to
correction), G. A. CooPER, Agenl.
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“ StaTE OF ILLINOIS,
HEexNry Couxrty. }ss.

“On this twelfth day of August, 1886, personally ap-
peared before me, G. A. Cooper, the signer of a copy of
the Vill of lading on the reverse side hercof, and, being duly
sworn, says that the said copy is a true copy of the origi-
nal bill of lading as shown by the books of the Rock Island
& Peoria Railroad Co. at their station.

¢ Cambridge, Ill., August 13, 1886.

“G. A. CooPER.

“Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 13th day of
August, 1886. W. H. SHEPARD,
' ¢ Notary Public.”

The defendant answered that it is a railway corporation
organized under the laws of the United States and that it
has a defense to this action arising under said laws. De-
nying generally the allegations of the plaintiff, it says
“ that the plaintiff entered into a contract with the Rock
Island & Peoria Railway Company, for a certain “price,
whereby the said company agreed to transport the said
stove; that neither the said railway company nor the Rock
Island & Pacific Railroad Company, or either of them,
were the agents of defendant at Cambridge, Illinois, or
that they acted as its agents in receiving and delivering the
said stove; that the defendant herein has no line of road
in the state of Illinois, and did not receive the stove, as
alleged, from the plaintiff at Cambridge, and made no con-
tract or agreement of any kind in respect to transporting
and delivering said stove. It has no knowledge other than
that derived from the plaintiff’s petition that the ¢ Exhibit
D’ attached thereto is a true and accurate copy of the bill
of lading or agreement between the plaintiff and the Rock
Island & Peoria Railway Company, and therefore denies
the same.

“ Defendant says that the said stove was not injured,
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broken, or destroyed on its line of road,and was not dam-
aged in any way while the same was in its possession.”

The plaintiff replied denying each and every allegation
in the answer contained.

There was a trial to a jury, with findings for the plaint-
iff and damages assessed at $40.

At the request of the defendant the jury returned special
findings as follows: “That the stove was broken between
Cambridge and Kearney on the Union Pacific railroad, in
the defendant’s possession, by reason of the negligence of
the defendant.”

The defendant’s motion for a new trial being overruled,
judgment was-entered upon the verdict, to which the de-
fendant excepted on the record and brings it to this court
on the assignments of error as follows:

“1. That the verdict is contrary to law and is not sus-
tained by the evidence.

“2. That it is excessive, appearing to have been rendered
under the influence of passion and prejudice.

“3. For errors of law occurring at the trial and duly
excepted to by the defendant. ‘

“4. In modifying instructions Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4, offered
by defendant, and which should have been given without
modification.

“5. In refusing instructions Nos. 6 and 7 asked by de-
fendant.

“@. In giving plaintiff’s instructions Nos. 3 and 5.

7. Because each of the special findings of the jury is
not supported by sufficient evidence, and is contrary
thereto. -

“8. Because the plaintiff was permitted to amend his
petition by striking out the words ‘as per usual bill of
lading.’

“9, In overruling the defendant’s motion for a new trial.”

It is clearly established by the pleadings and evidence
that the defendant in error, being about to remove from
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Cambridge, in the state of Illinois, to the city of Kcarncy,
in this state, went to the office of the Rock Island &
Peoria Railroad Company, at Cambridge, taking with him
certain office furniture, including a hard coal base purner
stove, and procured the same to be shipped over the said
railroad and its connections to Kearney; that the station
agent, in charge of said station, through and by whom said
goods were received and shipped, then and there, and as a
part of the res gestee, informed the defendant in error that
the custom was for shippers to release stoves when they
shipped them, but advised him not to do it, as his goods
were going a long distance, he had better pay the additional
expense of sending it at carrier’s risk ; whereupon defend-
ant in error replied that that was just what he proposed to
do, etc., and asked the agent what would be the extra
charge on the stove at carrier’s risk ; the agent figured it
up and replied, “seventy-five cents;” defendant in error
replied “Very well, I shall pay you;” the agent said* No,
vou can pay at the end of the line,” and also explained to
defendant in error the arrangement of paying the freight
on the goods over the roads over which it should go; that
at or about the time this conversation occurred the stove
had been received by the said agent and pronounced to be
in perfect condition for shipment; and very shortly after-
wards the car in which the goods, including the stove, were
placed proceeded on its way as a part of the west bound
freight train. Some five or six hours afterwards, as de-
fendant in error was taking the passenger train, for Kear-
ney, the said agent came out of the station house and
handed him a paper saying, “ Here, Marston, here is your
receipt for your goods.” This paper Marston put into his
pocket and never looked at it until some time after his ar-
rival at Kearney, when.he received notice that the stove
had arrived there in a broken condition.

It appears that the paper handed to Marston by said
station agent was a receipt for the goods shipped by Mars-
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ton including “1 stove, 1940,” and contained the follow-
ing, amongst other conditions : “Liquids in glass, * *
stoves, * * * at owner’s risk of breakage.” The ques-
tion here arises, and it is the leading one in the case, Was
the shipper, the defendant in error, under the fucts and cir-
cumstances above stated, bound by the above condition of
the receipt or bill of 'lading as it is usnally called? To this
defendant in error cites section 5 of chapter 72, Compiled
Statutes. I here copy the section : “No notice, either ex-
press or implied, shall be held to limit the liabilities of
any railroad company as common carriers unless they shall
make it appear that such limitation was actually brought
to the knowledge of the opposite party and assented to by
him, or them, in express terms before such limitation shall
take effect.” He also cites 2 Rorer on Railroads, 1320, and
Bostwick: v. B. & O. R. Co., 45 N. Y., 712. Upon a c nsid-
eration of these authorities it scems very clear to me that, as
between Marston and the Rock Island & Peoria R. Co.,
the stove was carried at the carrier’s risk. But whether
the contract of shipment between said railroad company
and the shipper was binding upon the defendant, as the
owner of the connecting line of railroad that received the
stove at Council Bluffs, and carried it from thence to
Kcarney, I do not deem it necessary to decide in the case
under consideration.

This brings me to the consideration of. the instructions.
Those given at the request of the plaintiff, defendant in
error, are as follows:

“3. That if you blelieve from the evidence that the
stove in question was damaged, and that such damage oc-
curred on the line of the defendant and through the neyli-
gence or carelessness of its agents or employes, and while
the goods were in defendant’s possession, you will find for
the plaintiff, and assess his damages at such sum as the evi-
dence shows him entitled to, not, however, exceeding forty
dollars,



Vor.30] SEPTEMBER TERM, 1890. 249

U. P. R. Co. v. Mustm:;.

“5. That when it is proven that the goods in question
were in the possession of the defendant and were damaged
at some place on the route, then the burden of proof is
upon the defendant to show that the damage occurred on
some other than its line, and unless you believe from the
evidence that the goods, if damaged, were damaged on some
other line than that of the defendant, you will find for the
plaintiff.” .

The defendant, plaintiff in error, then asked seven in-
structions. The fifth was given as asked, as follows:

“If you shall find that the rate as fixed in the shipping
receipt, and as paid by the plaintiff, for the transportation
of this stove, was what is designated as ‘owner’s risk’ rate,
and that this defendant received 